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) 2017
(€)) ()
4,140 363 (762) 3,741
2,294 2,191 (244) 4,241
6,434 2,554 (1,006) 7,982
4,453 238 237 4,928
@
@
2018 2019
2019
2018 10 8,056
2018
2018
2019 2018 11 5,546
2018
2019

2018 93
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OooooOodd
2018 2019
2019 2019 2018
325
2019 2018 2019
2018 632 (2018
) MUMSS
2019
2018 14,896
2019
2019
2019 2018 317 182
)
2019 2018 2017 2019 2018
509 475 533 7 [¢5))
734 279 848 163 67)
2 1 3 100 67)
1,726 1,804 1,737 () 4
10,199 10,158 9,342 — 9
345 248 268 39 @
13,515 12,965 12,731 4 2
5,467 5,498 4,591 () 20
1,245 1,221 486 2 151
4,222 4,277 4,105 @ 4
17,737 17,242 16,836 3 2
9,774 9,507 9,360 3 2
3,131 3,214 3,177 ®) 1
12,905 12,721 12,537 1 1
4,832 4,521 4,299 7 5
1,104 1,049 1,974 5 )

3,728 3,472 2,325 7 49
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OoOoOoOoOodno
) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2,700 2,303
(€] 1,267 1,046
47 45
(@) 90 83
67.2 68.6
93.2 82.9
15,468 15,694
2019 2018 2017
( NE) 1,136 1,100 1,068
( )] 175 147 151
( Y(5) 64.9 65.9 75.4
(€))
@
(©)
O)
®)
)
2019 2018 2017 2019 2018
509 475 533 7 11
734 279 848 163 67)
1,726 1,804 1,737 () 4
2,969 2,558 3,118 16 (18)
17 15 19
2018 2019
2019 16 2,969
2019
2019
2019
2019 2018 10,199 2019

731420
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OooooOodd
2019 39
345
2019
2018 4,222
2019
2019
2019 2018
12,905
2019
2019
2018 2019
) 12 31 12 31
@ 279 53 (19) 9 322
0) 257 48 (39) 47 313
137 27 32) 23 155
353 75 (48) 55 435
1,026 203 (138) 134 1,225
20 36 19 — 42
1,046 239 (152) 134 1,267
2017 2018
) 12 31 12 31
@ 252 40 (18) 5 279
©) 271 48 (34) (28) 257
149 29 (28) (13) 137
353 71 42) (29) 353
1,025 188 122) (65) 1,026
20 16 (16) — 20
1,045 204 (138) (65) 1,046
2016 2017
) 12 31 12 31
@ 222 39 (1) 12 252
@ 225 49 (34) 31 271
125 34 (25) 15 149
285 74 (41) 35 353
857 196 (121) 93 1,025
20 13 (13) — 20
877 209 (134) 93 1,045

741420
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OooooOodd
( bps) 2019 2018 2017

15 16 17

0} 100 99 101

86 84 86

95 95 97

74 76 77

6 6 6

73 74 76

€Y
@
( )
( )
2019 2018 2017 2019 2018

() 25 2) (132) N/M
1,213 254 449 N/M (43)

1 — — N/M —

2,629 2,468 2,196 7 12

(46) (30) @37) (53) 19

3,789 2,717 2,586 39 5

20 57 4 (65) N/M

46 28 4 64 N/M

(26) 29 — (190) N/M
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OooooOodd
3,763 2,746 2,586 37 6
1,630 1,167 1,181 40 D)
1,148 1,115 949 3 17
2,778 2,282 2,130 22 7
985 464 456 112 2
193 73 201 164 (64)
792 391 255 103 53
— 2 — (100) N/M
792 393 255 102 54
73 17 9 N/M 89
719 376 246 01 53
2018 2019
( )
2018 254 2019 1,213
2019 2019 AUM
2018 2,629
2019 2018 46 30
( )
2019 2018 22 2,778
2019
2019 AUM
2018 2019
12 31 12 31
( )
103 39 D) 28 [0) 138
68 25 (20) 5 1 79
128 22 an 10 © 139
AUM 299 86 (68) 43 [0) 356
164 1,315 (1,283) 2 (3) 196
AUM 463 1,401 (1,351) 45 (6) 552
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
2017 2018
12 31 12 31
( )
105 38 (32) ®) — 103
73 25 @n @ @ 68
128 22 (19) @ ©) 128
AUM 306 85 (78) 11) 3) 299
@ 176 1,351 (1,362) 2 ®3) 164
AUM 482 1,436 (1,440) ) (6) 463
7 7
2016 2017
12 31 12 31
( )
79 23 1) 23 1 105
60 27 1) 4 3 73
115 24 (18) 8 @ 128
AUM 254 74 (60) 35 3 306
163 1,239 (1,227) 1 — 176
AUM 417 1,313 (1,287) 36 3 482
8 7
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(1) 2018 180
AUM
( ) 2019 2018 2017
124 111 93
71 71 66
134 131 122
AU 329 313 281
171 158 157
AUM 500 471 438
6 7 7
( bps) 2019 2018 2017
76 76 73
32 33 33
64 66 70
AUM 61 62 62
17 17 17
AUM 46 47 46

— 2018
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OoOoOoOoOodno
) 2019 2018 2017
GAAP 18.3 20.9 40.1
—GAAP [€)) 21.3 22.7 30.8
@) 1270 (165) (155)
®3) (348) (203) 968
(€)) ) (
) GAAP GAAP GAAP
@ (
(€) ( )
2019 2018
2017 12 22 ( )
20
13
(€9)
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
219.6 216.9
— 42.4 45.5
— 26.1 23.7
68.5 69.2
@ 189.3 187.1
A 49.9 44.7
30.2 27.5
80.1 72.2
@)
®)
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OooooOodd
5.6 7.4
26.8 17.5
5.4 6.0
12.0 10.5
49.8 41.4
o
@ — —
(©)
©)
(
)
) 2019 2018 2017
1,233 1,174 1,039
645 (48) 499
1,878 1,126 1,538
) 2019 2018 2017
916 611 771
760 346 564
202 169 203
1,878 1,126 1,538
(
)
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OoOoOoOoOodno
(
2019 12 31 N0 5,376
2020 [©) (1,042)
2019 12 31 ) 1,092
2020 2019 ) 1,050
(O] 6,476

[€H) 2019 12 31

@

©)

® 40 50

10
(
2020 1,169
2021 469
2022 504
@ 2,142
o
( )
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OoOoOoOoOodno
( FASB )
2020

— — ( CECL )
( )
CECL
( )
2020 131
100 ( )
GAAP
( )
( )
( )
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( )
O] (i)
( )
)
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13
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20

2019 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

85/420



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
IS WM IM
(¢D) 67,657 14,247 267 82,171
293,477 47 3,586 297,110
38,524 67,201 — 105,725
80,744 7,480 — 88,224
106,199 350 — 106,549
39,743 15,190 713 55,646
(@)) 50,557 80,075 5 130,637
(3) 14,300 13,092 1,975 29,367

691,201 197,682 6,546 895,429
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
) 2018 12 31
IS W I
@ 69,526 17,621 49 87,196
263,870 60 2,369 266,299
23,273 68,559 — 91,832
80,660 17,862 — 98,522
116,207 106 — 116,313
35,777 16,865 656 53,298
0} 43,380 72,194 5 115,579
®) 13,734 9,125 1,633 24,492
646,427 202,392 4,712 853,531
IS —
W —
I —
@
@ ( )
( )
(©)
2018 12 31 8,540 2019 12 31 8,950
(
) ( )
( )

87/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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OoOoOoOoOodno
) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31
€Y 9,856 10,441
€)) 34,922 36,109
88,665 119,138
50,054 41,473
@ 31,460 39,869
2,500 2,705
217,457 249,735
(€))
@)
)
2019 2018 2019 12 31
12 31 12 31

75,565 88,809 73,107

5,317 4,896 5,661

80,882 93,705 78,768

53,042 64,262 58,955

29,656 40,936 31,188

82,698 105,198 90,143

53,877 50,832 54,654

136,575 156,030 144,797

217,457 249,735 223,565
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OoOoOoOoOodno
LCR
LCR LCR
30
( HOLA )
HQLA
2019 12 31 LCR (100 )
HOLA LCR
( )
2019 12 31 2019 30
HQLA
29,597 33,053
(¢D) 148,221 141,806
177,818 174,859
LCR 134 140
(€))
2019 12 31 LCR
NSFR
NSFR

2016

NSFR
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OoOoOoOoOodno
LCR HQLA
) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31
194,773 214,835
62,706 61,667
(€D) 13,022 7,668
)
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
210,257 213,974
64,870 57,677
(€))
(
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
(
12 )
( ) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(€Y 121,077 141,255
28,388 13,642
149,465 154,897
40,891 32,923
190,356 187,820
(€))
2019
2019 12 31 D
( )
500 2,067 2,567
2020 15,228 5,174 20,402
2021 21,439 4,646 26,085
2022 16,084 3,804 19,888
2023 11,779 2,836 14,615
2024 15,388 5,718 21,106
2025 67,377 20,587 87,964
147,295 42,765 190,060
147,795 44,832 192,627
(€))
2019 12 31 1,930 2018 12 31 1,900
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12
2020 19
DBRS R-1C ) AC)
F1 A
P-2 A3
a-1 A
S&P A-2 BBB+
MSBNA
F1 A+
P-1 Al
S&P A-1 A+
MSPBNA
P-1 Al
S&pP A-1 A+

2020

21
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2019 2018 2017
121 97 80
44.23 50.08 47.01
5,360 4,860 3,750
16

94/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
2020 16
0.35
2020 14
2020 31
2019 12 16
2020 15
2019 12 31
16
( SPE ) ( )
SPE
14
13
( ) 2019 12 31
2020 2021 -2022 2023 -2024 2025
@ 20,402 45,973 35,721 87,964 190,060
Q) 1,663 1,337 2,667 813 6,480
o) 4,252 6,872 5,128 14,541 30,793
— 20,762 14,082 5,708 622 41,174
®) 763 1,349 1,117 2,845 6,074
4 662 659 225 288 1,834
[O) 48,504 70,272 50,566 107,073 276,415
€))
12
© 2019 12
31
12
(©)
10
)
®

( 20 )
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FRB
i
occ
occ
15
TLAC
)
2.5
G-SIB ( )
2.5
)
2018 2019
G-SIB G-SIB
( RIA )
RWA
— (
)

)

( ) (ii)  RWA RWA

( )

RWA

96/420

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

FRB
FRB

FRB

TLAC
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
2019 2018 12 31
SLR
SLR( SLR )
( ) 2019 12 31
(€3]

64,751 64,751
73,443 73,443
82,708 82,423
RWA 394,177 382,496
10.0 16.4 16.9
11.5 18.6 19.2
13.5 21.0 21.5

( ) 2019

D 12 31
) 889,195
4.0 8.3
©) 1,155,177
SLR 5.0 6.4
( ) 2018 12 31
(€3]

62,086 62,086
70,619 70,619
80,052 79,814
RWA 367,309 363,054
8.6 16.9 17.1
10.1 19.2 19.5
12.1 21.8 22.0

( ) 2018

@ 12 31
@) 843,074
4.0 8.4
®3) 1,092,672
SLR 5.0 6.5
€Y 2018
@
(
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)
(©)
O)
( ) D)
D)
( ) 2019 2018
12 31 12 31
5,228 9,843 (4,615)
70,589 64,175 6,414
AOCI (2.788) (2,292) (496)
(7.081) (6,661) (420)
(2.012) (2,158) 146
@ 815 (821) 1,636
64,751 62,086 2,665
8,520 8,520 —
607 454 153
9,127 8,974 153
(435) (441) 6
73,443 70,619 2,824
8,538 8,923 (385)
143 107 36
590 440 150
(6) 37) 31
9,265 9,433 (168)
82,708 80,052 2,656
8,538 8,923 (385)
143 107 36
305 202 103
(6) 37) 31
8,980 9,195 (215)
82,423 79,814 2,609
€Y ( DVA )
RWA (€
( ) 2019
RWA
2018 12 31 305,531 190,595
7,526 17,008
10,631 (844)
469 722
2,115 5,217
12,423 11,859

(753) (141)
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OooooOodd
2,352 2,484
o) 2,390 2,027
RWA 37,153 38,332
2019 12 31 342,684 228,927
RWA
2018 12 31 61,778 61,857
VaR (1,100) (1,100)
VaR (6.947) (6,947)
(6.125) (6,125)
(243) (218)
1,609 1,609
2,521 2,521
RWA (10,285) (10, 260)
2019 12 31 51,493 51,597
RWA
2018 12 31 N/A 110,602
RWA N/A (8,630)
2019 12 31 N/A 101,972
RWA 394,177 382,496
VaR — VaR
Q) RWA

@
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2019

2019
VaR

2019

G-SIB

2019 12 31

FRB
( LT )

TLAC

TLAC

) 7.5

RWA

G-SIB

RWA
RWA
RWA
G-SIB
G-SIB
)
G-SIB
75
)
G-SIB (
SPOE
(
)
LTD LTD
LTD
(i)RWA 18
(i)RWA
G-SIB
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2019

RWA

LTD

2016 12 31

TLAC
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G-SIB

G-SIB

2018

TLAC

LTD

(SLR
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
4.5 LTD
TLAC LTD
( ) 2019 12 31
o
TLAC(2) 196,888
RWA TLAC 18.0 21.5 49.9
TLAC 7.5 9.5 17.0
LTD(3) 113,624
RWA LTD 9.0 9.0 28.8
LTD 4.5 4.5 9.8
(€))
TLAC TLAC TLAC 2.5
G-SIB CCyB( ) (RWA
) TLAC
TLAC (
)
@) TLAC ( ) LTD
(3) TLAC LTD(2019 12 31 50
)
LTD
TLAC 2019 12 31
TLAC
FRB SLR TLAC
TLAC SLR
— SLR SLR
FRB
FRB ( CCAR )
FRB
FRB FRB
2,500
( ) FRB
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FRB
FRB
(
)
2019 2019 ( )
FRB 2019 21 FRB
2019
2019
2019 2020 30 60
18
2019 21
(IR)
2019 10 28 IR
2020 2020
FRB FRB
CCAR
FRB
(
)
(€))
) 2019 2018

27 FRB
2019
0.30
2020 30
(
2017

EDINETOOOO

0000000000(E05871)
ooooood
FRB
CCAR
2019
0.35
FRB
15
)

102/420



EDINETOOOO

000000000 m0(eos871)
ooooooo
40.4 40.8 40.2
18.2 16.8 17.2
2.5 2.6 2.4
11.6 9.8 10.0
72.7 70.0 69.8
@ GAAP GAAP
FDIC
2019 28 2019
SPOE SPOE
( )
( )
( )
)
( )
2019 12 FRB FDIC 2019
2019 2017
2019
SPOE
2021
(
( SA-CCR )
SA-CCR

RWA
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SA-CCR
RWA
G-SIB
FRB OCC FDIC
(TLAC
FRB 2018
2.5
)
RWA

CCyB

RWA

2022

LTD

SLR
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SA-CCR

G-SIB

(ii)2.5

FRB 0cc



FRB

SLR
FRB
G-SIB

FRB 0cc

EU
2020 31
12
EU

EU

LIBOR
FRB
IBOR )

G-SIB

50

1BOR

1.5

SLR

2021

EU

SLR

SLR TLAC  (
SLR
SLR
G-SIB
( SLR 4.5
G-SIB
G-SIB
SLR
EU
EU
LIBOR
LIBOR
(
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SLR

SLR

50
4.5

2020
EU
EU
EU
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IBOR
( 2021 )
( )
IBOR
FRB
LIBOR SOFR SOFR
IBOR
( )
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2019 10-K

1585
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Ogoooood
(2019 12 31 )
( 0.01 ) 3,500,000,000 2,038,893,979 1,461,106,021
( 0.00 ) 30,000,000 844,382 29,155,618
(2019 12 31 )
0.01 2,038,893,979 —
0.01 ( ) 44,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 519,882 [€))
0.01 ( ) 34,500 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 34,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 52,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 40,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 60,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 40,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 20,000 ( ) —
— 2,039,758,361 — _
(1 MUFG 1,160,791 ( 911 ) 640,909

(503 ) 2009 ( 705 )
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
(€)
1@ ( ) (O]
44,000 1,000 25,000 2011 15
) 1,160,791 N/A 1,100 2011 10 15
34,500 1,000 25,000 2023 10 15
34,000 1,000 25,000 2024 15
52,000 25 25,000 2019 15
40,000 1,000 25,000 2024 10 15
60,000 25 25,000 2020 15
40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
(6) 20,000 1,000 25,000 2025 15
() 0.01
@
(©)) ( ) (
)
( )
O]
Q)
(i) ( ) 90 (
)
®)
1,000 10
) 2019 11 25
( (
) ) 2019 2018 2017
(€H) (€D) (€))
1,014 44 1,011 45 1,014 45
100 52 100 52 100 52
1,781 60 1,781 61 1,781 61
1,719 60 1,719 58 1,719 58
@) 1,242 24 1,656 33 1,656 33
®) 1,418 74 1,363 71 1,363 71
1,594 64 1,594 64 1,594 64
) 1,388 84 1,388 83 1,388 83
1,463 59 1,463 59 1,402 56
169 3 — — _ —
524 526 523
@
() 2019
(©) 2019 15
(0)) 2020 15
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

2015 2019

( ) ) I ( )|« ) ( )

2014 12 31 6,020 744,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 24,249
( 653,351 ) ( 2,171 ) ( 2,631,744 )
2015 (79)
1,500 60,000 ©)
(10)

2015 12 31 7,520 804,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 24,153
( 816,146 ) ( 2,171 ) ( 2,621,325 )
2016 (892)
10

2016 12 31 7,520 804,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,271
( 816,146 ) ( 2,171 ) ( 2,525,602 )

2017 45

@
306
1,000 40,000 ®)
(71)
2017 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,545
( 924,676 ) ( 2,171 ) ( 2,555,339 )
2018 249
2018 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,794
( 924,676 ) ( 2,171 ) ( 2,582,363 )
2019 500 ?)
(500)
()
@

131

13

2019 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,935
( 924,676 ) ( 2,171 ) ( 2,597,666 )

(€))
@)

110/420

oOoOooodn

16

16



SEC 2020 2020
( 2020 )
(€))
MUFG(2) 24.0
( ) 7.6
3)
(
6.5
)O)
(
6.2
)(5)
55.7
100.00
[h) 2020 23 )
(2) MUFG 2020 18 2020 16
2019 20 13D/A MUFG 397,870,394
2019 12
13D/A 397,870,394 1,574,808 2019 12
MUFG
(©)
2020 14 2019 12 31
136 ) 120,246,188
113,376,095 (ii)
96,848,699 96,846,599
) 2020 2019 12 31 136
136 89,343,372 102,148,132
5) 2020 10 2019 12 31 136
1,825,049 96,234,527
348,755 2,050,474
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) SEC

MUFG

MUFG

136G

92,713,645

136G
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OooooOodd
2020 23
€H)
2020
) ( )
MUFG(3) 377,085,167 24.0
0)) 120,256,617 7.6
) 102,148,132 6.5
(6) 98,285,001 6.2
€Y
©) 2020 23 ®) (6) SEC
(3) MUFG 2020 18 2020 16 MUFG
2019 20 13D/A MUFG 397,870,394
2019 12
13D/A 397,870,394 1,574,808 2019 12 MUFG
MUFG
O
2020 14 2019 12 31 136
136 (i) 120,246,188
113,376,095 (i)
96,848,699 96,846,599 92,713,645
) 2020 2019 12 31
136 89,343,372 102,148,132
(6) 2020 10 2019 12 31 136 136
1,825,049 96,234,527
348,755 2,050,474
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(@)

2020

( NYSE )

) www.morganstanley.com/about-us-governance

(1

(i)

(iii) (@)
(b)

@iv)

™
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(H

(i)

(i)

@iv)

(b)

)

(
120,000

@

12
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)

@

)

) Q)
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(
)
1,000,000
)
(
)
14 11 (
)
)
(
)( )

NYSE

)
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2019 1,500,000 6,375,000 23,708,083 17,925 41,387 31,642,395
2018 1,500,000 6,875,000 19,748,977 — 44,662 28,168,639
) 2017 1,500,000 11,568,250 11,383,777 12,777 44,918 24,509,722
* 2019 725,000 2,875,000 15,618,228 134,519 350,440 19,703,187
) 2018 1,200,000 10,850,000 11,686,900 — 381,468 24,118,368
2017 1,200,000 13,328,750 6,943,628 — 330,128 21,802,506
2019 1,000,000 7,232,500 4,980,250 60,586 28,067 13,301,403
2018 1,000,000 8,670,000 5,031,435 — 11,000 14,712,435
) 2017 1,000,000 6,548,750 3,173,519 45,583 44,335 10,812,187
2019 1,000,000 5,938,750 3,937,082 17,000 50,563 10,943,395
2018 1,000,000 7,045,000 4,604,015 — 47,416 12,696,431
, 2017 1,000,000 5,948,750 3,072,864 12,786 43,048 10,077,448
2019 4,309,380(7) 1,195,068(8) 4,095,800 90,203 33,512 9,723,963
)
2019 1,000,000 8,382,500 4,980,250 80,002 14,729 14,457,481
2018 1,000,000 8,670,000 5,588,351 — 14,216 15,272,567
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2019 18 2019 — — — 150,365 — — 6,510,000
2019 18 2019 0 66,982 100,474 — — — 3,550,250
2019 18 2019 — — — 33,029 — — 1,430,000
2019 18 2019 0 49,659 74,489 — — — 2,632,082
2019 18 2019 — — — 30,142 — — 1,305,000
(5) 2019 18 2019 — — — 111,491 — — 4,095,800
2019 18 2019 0 66,982 100,474 — — — 3,550,250
2019 18 2019 — — — 33,029 — — 1,430,000
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2019 2018
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2019
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7 62 238,668 —
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25 62 1,417,200 —
15 65 288,446 —
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(3) 2019 12 31 2012 ( )
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1996 10
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(5) — — 453,690 — 2,866,158
— — 1,240,637 5,556,989 6,535,725
(%) 6,875,000 — 8,729,883 8,933,740 34,365,329
() — — 2,457 — 120,794
4,650,000 — 402,673 7,763,632 14,231,293
(%) 6,510,000 — 4,161,534 1,411,440 18,418,700

— — (315) — 27,549(6)
— — 219 19,905 —
4,330,000 — 1,102,098 3,687,431 9,012,519
(5) 1,430,000 — 1,415,433 2,544,615 5,315,711
() — — 49,420 — 376,216
3,455,000 — 950,919 3,347,381 7,625,219
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— — 276 30,870 —
1,098,800 — 292,793 380,865 4,434,617
) 3,296,400 — 1,584,795 627,571 8,131,497
— — 292 26,540 —
®) — — 5,086 — 250,062
4,330,000 — 181,755 3,640,387 8,921,574
— — 202,538 — 1,191,411
) 1,430,000 — 1,551,866 3,130,831 5,668,042
[€h) 2018 2019
( 2018 )
2019
2018 MSCIP 2018 2019
MSCIP
MSCIP 2019 2018 2018
(2019 2019 2019
2019 )
43.2946 2018
35.4346
@) (i)2019 12 31
( )  (ii)2018 12 31
2019
(i)2019 12 31 ( )
2018 12 31 ( )
(ii)2019 (
2019
(
(©)
2019
) 2019 12 31
2019 12 31
2019 12 31
(G) 2019 12 31
( LCIP )
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2019 12 31
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2019 30
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— — 1,202,954
— 6,674,390 780,474
(1) 2019 12 31 MSCIP
MSCIP
Q) (i)
(i)
75 18
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( 31,683,094 6,084,596 4,850,276
6,417,188 ) 2019 12 31
( 51.12 )
(©)
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( ) 3.11 2020 2021 6.20 6 )
6.60 65 )( 2029 4.45 65 ) 4.37 6 ) )
4.50 3.00
3.
2019 30 MSCIP
2019 12 31
2019 12 31 17,412,413
2019 2019 12 31 65
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2019
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2019
2019 125,000 2024 30 250,000
110,000
SEC

SEC

157/420



31

2019

2. 2017

Q)]
€Y

®
)

127,414
31,642,395
)
2017
2017 12 31

2019
2019

(D

248

2019
2019

158/420

EDINETOOOO

OO00000000(ES871)
0000000
( )
2019
2019
2017 12
2017
( )
( )
2019



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

2020 12 31
1997
)
) | ( ) | ( ) |1 (
(= ) (= ) (= ) (=
(— ) (= ) (= ) (=
= ) = ) = ) (=
@ (G))
(
)
@ (G))
)
@ (d)
)
(2019 10 15 )

10 A(M@D(®B)

159/420




EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

( PCAOB ) )

PCAOB

160/420



€H) (
) 1934
10-K
S X
( 38 59
©) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2017 12 31
(
)
LLP) ( 23 25 ) 193
24
3) «C ) SEC
«C ) SEC
)
®
134
UFJ
®)

SEC @

161/420

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

( SEC )

SEC

) 131

23

108.53

132

2019 2018
103 )

LLP(Deloitte & Touche

2019 12 31

2020 29

133



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
2019 2018 2017

$ 6,163 6,680 $ 6,482 7,035 $ 6,003 6,515
11,095 12,041 11,551 12,536 11,116 12,064
1,540 1,671 437 474 820 890
3,919 4,253 4,190 4,547 4,061 4,407
13,083 14,199 12,898 13,998 11,797 12,803
925 1,004 743 806 848 920
36,725 39,858 36,301 39,397 34,645 37,600
17,098 18,556 13,892 15,077 8,997 9,764
12,404 13,462 10,086 10,946 5,697 6,183
4,694 5,094 3,806 4,131 3,300 3,581
41,419 44,952 40,107 43,528 37,945 41,182
18,837 20,444 17,632 19,136 17,166 18,630
1,428 1,550 1,391 1,510 1,329 1,442
2,493 2,706 2,393 2,597 2,093 2,272
2,194 2,381 2,016 2,188 1,791 1,944
660 716 691 750 609 661
2,137 2,319 2,265 2,458 2,169 2,354
2,369 2,571 2,482 2,694 2,385 2,588
30,118 32,687 28,870 31,333 27,542 29,891
11,301 12,265 11,237 12,196 10,403 11,290
2,064 2,240 2,350 2,550 4,168 4,524
9,237 10,025 8,887 9,645 6,235 6,767
— — 4 ) (19) (21)

$ 9,237 10,025 $ 8,883 9,641 $ 6,216 6,746
195 212 135 147 105 114
$ 9,042 9,813 $ 8,748 9,494 $ 6,111 6,632
530 575 526 571 523 568
$ 8,512 9,238 $ 8,222 8,923 $ 5,588 6,065

162/420
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$ 526 571 $ 481 522 $ 315 342
— — — — 001) (1)
$ 526 571 $ 481 522 $ 314 341
$ 519 563 $ 473 513 $ 308 334
— — — — 001 (1)
$ 519 563 $ 473 513 $ 307 333

1,617 1,708 1,780

1,640 1,738 1,821
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2019 2018 2017

$ 9237 10,025 $ 8,883 9,641 $ 6,216 6,746

$ 3 3 $ (90) (98) $ 251 272
1,137 1234  (272)  (295) 41 44
(66) (72) 137 149 (117)  (127)

(1,639) (L,779) 1517 1646  (588)  (638)
$ (565) (613) $ 1292 1402 $ (413) (449
$ 8672 9412  $ 10175 11,043 $ 5803 6,298
195 212 135 147 105 114

(69) (75) 87 94 4 4

$ 8546 9,275 $ 9953 10,802 $ 5694 6,180

164/420
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 4,293 4,659 $ 30,541 33,146
45,366 49,236 21,299 23,116
32,512 35,285 35,356 38,372
(128,386

120,437 ) 297,110 322,453 266,299 289,014

62,223 61,061
105,725 114,743 91,832 99,665
88,224 95,750 98,522 106,926
106,549 115,638 116,313 126,234
55,646 60,393 53,298 57,844

(349 238
) 118,060 128,131 99,815 108,329
12,577 13,650 15,764 17,109
7,143 7,752 6,688 7,258
3,204 2,877

) 2,107 2,287 2,163 2,348
20,117 21,833 15,641 16,975
$ 895,429 971,809  $ 853,531 926,337

165/420



2,099 442
733 812
7,809 5,245
64,461 51,184
¢ 13 )
0.01
3,500,000,000
2,038,893,979
1,593,973,680
1,699,828,943
« )
— 0.01

(444,920,299 339,065,036 )

EDINETOOOO

DDDDDDDDDD(E05871)
OOooOoOoOoo
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 190,356 206,503  $ 187,820 203,841
133,356 144,731 126,747 137,559
54,200 58,823 49,759 54,003
8,506 9,232 11,908 12,924
14,698 15,952 9,466 10,273
197,834 214,709 179,559 194,875
21,155 22,960 17,204 18,672
192,627 209,058 189,662 205,840
812,732 882,058 772,125 837,987
8,520 9,247 8,520 9,247
20 22 20 22
23,935 25.977 23,794 25.824
70,589 76,610 64,175 69,649
2,918 3,167 2,836 3,078
2788)  (3026) (2292)  (2.488)
(18727) (20324) (13.971) (15,163)
2918)  (3167)  (2836)  (3,078)
81,549 88,505 80,246 87,001
1,148 1,246 1,160 1,259
82.697 89,751 81,406 88,350
$ 895,429 971,809  $ 853,531 926,337

166/420
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2019 2018 2017

$ 8520 9247 $852 9247 $752 8161
500 543 — _ 1,000 1,085
(500) (543)  — — — —

8520 9247 8520 9247 8520 97247

20 22 20 22 20 22

23,794 25,824 23545 25553 23271 25,256

2 _ _ — 45 49
131 142 249 270 306 332
(©) (©) — — (6) (7)
13 14 — — (71) (77)

23,935 25977 23,794 25824 23545 25,553

64,175 69,649 57,577 62,488 53679 58258
263 68 306 332 (35) (38)

9042 9813 8748 9494 6111 6,632
(524) (569)  (526) (571)  (523) (5698
(2161) (2,345) (1,930) (2,095 (1,655) (1,796)
(6) (7) — — — —
70580 76,610 64,175 69,649 57577 62,488

2836 3078 2907 3155 2,851 3,004
82 89 (71) (77) 56 61
2018 3167 2,83 3078 2907 3155

(2292) (2488) (3060) (3,321 (2,643) (2,868
_ — (437) 474  — —

(496) (538) 1,205 1,308  (417)  (453)
(2,788)  (3,026) (2292) (2488) (3,060) (3,321)

(13,971) (15163) (9,211) (9,997) (5,797)  (6,291)
1,198 1,300 806 875 878 953

167/420
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OooooOodd
(5954) (6462) (5566) (6,041 (4,292)  (4,658)
(18,727) (20,324) (13971) (15163) (9,211)  (9,997)
(2,836) (3078) (2907) (3,155) (2,851)  (3,094)
(82) (89) 71 77 (56) (61)
(2918) (3,167) (2,836) (3078) (2,907) (3,155)

168/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
2019 2018 2017
1,160 1,259 1,075 1,167 1,127 1,223
195 212 135 147 105 114
(69) (75) 87 94 4 4
(138) (150) 137) (149) (161) (175)
1,148 1,246 1,160 1,259 1,075 1,167
$ 82,697 89,751  $ 81,406 88,350  $ 78,466 85,159
16
16
16
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OooooOodd
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 9,237 10,025 $ 8,883 9,641 $ 6,216 6,746
165 179 449 487 2,747 2,981
1,153 1,251 920 998 1,026 1,114
2,643 2,868 1,844 2,001 1,753 1,903
162 176 (15) (16) 29 31
(195) (212) 199 216 153 166
(
) (13,668) (14,834) 23,732 25,756 (27,588) (29,941)
9,764 10,597 7,697 8,354 1,226 1,331
(3,402) (3,692) (1,684) (1,828) (2,252) (2,444)
233 253 (728) (790) (9,315) (10,110)
19,942 21,643 (13,063)  (14,177) 2,007 2,178
10,298 11,176 (14,264)  (15,481) 17,697 19,207
4,441 4,820 (6,665) (7.234) 1,796 1,949
«C )
40,773 44,251 7,305 7,928 (4,505) (4,889)
(1,826) (1,982) (1,865) (2,024) (1,629) (1,768)
(17,359) (18,840) (8,794) (9,544) (12,125) (13,159)
(42,586) (46,219)  (27,800)  (30,171) (23,962) (26,006)
17,151 18,614 3,208 3,482 18,131 19,678
12,012 13,037 12,668 13,749 7,445 8,080
(953) (1,034) (298) (323) (251) 272)
« )
(33,561) (36,424)  (22,881)  (24,833) (12,391) (13,448)

170/420



EDINETOOOO

00000000 00(ES871)
ooooood
2019 2018 2017
3,695 4,010 (1,226) (1,331) (1,573) (1,707)
2,513 2,727 28,384 30,805 3,573 3,878
497 539 — — 994 1,079
30,605 33,216 40,059 43,476 55,416 60,143

(40,548) (44,007)  (34,781) (37,748) (35,825) (38,881)

(5,954) (6,462) (5,566) (6,041) (4,292) (4,658)
(2.627) (2,851) (2,375) (2,578) (2,085) (2,263)
(147) (160) (290) (315) 53 58
(11,966) (12,987) 24,205 26,270 16,261 17,648
(271) (294) (1,828) (1,984) 3,670 3,983
(5,025) (5,454) 6,801 7,381 3,035 3,294
87,196 94,634 80,395 87,253 77,360 83,959

$ 82,171 89,180 $ 87,196 94,634 $ 80,395 87,253
$ 4,293 4,659 $ 30,541 33,146  $ 24,816 26,933
45,366 49,236 21,299 23,116 21,348 23,169
32,512 35,285 35,356 38,372 34,231 37,151

$ 82,171 89,180 $ 87,196 94,634 $ 80,395 87,253
$ 12,511 13,578 $ 9,977 10,828 $ 5,377 5,836
1,908 2,071 1,377 1,494 1,390 1,509
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10-K
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GAAP
VIE
VIE
VIE
MS&Co. ) LLC( MSSB
( MSIP
MUFG ( MSMS )
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VIE

10

LLC (
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21



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

176/420



EDINETOOOO

00000000 00(ES871)
ooooood
CDS
CDS
CDS CDS
( FVA )

FVA FVA

1771420



80

125
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0Cl1

AOCI

AOCI

oTTI
AOCI
AOCI
oTTI

oTTI

oTTI
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(Special mention) (Substandard) (Doubtful) Loss
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(
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0000000000(E05871)
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39
25
15
15 29
10
50
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PSU

EPS

VWAP
PSU
VWAP
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2019

2018

63

40
2019 12 31

ASU 2018-16

2017
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2019

16

16
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AOCI

10
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OooooOodd
( )
2019 12 31
1
$ 36,866 $ 28,992 $ 22 $ - $ 65,880
23,402 4,347 5 - 27,754
_ 2,790 1 - 2,791
MABS - 1,690 438 - 2,128
" - 6,253 5,073 - 11,326
- 22,124 1,396 - 23,520
3 123,942 652 97 - 124,691
1,265 182,977 1,239 - 185,481
— 6,658 654 - 7,312
15 64,260 145 - 64,420
1,219 48,927 922 - 51,068
1,079 7,255 2,924 - 11,258
1 (2,794) (235,947) (993) (47,804) (287,538)
784 74,130 4,891 (47,804) 32,001
4 481 252 858 - 1,591
- 1,907 - - 1,907
4 185,475 143,137 12,781 (47,804) 293,589
32,902 29,321 - - 62,223
- 4 - - 4
$ 218,377 $ 172,462 $ 12,781 $ (47,804) $ 355,816

188/420
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OooooOodd
( )
2019 12 31
1

$ _ $ 1,920 $ 179 $ - $ 2,099
11,191 34 - - 11,225
21,837 1,332 1 - 23,170
_ 7,410 - - 7,410
63,002 79 36 - 63,117
1,144 171,025 462 - 172,631
- 7,391 530 - 7,921
6 67,473 176 - 67,655
1,200 49,062 2,606 - 52,868
1,194 7,118 1,312 - 9,624

(2,794) (235,947) (993) (42,531) (282,265)
750 66,122 4,093 (42,531) 28,434
96,780 74,977 4,130 (42,531) 133,356
— 733 — — 733
- 7,700 109 - 7,809
- 60,373 4,088 - 64,461
$ 96,780 $ 145,703 $ 8,506 $ (42,531)  $ 208,458

189/420
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OooooOodd
( )
2018 12 31
1
$ 38,767 $ 29,59 $ 54 $ - $ 68,415
28,395 5,529 17 - 33,941
- 3,161 148 - 3,309
MABS - 2,154 354 - 2,508
X - 4,055 6,870 - 10,925
- 18,129 1,076 - 19,205
3 93,626 522 95 - 94,243
2,793 155,027 1,045 - 158,865
- 5,707 421 - 6,128
62 63,023 161 - 63,246
1,256 45,596 1,022 - 47,874
963 8,517 2,992 - 12,472
1 (4,151) (210,190) (896) (44,175) (259,412)
923 67,680 4,745 (44,175) 29,173
4 412 293 757 - 1,462
- 536 - - 536
4 162,123 131,653 14,116 (44,175) 263,717
36,399 24,662 - - 61,061
- 5 - . 5
$ 198,522 $ 156,320 $ 14,116 $ (44,175)  $ 324,783

190/420
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2018 12 31
1
$ - $ 415 $ 27 $ - $ a4
11,272 543 - - 11,815
21,391 1,454 - - 22,845
- 8,550 1 - 8,551
3 56,064 199 15 - 56,278
2,927 142,746 427 - 146,100
_ 5,772 381 - 6,153
41 63,379 86 - 63,506
1,042 47,091 2,507 - 50,640
1,228 6,872 940 - 9,040
1 (4,151) (210,190) (896) (32,944) (248,181)
1,087 55,670 3,445 (32,944) 27,258
89,814 66,416 3,461 (32,944) 126,747
_ 812 - — 812
- 5,037 208 - 5,245
- 47,378 3,806 - 51,184
$ 89,814 $ 120,058 $ 7,502 $ (32,944)  $ 184,430
MABS
1.
2.
3.
4. NAV
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 8,036 $ 9,171
1,192 1,153
2,098 601
$ 11,326 $ 10,925

191/420



2019 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

( )
2018 12 31

365

$ 615

(To-be-announced)

CMO

TBA

CMO

CDS
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RMBS CMBS -
ABS MABS
RMBS
FICO
RMBS CMBS
CDS
CDS
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CDS

CDS

( CDo )
CDO cDS

CLN

CDO
CLN

CDO

CDO

NAV
NAV

194/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

CDS

CDS

CDS
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NAV

CMBS ABS

CMo

FDIC

FDIC
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01S
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( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 54 $ - $ 74
« D 4 1 (€))
17 53 _
(54) - (240)
1 - 167
$ 22 $ 54 $ -
C ) $ 4 $ 1 $ _
$ 17 $ 1 $ 6
« ®) - _
7 41 -
® (26) ®)
(10) 1 _
$ 5 $ 17 $ 1
C ) $ ®3) $ - $ -
$ 148 $ 8 $ 250
« ) - - 3
- 147 6
147) © (83)
- 2 (168)
$ 1 $ 148 $ 8
C ) $ - $ - $ -
MABS
$ 354 $ 423 $ 217
« ) (16) 82 47
132 177 289
175) (338) (158)
(44 an 37
187 27 65
$ 438 $ 354 $ 423
C ) $ (57) $ ©)) $ ©)
$ 6,870 $ 5,945 $ 5,122
« ) 38 (100) 182
2,337 5,746 3,616
(1,268) (2.529) (1,561)
(2,291) (2,281) (1,463)
(613) 89 49
$ 5,073 $ 6,870 $ 5,945
C ) $ © $ 137) $ 131

198/420
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
2019 2018 2017
1,076 $ 701 $ 475
418 106 82
650 734 487
(729) (251) (420)
) (€XH) ©
(12) (203) 86
1,396 $ 1,076 $ 701
361 $ 70 $ 23
95 $ 166 $ 446
®) 29 (54)
32 13 173
(271) (161) (632)
249 48 233
97 $ 95 $ 166
1 $ 17 $ (6)
757 $ 1,020 $ 958
78 (25) 9%
40 149 102
(41) (212) 7
- - (78)
24 (175) (€H)
$ 858 $ 757 $ 1,020
$ 67 $ @n $ 88
$ 618 $ 1,218 $ 420
17 111 322
98 63 29
(16) (19) (18)
1 172) 608
59 (583) (143)
$ 777 $ 618 $ 1,218
$ 87 $ 140 $ 341
$ 40 $ 41 $ (373)
24) 33 (43)
144 13 _
(190) (95) @
111 56 455
43 ®) 3
$ 124 $ 40 $ 41
$ @an $ 23 $ (18)

199/420
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( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 75 $ 112) $ (43)
(295) 179 (108)
2 3 _
- @ @
7 2 31
180 4 9
$ (31) $ 75 $ (112)
$ 187) $ 118 $ (89)
$  (1,485) $ 1,208 $ 184
(260) 305 136
155 122 988
(643) (1,179) (524)
242 314 396
307 (2,255) 28
$  (1,684) $  (1,485) $ 1,208
$ (194) $ 211 $ 159
$ 2,052 $ 1,446 $ 1,600
73 500 515
152 34 24
92) (18) (67
(611) (81) (343)
38 171 (293)
$ 1,612 $ 2,052 $ 1,446
$ (113) $ 272 $ 20
$ 27 $ 47 $ 42
20 @ 3
101 9 12
(15) @ ®
46 (26) ©)
$ 179 $ 27 $ 47
$ 20 $ @ $ 3
$ 16 $ 25 $ 71
21 ®) @
(65) (18) (139)
38 9 20
69 6 74
$ 37 $ 16 $ 25
$ 1) $ @ $ -

200/420
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VIE
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2019 2018 2017

$ - $ 150 $ 149
_ - 1
- (150) -
$ - $ — $ 150
$ - $ - $ _
$ 208 $ 239 $ 434
5 (39) 35
- 8 64

® an (251)

(96) 17 (43)
$ 109 $ 208 $ 239
$ 5 $ (39) $ 28
$ 3,806 $ 2,984 $ 2,014
728 (385) 196
1,181 1,554 1,968

(950) 274) (424)

(677) (73) (770)
$ 4,088 $ 3,806 $ 2,984
$ 600 $ (379) $ 173
182 (184) 76

(
(
)
C )
VIE

201/420
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1
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 22 $ 54
100 104
N/M (100 )
$ 1 $ 148
N/M 94 100 (96 )
MABS $ 438 $ 354
0 96 47 ) 0 97 (38 )
$ 5,073 $ 6,870
1 9 @) 1 7 @)
15 80 (28 ) 19 5 (28 )
9 39bps(19bps) 14 90bps(36bps)
69 100 (93 ) 60 101 (95 )
$ 1,396 $ 1,076
11 108 (84 ) 12 100 (72 )
35 20
N/M 15 21 (16 )
21 24 78 (50 )
$ 97 $ 95
100 100
$ 858 $ 757
8 17 (15 ) 9 15 (10 )
7 16 (11 ) 7 10 (10 )
EBITDA 7 24 (11 ) 6 24 (12 )

75 100 (99 )

75 100 (9 )

$ 777

24 156 (63 /59 )

47 90 (72 /72 )

4 15 (13 /14 )

24 63 (44 /41 )
1

$ 618

22 95 (48 /51 )

N/M
N/M

23 65 (44 /40 )

1

202/420
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)
1
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 124 $ 40
6 8 9 © )
0 104 (45 75 (26 )

9 469bps(81lbps)
47 117bps(84bps)

29 62 (36 )

246  499bps(380bps)
47 98bps(93bps)

36 69 (44 )

$ (@3

32 56 (46 /46 )
24 156 (63 /59 )
10 11 (10 /10 )
85 95 (94 /95 )

$ 75

53 56 (55 /55 )
22 95 (48 /51 )
N/M
90 95 (93 /95 )

$ (1,684)
9 90 (36
2 0 (1
5 98 (70

-79 60 (-37 )
“11 44 (18 /16 )

$ (1,485)

17 63 (38 )
2 0 (1)
5 9 (71 )
-60 55 (-26 )
-7 45 (15 /12 )

$ 1,612

$3  $182($28)/Mih
7 183 (18 )

$ 2,052

$3  $185($31)/Mih
7 187 (17 )

43 99 (93 ) 5 99 (93 )
$ 179 $ 27

16 37 (20 ) N/M
$ 109 $ 208

111 124bps(117bps)

N/M
N/M

103 193bps(148bps)

-1
10 40 (25 )

203/420
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1

2019 12 31

2018 12 31

$ 4,088

5 44 (21 )
2 0 ()

38 94 (78 )
75 26 (<25 )
N/M
=26 10 (-7 /-7 )

$ 3,806

5 35 (2 )
2 0 ()

45 98 (85 )
=75 50 (-27 )
58 97 (85 /91 )
28 58 (44 /44 )

$ 1,500

69 446bps(225bps)
287 318bps(297bps)

$ 1,380

97 434bps(181bps)
223 313bps(247bps)

IR
FX
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EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA
LIBOR
oIS
( WACC ) WACC

WACC
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( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 2,078 $ 450 $ 1,374 $ 316
1,349 150 1,105 161
94 4 103 4
$ 3,521 $ 604 $ 2,582 $ 481
NAV
21

207/420
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( )
2019 12 31
$ 1,205 $ 1,041
842 202
31 106
$ 2,078 $ 1,349
( )
2019 12 31
1
$ 1,543 $ 1,500 $ 3,043
- 113 113
$ 1,543 $ 1,613 $ 3,156
$ 132 $ 69 $ 201
$ 132 $ 69 $ 201
( )
2018 12 31
1
$ 2,307 $ 1,380 $ 3,687
14 100 114
$ 2,321 $ 1,480 $ 3,801
$ 292 $ 65 $ 357
$ 292 $ 65 $ 357

208/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

OooooOodd
( )

2019 2018 2017

$ 18 $ (68) $ 18
(56) (56) (66)
22) (46) (25)
$ (60) $ (170) $ (73)
$ 87 $ (48) $ 75
$ 87 $ (48) $ 75

CDS

209/420



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2019 12 31

$ 4,293 $ 4,293 $ - $ - $ 4,293
45,366 45,366 - - 45,366
32,512 32,512 - - 32,512
43,502 30,661 12,683 789 44,133
88,220 - 86,794 1,442 88,236
106,549 - 106,551 - 106,551
51,134 - 48,215 2,872 51,087
130,637 - 22,293 108,059 130,352
495 — 495 - 495
$ 188,257 $ — $ 188,639 $ - $ 188,639
53,467 - 53,486 - 53,486
8,506 - 8,506 - 8,506
6,889 - 6,800 92 6,892
195,035 - 195,035 - 195,035
128,166 - 133,563 10 133,573

$ 119,004 $ — $ 748 $ 338 $ 1,086

210/420



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2018 12 31
$ 30,541 $ 30,541 $ - $ - $ 30,541
21,299 21,299 - - 21,299
35,356 35,356 - - 35,356
30,771 17,473 12,018 474 29,965
98,522 - 97,611 866 98,477
116,313 - 116,312 - 116,312
47,972 - 44,620 3,219 47,839
115,579 - 25,604 90,121 115,725
461 - 461 - 461
$ 187,378 $ - $ 187,372 $ - $ 187,372
48,947 - 48,385 525 48,910
11,908 - 11,906 - 11,906
4,221 - 3,233 994 4,227
176,561 - 176,561 - 176,561
138,478 - 140,085 30 140,115
$ 104,844 $ - $ 1,249 $ 321 $ 1,570

211/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 30,214 $ 24,494
27,298 22,343
4,501 2.735
1,246 856
1,202 756
$ 64,461 $ 51,184
( )
2019 2018 2017
$  (6,932) $ 2,679 $ (4,507)
375 321 443
$  (7,307) $ 2,358 $ (4,950)

212/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
ocl
2019
$ (1) $ (2,140)
1 223 -
@ -
— (30)
2018
$ (24) $ 1,962
1 165 -
(©) -
(32) 41
2017
$ (12) $  (903)
1 159 -
@ -
— )
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
AQCI DVA $ (1,998) $ 172
1.
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 13,037 $ 13,004
2 10,849 10,831
(1,665) 2,657
3.

VIE

213/420



90

214/420

EDINETOOOO

000000000 m0(eos871)
ooooooo
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 1,100 $ 1,497
330 $ 812




EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
2019 12 31
( )

$ 673 $ - $ - $ 673
41 1 - 42
714 1 - 715
179,450 4,839 519 184,808
4,895 2,417 - 7,312
62,957 1,399 22 64,378
27,621 - 23,447 51,068
9,306 - 1,952 11,258
284,229 8,655 25,940 318,824

$ 284,943 $ 8,656 $ 25,940 $ 319,539

(213,710) (7.294) (24,037) (245,041)
(41,222) (1,275) - (42,497)
$ 30,011 $ 87 $ 1,903 $ 32,001
1
(15,596) - - (15,596)
(46) - — (46)
$ 14,369 $ 87 $ 1,903 $ 16,359
C ) $ 1,900

215/420



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )

$ 1 $ - $ - $ 1
121 38 - 159
122 38 - 160
168,597 3,597 436 172,630
4,798 3,123 - 7,921
65,965 1,492 39 67,496
30,135 - 22,733 52,868
7,713 - 1,911 9,624
277,208 8,212 25,119 310,539

$ 277,330 $ 8,250 $ 25,119 $ 310,699

(213,710) (7.,294) (24,037)  (245,041)
(36,392) (832) - (37,224)

$ 27,228 $ 124 $ 1,082 $ 28,434

(7,747) _ (287) (8,034)
14) - - 14

$ 19,467 $ 124 $ 795 $ 20,386

$ 3,680

216/420



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
2018 12 31
( )

$ 512 $ 1 $ - $ 513
27 8 - 35
539 9 - 548
153,768 3,887 697 158,352
4,630 1,498 - 6,128
61,846 1,310 55 63,211
24,590 - 23,284 47,874
10,538 - 1,934 12,472
255,372 6,695 25,970 288,037

$ 255,911 $ 6,704 $ 25,970 $ 288,585

(190,220) (5,260) (24,548)  (220,028)
(38,204) (1,180) - (39,384)
$ 27,487 $ 264 $ 1,422 29,173
1
(12,467) - - (12,467)
(31) - - (€H)

$ 14,989 $ 264 $ 1,422 $ 16,675

«C ) $ 2,206

217/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )

$ 176 $ _ $ - $ 176
62 24 - 86
238 24 _ 262
142,592 2,669 663 145,924
4,545 1,608 - 6,153
62,099 1,302 19 63,420
27,119 - 23,521 50,640
6,983 _ 2,057 9,040
243,338 5,579 26,260 275,177

$ 243,576 $ 5,603 $ 26,260 $ 275,439

(190, 220) (5.260) (24,548)  (220,028)
(27,860) (293) - (28,153)

$ 25,496  $ 50 $ 1,712 $ 27,258
(4,709) - (766) (5.475)

(53) (1) — (54)

$ 20,734  $ 49 $ 946 $ 21,729
$ 4,773

218/420



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
2019 12 31
( )
$ 14 $ 94 $ - $ 108
2 - - 2
16 94 - 110
4,230 7,398 732 12,360
136 79 - 215
2,667 91 10 2,768
429 - 419 848
99 - 61 160
7,561 7,568 1,222 16,351
$ 7,577 $ 7,662 $ 1,222 $ 16,461
( )
$ - $ 71 $ - $ 71
2 - 11
73 - 82
4,185 6,866 666 11,717
153 84 - 237
2,841 91 14 2,946
455 - 515 970
85 - 61 146
7,719 7,041 1,256 16,016
$ 7,728 $ 7,114 $ 1,256 $ 16,098

219/420



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
2018 12 31
( )
$ 15 $ 52 $ - $ 67
5 1 - 6
20 53 - 73
4,807 6,708 1,157 12,672
162 74 - 236
2,436 118 14 2,568
373 - 371 744
97 - 67 164
7,875 6,900 1,609 16,384
$ 7,8% $ 6,953 $ 1,609 $ 16,457
( )
$ 2 $ 107 $ - $ 109
1 - 6
108 - 115
4,946 5,735 781 11,462
162 73 - 235
2,451 114 17 2,582
389 - 602 991
72 - 65 137
8,020 5,922 1,465 15,407
$ 8,027 $ 6,030 $ 1,465 $ 15,522

220/420



0Cl

2018
2019

A W N e

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ (10) $ [0 $ -
10 _
$ 4,212 $ (1,529) $ (1,591)
7 _
(4,288) 1,393
$ 14 $ $  (365)
136 (20)
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 917 $ 201
$ 14 $ 4
$ 5,435 $ -
$ ) $ -
$ 102,456 $ 102,899
$ 2,593 $ (1,689)
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 21,620 $ 16,403
17,392 11,981
( )
2019 12 31
$ 254
328
1 $ 498

221/420




EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
1.
S&P
1
( )
2019 12 31
CDS
$ 16 $ 17 $ 33 $ $ 75
9 9 16 35
$ 25 $ 26 $ 49 $ 10 $ 110
CDS
$ $ 7 $ 46 $ 11 $ 68
7 17 10 38
$ 11 $ 11 $ 63 $ 21 $ 106
CDS $ 36 $ 37 $ 112 $ 31 $ 216
$ 36 $ 37 $ 112 $ 31 $ 216
CDS

$ 187

2221420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

OooooOodd
( )

2018 12 31
CDS
22 24 $ 19 $ $ 73
10 11 9 31
32 35 $ 28 $ 9 $ 104
CDS
10 $ 61 $ 7 $ 83
6 13 13 37
10 16 74 20 120
cDS 42 51 102 29 224
42 51 $ 102 $ 29 $ 224
CDS
$ 210
)1
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
cDS
1,057 $ 118
(540) (403)
517 $ (285)
cDS
1,052 $ 314
134 (1,413)
1,186 $ (1,099)
CDS 1,703 $ (1,384)
an 4
1,686 $ (1,398)
1.

223/420



CDS

CDS

CDS  CDS

cDS

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 118 $ 116
103 117
15 14
$ 236 $ 247
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ (723) $ 277
(1,139) 1,333
(450) (251)
$ (2.312) $ 1,359
CDS
CDS
CDS
CDS CDS

2241420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

CDS

CLN CDO CLN CDO

225/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

2019 12 31

$ 32,465 $ 224 $ 111 $ 32,578

1 20,725 249 100 20,874
53,190 473 211 53,452

4,810 55 57 4,808

1,891 17 1 1,907

481 22 - 503

FFELP 2 1,580 1 28 1,553
8,762 95 86 8,771

61,952 568 297 62,223

30,145 568 52 30,661

1 12,589 151 57 12,683
42,734 719 109 43,344

768 22 1 789

43,502 741 110 44,133

$ 105,454 $ 1,309 $ 407 $ 106,356

226/420



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2018 12 31
$ 36,268 $ 40 $ 656 $ 35,652
! 20,740 10 497 20,253
57,008 50 1,153 55,905
1,054 - 62 992
461 - 14 447
1,585 - 32 1,553
200 2 - 202
FFELP 2 1,967 10 15 1,962
5,267 12 123 5,156
62,275 62 1,276 61,061
17,832 44 403 17,473
1 12,456 8 446 12,018
30,288 52 849 29,491
483 - 9 474
30,771 52 858 29,965

$ 93,046 $ 114 $ 2,134 $ 91,026

95

2271420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

2019 12 31

12 12

$ 4,793 $ 28 $ 7,904 $ 83 $ 12,697 $ 111

2,641 20 7,697 80 10,338 100
7,434 48 15,601 163 23,035 211
2,294 26 681 31 2,975 57
194 1 44 _ 238 1
FFELP 91 _ 1,165 28 1,256 28
2,579 27 1,890 59 4,469 86
10,013 75 17,491 222 27,504 297
6,042 52 651 _ 6,693 52
2,524 18 2,420 39 4,944 57
8,566 70 3,071 39 11,637 109
167 1 65 _ 232 1
8,733 71 3,136 39 11,869 110

$ 18,746 $ 146 $ 20,627 $ 261 $ 39,373 $ 407

228/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

2018 12 31

12 12

$ 19,937 $ 541 $ 5,994 $ 115 $ 25,931 $ 656

12,904 383 4,142 114 17,046 497
32.841 924 10,136 229 42,977 1,153
808 62 _ _ 808 62
_ _ 446 14 446 14
470 7 1,010 25 1,480 32
FFELP 1,366 15 _ _ 1,366 15
2,644 84 1,456 39 4,100 123
35,485 1,008 11,592 268 47,077 1,276
_ _ 11,161 403 11,161 403
410 1 10,004 445 10,414 446
410 1 21,165 848 21,575 849
206 1 216 8 422 9
616 2 21,381 856 21,997 858
$36,100 $ 1,000  $32,973 $ 1,124  $69,074 $ 2,134
VIE
FFELP 14

229/420



10

10
10

10
10

10

10
10

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

2019 12 31 )
$ 2,293 $ 2,302 2.2
25,919 26,037 1.8
4,253 4,239 1.7
32,465 32,578
310 310 1.0
362 359 1.4
1,380 1,373 1.8
18,673 18,832 2.4
20,725 20,874
53,190 53,452 2.0
606 603 1.8
3,280 3,305 2.5
924 900 2.0
4,810 4,808
43 43 1.7
1,448 1,462 2.6
400 402 2.9
1,891 1,907
36 37 3.1
71 72 2.2
374 394 4.7
481 503

230/420

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2019 12 31
FFELP

$ 71 $ 69 0.8

10 377 367 0.8

10 1,132 1,117 1.2
1,580 1,553

8,762 8,771 2.2

61,952 62,223 2.0

2,436 2,452 2.5

18,026 18,254 2.1

10 8,600 8,842 2.2

10 1,083 1,113 2.5
30,145 30,661

10 46 45 1.8

10 12,543 12,638 2.6
12,589 12,683

42,734 43,344 2.3

91 91 4.9

125 125 5.5

10 514 532 5.3

10 38 41 2.1

768 789 4.0

43,502 44,133 2.3

$ 105,454 $ 106,356 2.2

231/420



232/420

EDINETOOOO

D000000000(ESS7L)
Doooooo
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 113 $ 12 $ 46
(10) 4) (11)
$ 103 $ 8 $ 35




EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2019 12 31
1
$ 247,545 $ (159,321) $ 88,224 $ (85,200) $ 3,024
109,528 (2,979) 106,549 (101,850) 4,699
$ 213,519 $ (159,319) $ 54,200 $ (44,549) $ 9,651
11,487 (2,981) 8,506 (8,324) 182
« D

$ 2,255
1,181
8,033
101

( )

2018 12 31
1
$ 262,976 $ (164,454) $ 98,522 $ (95,610) $ 2,012
134,711 (18,398) 116,313 (112,551) 3,762
$ 214,213 $ (164,454) $ 49,759 $ (41,095) $ 8,664
30,306 (18,398) 11,908 (11,677) 231
« D

$ 2,579

724

6,762

191

233/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
( )
2019 12 31
30 30 90 90
67,158 $ 81,300 $ 26,904 $ 38,157 $ 213,519
2,378 3,286 516 5,307 11,487
69,536 $ 84,586 $ 27,420 $ 43,464 $ 225,006
23,877 - - - 23,877
93,413 $ 84,586 $ 27,420 $ 43,464 $ 248,883
( )
2018 12 31
30 30 90 90
56,503 $ 93,427 $ 35,602 $ 28,591 $ 214,213
18,397 3,609 1,985 6,315 30,306
74,900 $ 97,036 $ 37,677 $ 34,906 $ 244,519
17,594 - - - 17,594
92,494 $ 97,036 $ 37,677 $ 34,906 $ 262,113

234/420



EDINETOOOO

000000000 0(E05871)
oooooog
)

( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 68,895 $ 68,487
905 925
109,414 120,432
2,218 3,017
6,066 8,719
25,563 12,079
458 554
$ 213,519 $ 214,213
$ 3,026 $ 19,021
8,422 10,800
39 485
$ 11,487 $ 30,306
$ 225,006 $ 244,519
$ 23,873 $ 17,594
4 _
$ 23,877 $ 17,594
$ 248,883 $ 262,113
( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 41,201 $ 39,430
750 —
$ 41,951 $ 39,430

235/420



€Y)

EDINETOOOO

2018 12

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 679,280 $ 639,610
@ 539,412 487,983
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 32,512 $ 35,356
25,061 26,877
$ 57,573 $ 62,233
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
10 12
12 17
2019 12 31
31

236/420



12

14

VIE

ELN

237/420

EDINETOOOO

D000000000(ESS7L)
Doooooo
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 31,916 $ 26,225




EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
FICO
( )
2019 12 31
$ 48,756 $ 10,515 $ 59,271
31,610 - 31,610
30,184 13 30,197
! 7,859 2,049 9,908
118,409 12,577 130,986
(349) - (349)
$ 118,060 $ 12,577 $ 130,637
$ 22,716
107,921
21,617

238/420



1.

2019

Pass) Pass)

Special Mention)

Substandard

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2018 12 31

$ 36,909 $ 13,886 $ 50,795
27,868 - 27,868
27,466 22 27,488
7,810 1,856 9,666
100,053 15,764 115,817
(238) - (238)
$ 99,815 $ 15,764 $ 115,579
$ 15,632
99,947
17,568

13

239/420



EDINETOOOO

000000000 O(ES871)
ooooooo
Doubtful
Loss
( E
)
2019 12 31
47,681 $ 31,605 $ 30,060 7,664 $ 117,010
464 — 28 3 495
605 5 96 192 898
6 — - - 6
48,756 $ 31,610 $ 30,184 7,859 $ 118,409
)
2018 12 31
36,217 $ 27,863 $ 27,387 7,378 $ 98,845
492 5 — 312 809
200 — 79 120 399
36,909 $ 27,868 $ 27,466 7,810 $ 100,053
1. 2019 12 31 2018 12 31

240/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
( )
2019 12 31
$ 268 $ - $ - $ 85 $ 353
1 32 5 87 — 124
$ 300 $ 5 $ 87 $ 85 $ 477
309 5 90 85 489
$ 4 $ - $ — $ 14 $ 18
! 32 — — — 32
$ 36 $ - $ — $ 14 $ 50
( )
2018 12 31
$ 24 $ - $ - $ - $ 24
1 32 - 69 — 101
$ 56 $ - $ 69 $ — $ 125
63 — 70 — 133
$ 19 $ - $ - $ - $ 19
1 34 — — — 34
$ 53 $ - $ - $ - $ 53
1. 2019 12 31 2018 12 31
( )
2019 12 31
EMEA
$ 392 $ 85 $ — $ 477
270 76 3 349
( )
2018 12 31
EMEA
$ 125 $ — $ — $ 125

193 42 3 238

241/420



2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2017 12 31

2018 12 31

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

Ogoooood
( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31

$ 92 $ 38
32 45
16 4
( )
$ 144 $ 20 $ 67 $ 238
_ @ - @
- @ - @
104 7 8 120
™ - - )
$ 24 $ 25 $ 75 $ 349
$ 212 $ 25 $ 73 $ 318
29 - 2 31
( )
$ 126 $ 24 $ 70 $ 224
®) @ - (6)
54 - - 54
49 €)) - 48
29 (©) 5 24)
@ - ® (10)
$ 144 $ 20 $ 67 $ 238
$ 139 $ 20 $ 67 $ 233
5 - - 5




EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
)
2016 12 31 195 $ 20 55 274
(75) - - (75)
1 - - 1
( 4) - - D)
« ) 5 4 13 22
_ _ 2 2
2017 12 31 126 $ 24 70 224
119 $ 24 70 217
7 - - 7
1. 2018 2017
)
2018 12 31 198 $ - 3 203
C ) 38 _ 4 42
O) - - O]
2019 12 31 232 $ - 7 241
230 $ - 7 239
2 - - 2
)
2017 12 31 194 $ - 3 198
C ) 7 - 1 9
©) - (€)) O]
2018 12 31 198 $ - 3 203
193 $ - 3 198
5 - - 5
)
2016 12 31 185 $ - 4 190
C ) 8 - (€)) 7
1 - - 1
2017 12 31 194 $ — 3 198
192 $ — 3 196
2 - - 2

243/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 2,980 $ 3,415
(61) (63)
$ 2,919 $ 3,352
() 4.8 4.3
( )
2017 12 31 1 $ 295 $ 5,533 $ 769 $ 6,597
(21) - - 1)
_ - 112 112
2018 12 31 1 $ 274 $ 5,533 $ 881 $ 6,688
(13) @ - s
2 - 469 - 469
2019 12 31 1 $ 261 $ 6,001 $ 881 $ 7,143
3 $ 673 $ - $ 27 $ 700
1.
2. 2019
2019 2018 2017
2019 2018

2441420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
1
( )
2017 12 31 $ 349 $ 2,092 4 $ 2,445
_ - 66 66
®) - - ®)
(70) (264) (10) (344)
(€)) - - (€©))
2018 12 31 $ 270 $ 1,828 60 $ 2,158
2 3 270 - 273
29 - - 29)
(35) (271) ®) (314)
18 1 - 19
2019 12 31 $ 227 $ 1,828 52 $ 2,107
( )¢t
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 291 $ 71 286 $ 60
4,321 2,703 4,067 2,446
482 327 507 311
217 103 175 60
$ 5,311 $ 3,204 5,035 $ 2,877
$ 307
1. 2018
2. 2019

245/420



10
C
1.
2018 2017
MUNSS
UFJ
( MUMSS
)
( )
60
MUMSS 40

EDINETOOOO

MUFG

246/420

0O0000O0O0O0O0O(E05871)
oooooog
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 2,363 $ 2,432
( )
2019 2018 2017
$  (81) $ 20 $ (39
2019 41
46 53
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 17 $ 105 $ 123
( MUFG ) UFJ
) MUFG ( MSMS
40 MUFG
MSMS 51



2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2471420

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

( )
2019 12 31

$ 3,998
4,778

9.7
3.6

( )
2019 12 31

$ 763
703

646

593

524

2,845

6,074

(1,296)

$ 4,778

2019

$ 670
152

(©)

$ 816

2019

$ 685
514




EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
GAAP
( )
2018 12 31
2019 $ 677
2020 657
2021 602
2022 555
2023 507
2,639
$ 5,637
$ 7
( )
2018 2017
753 $ 704
11
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 149,465 $ 154,897
40,891 32,923
$ 190,356 $ 187,820
FDIC $ 149,966 $ 144,515
FDIC 12 11
( )
2019 12 31
2020 $ 20,481
2021 10,567
2022 3,507
2023 3,231
2024 2,465
640
$ 40,891

248/420




EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2019 12 2018 12
1 1 31 31
12 2 $ 500 $ - $ - $ 2,067 $ 2,567 $ 1,545
2019 $ - $ - $ — $ — $ — $ 24,694
2020 10,909 4,319 14 5,160 20,402 21,280
2021 13,616 7,823 18 4,628 26,085 24,642
2022 6,576 9,508 16 3,788 19,888 16,785
2023 8,632 3,147 14 2,822 14,615 13,938
2024 13,360 2,028 14 5,704 21,106 16,405
52,941 14,436 125 20,462 87,964 70,373
$ 106,034 $ 41,261 $ 201 $ 42,564 $ 190,060 $ 188,117
$ 106,534 $ 41,261 $ 201 $ 44,631 $ 192,627 $ 189,662
3 3.6 2.1 6.6 N/M 3.4 3.5
LIBOR SOFR
G
16
(
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

$ 179,519 $ 178,027

10,541 10,090

$ 190,060 $ 188,117

() 6.9 6.5
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( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 290 $ 520
$ 1,344 $ 1,284
2019 2018
4.5 4.5
2022 2027
2019 2018 2017
12 31 12 31 12 31
! 3.4 3.5 3.3
2.9 3.6 2.5
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( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

$ 7,103 $ 2,036

6,480 6,772

1,115 658

$ 14,698 $ 9,466

( )

2019 12 31
2018 12 31
1

12 $ 2,785 $ 4,318 $ 7,103 $ 2,036
2019 $ - $ - $ - $ 5,900
2020 764 899 1,663 599
2021 698 412 1,110 1
2022 227 - 227 86
2023 - 2,655 2,655 26
2024 - 12 12 12
356 457 813 148

$ 2,045 $ 4,435 $ 6,480 $ 6,772

LIBOR
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VIE

VIE
14

( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

2019 $ - $ 40
2020 208 62
2021 225 29
2022 46 33
2023 334 -
2024 - —
302 494

$ 1,115 $ 658

2019 12 31

$ 23,507 $ 34,542 $ 47,924 $ 5,110 $ 111,083
7,835 28 4 - 7,867
379 378 88 273 1,118
63,313 223 - 11,601 75,137
637 - - - 637

706 275 60 262 1,303

186 2 - 2 190

$ 96,563 $ 35,448 $ 48,076 $ 17,248 $ 197,335

$ 8,003
$ 52,438
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2019 12

31

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

$ 36,334

1,590,947
1,282

76
4,599

59
18,565

$ 37,080

1,240,195
836
82

$ 111,758

393,248

1,386

12

$

30,547
117
699,043

$ 215,719
117
3,923,433

4,201 7,705

— 158
- 4,599
23,196 23,196
67,928 67,928
71 270
— 18,565

254/420
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$ 1,703
an
(45,794)

226

6

(42)
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SPE

SPE

SPE

SPE
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2019 FICC
FICC
FICC
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( )
2019 2018 2017
221 $ 206 $ 342
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OooooOodd
2010 15 CDIB
STACK 2006-1 CDO 275 cDS
CDIB
STACK 2006-1 CDO CDIB  CDS CDO
cDS 228 CDIB
CDIB 12
2011 28
2018 12 21
2019 24 CDIB 2018 12 21
2019 25 2019
2018 12 21
CDIB 2019 12
240
2013
2007-2AX  MSM 2007-2AX
( 650 )
2014 11 24
2019
240 (
)
2014 23 FGIC
ABS 2007-NC4
ABS
876 FGIC

2017 23
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FGIC
FGIC
2015 23
ABS
ABS
( 10.5
2015 12 11
2018 10 19
(
)
2007 2013
2018 26
2018
18/00319

EDINETOOOO

0000000000(E05871)
ooooood
2018 13
2018 12 20
277
2007-NC4
)
2019 17
2019
277
15/3637 15/4353
124 139
18/00318
2019 26
124 139
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VIE
VIE
VIE
CDO
VIE
CLN
VIE
OSF
MABS 1

CLN

VIE

EDINETOOOO

0000000000(E05871)
ooooood
SPE VIE
VIE
CLN
VIE VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
CDO
VIE
VIE
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
VIE VIE VIE VIE
$ 696 $ 391 $ 267 $ -
265 4 59 38
987 66 809 48
$ 1,948 $ 461 $ 1,135 $ 86
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OSF—
1.
VIE
VIE
2.
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VIE
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 315 $ 77
173 171
943 314
18 25
- 18
111 128
388 402
$ 1,948 $ 1,135
$ 422 $ 64
39 22
$ 461 $ 86
$ 192 $ 106
VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
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VIE
( )
2019 12 31
MABS 1 CDO MTOB OSF 2
VIE $ 125,603 $ 2,976 $ 6,965 $ 2,288 $ 51,305
3
$ 16,314 $ 240 $ — $ 1,009 $ 11,977
_ - 4,599 - 2,995
631 - - — 266
$ 16,945 $ 240 $ 4,599 $ 1,009 $ 15,238
$ 16,314 $ 240 $ — $ 1,008 $ 11,977
_ - 6 — 388
$ 16,314 $ 240 $ 6 $ 1,008 $ 12,365
VIE 4 $ 11,453
$ - 8 -3 - 3 ~ S 444
( )
2018 12 31 5
MABS 1 CDO MTOB OSF 2
VIE $ 106,197 $ 10,848 $ 7,014 $ 3,314 $ 38,603
3
$ 15,671 $ 1,169 $ - $ 1,622 $ 7,967
_ _ 4,449 - 1,768
1,073 3 — 235 509
$ 16,744 $ 1,172 $ 4,449 $ 1,857 $ 10,244
$ 15,671 $ 1,169 $ - $ 1,205 $ 7,967
_ — 6 — 87
$ 15,671 $ 1,169 $ 6 $ 1,205 $ 8,054
VIE 4 $ 12,059
$ - 3 - 3 - 3 - $ 185
MTOB—
1.
2.
3.
4. VIE VIE SPE
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5. MABS
VIE 110 VIE 540
VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31 1
$ 30,353 $ 3,993 $ 27,59 $ 4,581

53,892 3,881 55,501 4,327

36,366 6,365 14,969 3,443

4,992 2,075 8,133 3,320

$ 125,603 $ 16,314 $ 106,197 $ 15,671
1. VIE 2018 12 31
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
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VIE
VIE
VIE
CLN
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE
SPE
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CLO CDO

SPE

SPE

ELN
ELN

2019 12 31 2018

SPE

12 31

266/420

SPE

CLO

SPE

ELN
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1
( )
2019 12 31 2
CLN
RML CML o 2
SPE 4 $ 9,850 $ 86,203 $ 19,132 $ 8,410
$ 29 $ 720 $ 2,376 $ 1
17 254 — 92
$ 46 $ 974 $ 2,376 $ 93
$ 6 $ 197 $ 7 $ -
75 51 — _
$ 81 $ 248 $ 77 $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ 339
_ — — 145
( )
2018 12 31
RML ML CLN
¢ CMO 3
SPE 4 $ 14,376 $ 68,593 $ 16,594 $ 14,608
$ 17 $ 483 $ 1,573 $ 3
4 212 — 210
$ 21 $ 695 $ 1,573 $ 213
$ 7 $ 91 $ 102 $ -
28 71 — _
$ 35 $ 162 $ 102 $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ 216
_ — — 178

267/420



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
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( )
2019 12 31
$ 2,401 $ 4 $ 2,405
6 97 103
$ 2,407 $ 101 $ 2,508
$ 278 $ 2 $ 280
68 58 126
$ 346 $ 60 $ 406
$ 337 $ 2 $ 339
144 1 145
( )
2018 12 31
$ 1,580 $ 13 $ 1,593
174 252 426
$ 1,754 $ 265 $ 2,019
$ 193 $ 7 $ 200
83 16 99
$ 276 $ 23 $ 299
$ 121 $ 95 $ 216
175 3 178
RML
CML
1. SPE
SPE
12
2.
2018 12 31
CLN 80
20 119
3. CLO
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( )
2019 2018 2017

1 $ 34,464 $ 23,821 $ 23,939

7,403 2,904 2,337

CLO SPE 12 2 317 191

1. cLo
2.
13
(
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

! $ 38,661 $ 27,121

$ 39,137 $ 26,524

647 164

152 763
1.

15
1956
MSBNA MSPBNA
RWA
Tier 1 Tier 1 Tier 2
2.5 Tier 1

269/420



2018

RWA

RWA

Tier

2019 12 31

Tier

A
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2.5

2019

2018 12 31

EDINETOOOO

0000000 000O(Ess71)
ooOoooOoo
Tier 1
Tier 1
75
RWA
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2019 12 31
1
Tier 1 10.0 $ 64,751 16.4
Tier 1 11.5 73,443 18.6
13.5 82,708 21.0
RWA 394,177
Tier 1 4.0 $ 73,443 8.3
2 889,195
5.0 73,443 6.4
3 1,155,177
( )
2018 12 31
1
Tier 1 8.6 $ 62,086 16.9
Tier 1 10.1 70,619 19.2
12.1 80,052 21.8
RWA 367,309
Tier 1 4.0 $ 70,619 8.4
2 843,074
5.0 70,619 6.5
3 1,092,672
1. 2018
2. Tier 1
3. Tier 1
)
)
)

271/420



0CC
G-SIB

0CC
2019 12 31

MSBNA
Tier 1

Tier 1

Tier 1
Tier 1

Tier 1

Tier 1

0cC

2018 12 31

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

2019 12 31
1
6.5 $ 15,919 18.
8.0 15,919 18.
10.0 16,282 18.
5.0 $ 15,919 11.
6.0 15,919 8.
2018 12 31
1
6.5 $ 15,221 19.
8.0 15,221 19.
10.0 15,484 19.
5.0 $ 15,221 10.
6.0 15,221 8.

2721420
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MSPBNA
( )
2019 12 31
1
Tier 1 6.5 $ 7,962 24.8
Tier 1 8.0 7,962 24.8
10.0 8,016 25.0
Tier 1 5.0 $ 7,962 9.9
6.0 7,962 9.4
( )
2018 12 31
1
Tier 1 6.5 $ 7,183 25.2
Tier 1 8.0 7,183 25.2
10.0 7,229 25.4
Tier 1 5.0 $ 7,183 10.0
6.0 7,183 9.6
1.
MS&Co.
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 13,708 $ 13,797
10,686 11,333
MS&Co. SEC CFTC
MS&Co.
SEC 1934
15¢3-1 E MS&Co.
MS&Co. SEC
2019 12 31 2018 12 31 MS&Co.
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MSSB

MSMS

EDINETOOOO

000000000 m0(eos871)
ooooooo
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 3,387 $ 3,455
3,238 3,313
SEC
MSSB
MSIP
MSMS MSIP
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 33,213 $ 29,222
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18

60

2019

MUFG

MUFG

EDINETOOOO

OO000000000(E5871)
ooooooo
( )
2019 2018
1,700 1,788
(135) (110)
29 22
1,594 1,700
RSU
( )
2019 2018
$ 5,360 $ 4,860
2019 2020 30
2019
0.35
MUFG
Passivity commitments MUFG 24.9
MUFG
10b5-1
2019 2018 2017
$ 1.30 $ 1.10 $ 0.90
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EPS

( )

2019 2018 2017
1,617 1,708 1,780

RSU

PSU 23 30 41
1,640 1,738 1,821
( EPS ) 2 1 -

( )

2019 12 31

2019 2018

( ) « ) 12 31 12 31
A 44,000 $ 25,000 $ 1,100 1,100
Ct 519,882 1,000 408 408
E 34,500 25,000 862 862
F 34,000 25,000 850 850
G - - - 500
H 52,000 25,000 1,300 1,300
| 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
J 60,000 25,000 1,500 1,500
K 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
L 20,000 25,000 500 —
$ 8,520 8,520

1. C MUFG 911 1,160,791 C
503 C 640,909 2009 705
30
15 Tierl
2019 11 25 G G
2020 15 500
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oOoOooodn
( )3 4
A 44,000 1,000 $ 25,000 2011 15
Cs 1,160,791 N/A 1,100 2011 10 15
E 34,500 1,000 25,000 2023 10 15
F 34,000 1,000 25,000 2024 15
H 52,000 25 25,000 2019 15
1 40,000 1,000 25,000 2024 10 15
60,000 25 25,000 2020 15
K 40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
L6 20,000 1,000 25,000 2025 15
1. 0.01
2 L
3. C
4. C
)
) 90
5.
1,000 10
6. 2019 11 25
1
2019 2018 2017
1 1 1
A $ 1,014 $ 44 1,011 $ 45 1,014 $ 45
C 100 52 100 52 100 52
E 1,781 60 1,781 61 1,781 61
F 1,719 60 1,719 58 1,719 58
G2 1,242 24 1,656 33 1,656 33
H3 1,418 74 1,363 71 1,363 71
1 1,594 64 1,594 64 1,594 64
J4 1,388 84 1,388 83 1,388 83
1,463 59 1,463 59 1,402 56
169 3 - — — —
$ 524 $ 526 $ 523
2019
3. 2019 15
4 2020 15
)
) 1

2771420



EDINETOOOO

2016 12 31
0oCl
2017 12 31
0Cl
2018 12 31
0oCl
2019 12 31

0Cl
0Cl
0Cl
0ocCl
0oCl
ocCl
0Cl
DVA
0Cl
0oCl

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
)
DVA
$ (986) $ (588) B (474 $  (595) B (2,643)
219 41 117) (560) 417
(767) (547) (591) (1,155) (3,060)
®) (111) (124) (194) (437)
(114) 272) 137 1,454 1,205
(889) (930) (578) 105 (2,292)
®) 1,137 (66) (1,559) (496)
$  (897) % 207 $  (644) $ (1,454) $ (2,788)
AOCI
21
( )
2019

C ) C ) C )
$ 6 $ ©) $ 3 $ 11 $ ®)
$ 6 $ ?) $ 3 $ 11 $ ®)
$ 1,588 $ (373) $ 1,215 $ - $ 1,215
(103) 25 (78) - (78)
$ 1,485 $ (348) $ 1,137 $ - $ 1,137
$  (99) $ 25 $  (73) $ - $ (73
12 ) 7 - 7
$  (86) $ 20 $  (66) $ - $  (66)
$ (2,181) $ 533 $ (1,648) $  (80) $ (1,568)
11 ) 9 - 9
$ (2,170) $ 531 $ (1,639) $  (80) $ (1,559)

278/420



ocCl1

ocCl

ocCl

0Cl

0Cl

ocCl1

ocCl1

ocCl

ocCl

0Cl

0Cl

ocCl1

ocCl1

ocCl

0Cl

0Cl

1.

DVA

DVA

2018

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2018 1
) C ) C )
(11) $ (79 $  (90) 24 $  (114)
(11) $ (79 $  (90) 24 $ (114)
(346) $ 80 $  (266) - $  (266)
®) 2 (6) - (6)
(354) $ 82 $  (272) - $  (272)
156 $ @D $ 119 - $ 119
26 ®) 18 - 18
182 $ (45 $ 137 - $ 137
1,947 $  (472) $ 1,475 63 $ 1,412
56 (14) 42 — 42
2,003 $  (486) $ 1,517 63 $ 1,454
( )
2017
) C ) C )
64 $ 187 $ 251 32 $ 219
64 $ 187 $ 251 32 $ 219
100 $  (36) $ 64 - $ 64
(35) 12 (23) - (23)
65 $ (24 $ 4 - $ 41
(193) $ 75 $  (118) - $  (118)
2 1) 1 - 1
(191) $ 74 $  (117) - $  (117)
(922) $ 325 $  (597) (28) $  (569)
12 ®) 9 - 9
(910) $ 322 $ (588) (28) $  (560)
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AOCI

280/420

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2019
$ 63
( )
2018
$ (32)
99)
443
(6)
$ 306
( )
2017
$ (30)
(5)
$ (35)
( DVA OCI
45
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ (1,874) $ (1,851)
977 962
$ (897) $ (889)
$ 13,440 $ 11,608
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A w NP
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

OooooOodd
( )

2019 2018 2017

$ 2,175 $ 1,744 $ 1,334
4,783 4,249 3,298
3,485 1,976 169
2,899 2,392 2,029
3,756 3,531 2,167
$ 17,098 $ 13,892 $ 8,997
$ 1,885 $ 1,255 $ 187
5,052 5,031 4,285
2,609 1,898 1,237
2,858 1,902 12)
$ 12,404 $ 10,086 $ 5,697
$ 4,694 $ 3,806 $ 3,300

EDINETOOOO
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18
RSU PSU
( )
2019 2018 2017
RSU $ 1,064 $ 892 $ 951
PSU 89 28 75
$ 1,153 $ 920 $ 1,026
$ 111 $ 110 $ 85
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 243 $ 193 $ 225
1.
( )
2019 12 31 L

2020 $ 394

2021 168

30

$ 592

1. 2020
( )

282/420
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
2019 12 31
123
16
RSU
RSU
RSU
2019
( ) C )
RSU 74 $ 37.59
27 43.05
(35) 28.95
@ 43.66
RSU 1 65 $ 44.38
RSU $ 3,294
2018 RSU $ 55.40
2017 RSU 42.98
1. 2019 12 31 RSU 1.2
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1.
RSU

PSU

MS

12 31
PSU
MS ROE
MS TSR

RSU

RSU

RSU

RSU

ROE

PSU
PSU

MS

RSU

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
2019

( ) C )
41 $ 40.65
27 43.05
(30) 37.80
@ 43.66
37 $ 44.58
( )

2019 2018 2017
$ 1,497 $ 1,790 $ 1,333
1,292 1,504 1,470

PSU
0 150
S&P500
MS TSR
2019

2019 2018 2017
$ 43.29 $ 56.84 $ 42.64
48.28 65.81 48.02
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2019 2.6 26.5 0.89
2018 2.2 26.8 0.89
2017 1.5 27.0 0.89
S&P500
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 1,233 $ 1,174 $ 1,039
645 (48) 499
! $ 1,878 $ 1,126 $ 1,538
$ 195 $ 193 $ 176
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 534 $ 156 $ 197
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2007

/(

401(a)

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 16 $ 16 $ 16
139 134 146
(114) 112) 117
1 @ -
13 26 17
$ 55 $ 63 $ 62
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 1 $ 1 $ 1
2 3 3
- @ (16)
$ 3 $ 3 $ 12)
SEREP 401(a)
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ocCl1

AOCI

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ (779) $ (947) $ (761)
(112) 158 (205)
- (15) 2
1 (€H) -
13 26 17
(98) 168 (186)
$ 877) $ (779) $ (947)
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 13 $ 1 $ 17
13 13 -
- @ (16)
13 12 (16)
$ 26 $ 13 $ 1
10
2019 2018 2017
4.01 3.46 4.01
3.52 3.50 3.52
3.34 3.38 3.10
2019 2018 2017
4.07 3.44 4.01

2871420
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EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2019 2018 2019 2018
$ 3,563 $ 3,96 $ 71 $ 86
16 16 1 1
139 134 2 3
497 (340) (13) (13)
- 15 _ _
® 11) - -
(191) (195) ®) ®)
11 ©2) _ _
$ 4,02 $ 3,563 $ 56 $ 71
$ 3,203 $ 3,468 $ - $ -
499 (69) _ _
36 34 5 6
(191) (195) ) (6)
® 11 - -
15 24) _ _
$ 3,553 $ 3,203 $ - $ -
$ (473) $ (360) $ (56) $ (71)
$ 98 $ 151 $ - $ _
(571) (511) (56) (71)
$ 473) $ (360) $ (56) $ 71)
( )
2019 2018
12 31 12 31
$ 4,013 $ 3,546
( )
2019 2018
12 31 12 31
$ 637 $ 575
624 559
66 64
12 31
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2019 2018 2019 2018
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
3.08 4.01 3.11 4.07
3.28 3.34 N/A N/A
Aa
2019 2018
12 31 12 31
5.48 5.66
8.00 7.66
( ) 4.41 4.50
2029 2038
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
2019 12 31
! $ 3 $ - $ - $ 3
2,658 - - 2,658
- 292 - 292
2,658 292 - 2,950
CDo _ 9 _ 9
- - 53 53
1 - 48 - 48
$ 2,661 $ 349 $ 53 $ 3,063
NAV

137
136
30
240
$ 543
- (€) - )
! - (52) - (52)
$ - $ (53) $ - $ (53)
$ 3,553

290/420



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2018 12 31
! $ 3 $ - $ - $ 3
2,197 - - 2,197
- 317 - 317
2,197 317 - 2,514
CDO - 11 - 11
— 22 — 22
— - 48 48
$ 2,200 $ 350 $ 48 $ 2,598
NAV
252
134
12
207
$ 605
$ 3,203
1.
( )
2019 2018

$ 48 $ 47

3 —

2 1

$ 53 $ 48

2019 2018

87

291/420
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NAV

NAV
NAV

2019 12 31
2020 2020 50
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2019 12 31
2020 149 4
2021 151 4
2022 153 5
2023 159 5
2024 163 5
2025 -2029 911 18
401(K)
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 280 $ 272 $ 258
401(K)
401(K) 2019 2018
2017 IRS
100,000
401(K)
401(K)
( )
2019 2018 2017

$ 121 $ 116 $ 106
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1. 2019

2018

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 873 $ 686 $ 476
260 207 125
166 328 401
177 268 56
82 94 48
341 318 308
$ 1,899 $ 1,901 $ 1,414
$ 185 $ 330 $ 2,656
46 56 84
5 54 18
11 (10) an
- ©) @)
(82) 22 15
$ 165 $ 449 $ 2,754
$ 2,064 $ 2,350 $ 4,168
$ - $ (€)) $ (7

2017
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2019

2017

2017 12

2018

IRS
233
22

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
2019 2018 2017
21.0 21.0 35.0
2.2 2.0 1.4
(1.5 (0.9 (1.6)
0.1) 0.4) 0.1)
(0.8) 1.3 (5.0)
_ _ 11.5
1.9 (1.5) (1.5
(1.4) (0.6) 0.4
18.3 20.9 40.1
348 203
968
12
21
GILTI
BEAT
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( )
2019 2018

12 31 12 31
$ 287 $ 264
2,075 2,053
318 318
368 242
3,048 2,877
156 143
$ 2,892 $ 2,734
983 825
411 236
1,394 $ 1,061
1,498 $ 1,673

2019 12 31
50
GILTI
2019 12 31

( )

2019 2018 2017
$ 1,080 $ 1,594 $ 1,851
57 83 63
61 34 170
(419) (404) (312)
an (139) (155)
©) (88) 23)
$ 755 $ 1,080 $ 1,594
(€D $ 549 $ 746 $ 873

(€))
( )

( )

2019 2018 2017
$ 8 $ (40) $ ©)
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2013
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2011
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( )
2019
$ 5,734 $ 509 $ — $ (80) $ 6,163
10,318 734 (8) 51 11,095
325 2 1,213 — 1,540
2,484 1,726 1 (292) 3,919
413 10,199 2,629 (158) 13,083
632 345 (46) (6) 925
19,906 13,515 3,789 (485) 36,725
12,193 5,467 20 (582) 17,098
11,713 1,245 46 (600) 12,404
480 4,222 (26) 18 4,694
$ 20,386 $ 17,737 $ 3,763 $ (467)  $ 41,419
$ 5,490 $ 4,832 $ 95 $ (6) $11,301
769 1,104 193 ©) 2,064
4,721 3,728 792 ) 9,237
4,721 3,728 792 ) 9,237
122 — 73 — 195
$ 4,599 $ 3,728 $ 719 $ (4 $ 9,042

298/420
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( )

2018

$ 6,088 $ 475 $ — 8 () $ 6,482
11,101 279 25 56 11,551
182 1 254 — 437
2,671 1,804 — (285) 4,190
421 10,158 2,468 (149) 12,898
535 248 (30) (10) 743
21,088 12,965 2,717 (469) 36,301
9,271 5,498 57 (934) 13,892
9,777 1,221 28 (940) 10,086
(506) 4,277 29 6 3,806

$ 20,582 $ 17,242 $ 2,746 $ (463) $ 40,107

$ 6,260 $ 4,521 $ 464 $ 8 $ 11,237

1,230 1,049 73 ) 2,350
5,030 3,472 391 (6) 8,887
(6) — 2 — (€))
5,024 3,472 393 (6) 8,883
118 — 17 — 135

$ 4,906 $ 3,472 $ 376 $ 6 $ 8,748

299/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

OooooOodd
( )

2017

$ 5,537 $ 58 $ — $ (67) $ 6,003
10,295 848 22) G) 11,116
368 3 449 — 820
2,433 1,737 — (109) 4,061
359 9,342 2,196 (100) 11,797
630 268 @7 (13) 848
19,622 12,731 2,586 (294) 34,645
5,377 4,501 4 (975) 8,997
6,186 486 4 (979) 5,697
(809) 4,105 — 4 3,300

$ 18,813 $ 16,836 $ 2,586 $  (290) $ 37,945

$ 5,644 $ 4,299 $ 456 $ 4 $ 10,403
1,993 1,974 201 — 4,168
3,651 2,325 255 4 6,235
19 — — — 19
3,632 2,325 255 4 6,216

96 — 9 — 105

$ 3,536 $ 2,325 $ 246 $ 4 $ 6,111

( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 2,116 $ 2,436 $ 2,077
3,618 3,652 3,460

90% 86% N/A
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( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 2,773 $ 2,696 $ 2,091
395 914 647
! 5,246 6,157 6,291
1,438 1,174 740
1,243 610 1,347
$ 11,095 $ 11,551 $ 11,116
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 774 $ 434
13
( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 43 $ 56 $ 86

2a-7
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( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 9,464 $ 7,804 $ 5,686
1 1,837 3,433 4,717
$ 11,301 $ 11,237 $ 10,403
1.
( )
2019
( ) $ @17y 8 3 3 18 % (348)
1 (83) @37 ©) 127)
$ (400) $ G0 3 @5 (475)
2018
( ) $ (182) $ — $ @) 3 (203)
1 (104) (50) (11) (165)
$ (286) $ G0 3 32 % (368)
2017
2 $ 705 $ 402 $ 94 $ 1,201
(168) — — (168)
(66) 9 ® (65)
$ 471 $ 411 $ 86 $ 968
1 (93) (54) ®) (155)
$ 378 $ 357 $ 78 $ 813
1.
2 20
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2019 2018 2017

$ 30,226 $ 29,301 $ 27,817

EMEA 6,061 6,092 5,714

5,132 4,714 4,414

$ 41,419 $ 40,107 $ 37,945

EMEA
( )
2019 2018
$ 2,705 $ 2,821
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 2,916 $ 2,308
( )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 691,201 $ 646,427
197,682 202,392
6,546 4,712
1 $ 895,429 $ 853,531
1.

( )
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
$ 622,979 $ 576,532
185,093 200,194
87,357 76,805
$ 895,429 $ 853,531
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2019

2018
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( )
2019 2018 2017
$ 5,529 $ 4,973 $ 2,567
(54) 54 (260)
80 (5) 64
5,555 5,022 2,371
5,121 5,172 3,783
4,661 4,816 4,079
460 356 (296)
6,015 5,378 2,075
300 225 240
5,715 5,153 1,835
(73) 22 (206)
5,788 5,131 2,041
3,254 3,617 4,070
9,042 8,748 6,111
(8) (114) 219
1,137 72) 1
(66) 137 Q17
(1,559) 1,454 (560)
$ 8,546 $ 9,953 $ 5,694
$ 9,042 $ 8,748 $ 6,111
530 526 523
$ 8,512 $ 8,222 $ 5,588
40 30
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( )
2019 2018
12 31 12 31

$ 9 $ 6

8,001 7,476

5,747 10,039

4,606 (19,824 15,500 ) 37,253 22,588
10,114 25,535

27,667 30,954

104,345 97,405

36,093 42,848

43,667 32,418

244 1,244

$ 273,140 $ 270,513

$ 1,130 $ 276

4,631 -

35,470 30,861

2,153 2,548

(20,461 18,599 ) 148,207 156,582
191,591 190,267

13
8,520 8,520
0.01
© 3,500,000,000 - 2,038,893,979 20 20
:1,593,973,680 1,699,828,943

23,935 23,794

70,589 64,175

2,918 2,836
«C ) (2,788) (2,292)
444,920,299 339,065,032-01 ) (18,727) (13,971)
(2,918) (2,836)

81,549 80,246

$ 273,140 $ 270,513

306/420
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2019 11 25

15

L

2019
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( )
2019 2018 2017

$ 24,175 $ (1,136) $ 3,747
(22,408) (8,155) (5,263)
4,671 1,252 3,620
3,157 3,729 1,038
15,422 13,057 19,314
4,631 (8,753) 8,753
(9,210) 11,841 (35,686)
(3,737) 12,971 (8,224)
497 - 994
8,337 14,918 36,833
(24,282) (21,418) (24,668)
(5,954) (5,566) (4,292)
(2,627) (2,375) (2,085)
4,378 2,122 1,861
12 - 26
(19,639) (12,319) 8,669
@71) (166) 221
528 (650) 4,413
7,482 8,132 3,719
$ 8,010 $ 7,482 8,132
$ 9 $ 6 11
8,001 7,476 8,120
- - 1
$ 8,010 $ 7,482 8,132
$ 4,677 $ 4,798 3,570
1,186 437 201

2018 2017

2020 15 6

307/420
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2019 2018
12 31 12 31
$ 137,138 $ 146,492
10,570 10,090
$ 147,708 $ 156,582




100

FDIC
2019

/ IHC

2019
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( )
2019 2018
12 31 12 31
$ 32,996 $ 24,286
( )
2019 2018
12 31 12 31
$ 925 $ 1,003

IHC

IHC
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( )
2019
123
$ 9,272 $ 9,215 $ 8,814 $ 9,424
1,014 1,029 1,218 1,433
10,286 10,244 10,032 10,857
7,331 7,341 7,322 8,124
2,955 2,903 2,710 2,733
487 657 492 428
2,468 2,246 2,218 2,305
2,468 2,246 2,218 2,305
39 45 45 66
$ 2,429 $ 2,201 $ 2,173 $ 2,239
93 170 113 154
$ 2,336 $ 2,031 $ 2,060 $ 2,085
$ 1.4 $ 1.24 $ 1.28 $ 1.33
$ 1.4 $ 1.24 $ 1.28 $ 1.33
$ 1.39 $ 1.23 $ 1.27 $ 1.30
$ 1.39 $ 1.23 $ 1.27 $ 1.30
$ 0.30 $ 0.30 $ 0.35 $ 0.3
$ 42.83 $ 44.13 $ 45.49 $ 45.82
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( )
2018
1 2
$ 10,102 $ 9,704 $ 8,936 $ 7,559
975 906 936 989
11,077 10,610 9,872 8,548
7,657 7,501 7,021 6,691
3,420 3,109 2,851 1,857
714 640 696 300
2,706 2,469 2,155 1,557
@ @ €Y) 1
2,704 2,467 2,154 1,558
36 30 42 27
$ 2,668 $ 2,437 $ 2,112 $ 1,531
93 170 93 170
$ 2,575 $ 2,267 $ 2,019 $ 1,361
«
$  1.48 $  1.32 $  1.19 $ 0.81
$  1.48 $ 1.32 $  1.19 $ 0.81
)4
$  1.46 $  1.30 $  1.17 $ 0.80
(0.01) _ _ _
$ 1.45 $  1.30 $  1.17 $ 0.80
0.25 $ 0.25 $  0.30 $ 0.30
39.19 $ 40.34 $ 40.67 $ 42.20
2019
158 111

2019 41 2018 46

2019 172
124

37 11
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13a-15(e)
( GAAP
)
GAAP
2019 12 31
(C0S0) (2013 )

2019 12 31
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( C0S0 )
(2013 ) ( )
2019 12 31 C0S0
(2013 ) 2019
12 31
C X PCAOB ) 2019 12
31 2019 12 31 2020 27
PCAOB PCAOB

PCAOB
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Consolidated Income Statements Morgan Stanley
i millions, axonpf per shane dafa 2013 2048 a7
Risvrnues
Irreaairmant barking E G6.163 § G482 § 8,003
Trasdirsg 11,088 11,5581 11,998
Ireiirnants 1.540 437 B20
Commessiors and s 3810 4,150 4061
Aazal management 13,083 12058 11,747
Other ) a5 T43 BB
Total nan-nlevest revarses 36,725 36.301 34645
Ireresl incama 17,008 13,882 E8OT
Interssl xpanss 12404 10,086 5807
Nt interast 4604 3,806 3,300
“Met revenues 41,418 40,107 37 845
Mo r-inlerest oxpenses
Comparsaton and benefis 18,837 17 632 17 166
Oecupandy S ecuipsian 1428 1381 1325
Browerage, cearing and axchangs fees 2,493 2393 2093
Information processirg and communications 2,184 26 1,781
Markatng and buteness danelofarsant GE0 [:] ] BoG
Professionsl serices 2,437 2265 2968
Cihar 2,368 482 2385
Takal non-irberest dxpe fidd .18 2B 870 27542
Income from continuing operabons befone iIncomea laxes 11301 11,237 10403
Provision for income laxes 2,064 2350 4 B8
[Pt from cantinuing opErabans 0237 BBET 6235
Income {loss) from discontinued operafions, et of income Bues — (4} {18}
Iat ncome § 8237 § BAED § BHE
Ml incorns applicabla b nenconlrolling inrasts 185 135 105
Mat incoma applicable ta Morgan Stanley $ 2,042 § 8748 § 6111
Prafamed stock dnidends and other 530 526 523
Earnings applicable te Mergan Stanley commoen shareholders 13 8512 § B222 § 5,588
Earnings per basic common share
Income Trom confinuing operabons 3 526 % 461 § 315
Incoma {loss) from dkscontnued operafons - {0.01)
Earnings per basic common share 1 536 % 481 % 314
Earnings per diluted common share
Income from confinuing operabons 3 518 % 473 § 308
Income (Joss) Trom dieconlirued operaSons o= - {0.01)
Earnings per diluted common share $ 519 § 473 % 207
Axerage common shares owtstanding
Bakes 1,617 1.708 1.780
Ditsg 1640 1736 1821
S Motes to Consolidated Finamcial Statements. T Deecernber 2019 Form 1 0-K
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Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statements Morgan Stanley
F iy s, 2018 2018 27
Met o ] 8217 § aasn g &6
Ciihér comprihendgive indome (loes), net af
Forsign curmancy ranslation adustmants 5 3% (80} § 251
Changa = nel wnealizad gains (lceses ) on avadable dor-sale secunbes 1.437 (272) 41
Pansion, pastresremant and oher {66) 137 (117}
SN MR OO APRIARON SpNIT._ {1.658) Lar 0
Total otk cormprishintive mooms (lass) 5 [565) § 1202 § (413}
Comprahansive incoms k] 8672 § 10176 § 5,803
Mat incore applcabla ta nonconlrolling inarests 185 135 105
Other camprabangive incam {oee) spplicable to nonconoling inlssasis {68) BT 4
Comprehensive income applicable to Morgan Stanley § B.546 § 8053 § 5,604
Dwecember 2019 Form 10-K T8 Sew Motes to Consolidated Financial Statensents.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets Morgan Stanley
At Al
December 31,  December 31,
F i rrdbovs, arcapl shase dals 2019 2048
Assels
Cash and cash aguivalents:
Cash and dus Trom banks 5 4,293 § 30,541
Inlerest beanng depasits wilh banks 45 366 21298
Reatnctad cash 32512 A5 358
Trading assels al far value ($128,326 and 120,437 ware pladged to various parties) 287410 ol
Investrment seduias (indudes $62,213 and $51.061 al air vahsa) 105725 91,832
Securibes purchased under agreemants to resell (includes §4 and §— al fair valua) BE.224 08522
Securibies bomowed 106,548 116,313
Customer and ather recaivables 55646 53208
Laars:
Hiadd for irisimend (ned of allowanos of $348 and $238) 118060 98815
Hedd for 5288 12577 16,764
Goodwll 7143 GAA8
Inlangsble assels (ral of accumulated amarkzaton of $3,204 and $2 87T) rio7 2163
Other assels 20,17 15641
“Total asaets $  BosAm § BE3 531
Linklithes.
Deposits (inchadas $2,009 and $442 a1 faer valua) $ 190,356 § 187 820
Trading liabligas at fair valua 133,356 125,747
Seduriling sold under agreemants bo regurchase (inchudés $733 and $812 al lair valua) 54,200 458,755
Securiles oaned B.506 11508
Other secuned inancings (incudes $TA09 and $5 245 at lair valua) 14,698 9466
Customer and ather payablas 197834 178,550
Other liahftas and accrued aaparnsas 21,155 1704
Borrowings {inchudes $54.4561 and $51,184 a1 fair valua ) 192627 185662
eSS e e
Cemmitments and contingent Rabilities (see Note 13)
Equity
Mitrgan Stanlsy shareholders’ squity:
Prafarrad stack B.520 8520
Comman stock. $0.0% par valea:
Shares puthorized 3,500,000,000; Shares issued: 2,038,893,979. Shares cutstandng: 1,593,973,680 and
1608 26543 20 0
Achditional paid-in capital 23935 23,794
Ratainad samngs 70580 B4175
Ermplayes stock buats 24918 2838
Accunmdated oihar comprebensive incoms (loss) (2.788) (2288
Common stack hald in traasury st cost, $0.01 par valus (444,020,290 and 339,065 006 shares) {18727 {13871}
Common stock issued to amployes stock trusis (2a18) (2836}
Total Morgan Stanbey shareholders’ equity 81,548 BO24E
Manoon tralling intirssts 1,148 1160
Total pquity B2E9T 81406
Total lEabilities mnd equity 3 B95.420 5 B53.531
Lie Motes 1o Consolidabed Finamcial Statements. T Deecernber 2019 Form 1 0-K
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Total Equity Margan Stanley
5 in milions 2019 2048 27
Preferred Stock

Baginning Balanca % 8520 § 8520 § 1520
Issuance of prefarrad slock 500 — 1,000
Redemphon of peaferred atack {50 — —
Erufirfy bidancn 8.520 8.520 8,520
-qumnn Stock

Beginning and ending balance 20 20 20
Additionsl Paid-in Capital

Beginning halancs 23.784 23,545 23.2M
Cumulalive adiustments for accounlting changes’ - - 45
Share-hased awand achvly 131 248 06
lssuance of preferrad alock {3 - (6}
OFer il incraasi s (decraabas) 13 1)
Endfimg balanca - 18315 23,764 23545
Retained Earnings

Baginning halanca 4175 STATT 53679
Cumulative adusbments lor accomiling changes’ 63 306 {35)
Mal incorma applicabla ta Morgan Stanley 8,042 8746 6,111
Prafemad stock dvidends’ [524) (526 (523
Comman stock dividends’ [2.461) (1.830) {1,655)
Cithér ned incréasas (decreasas) 6)

_Enling bial@nda T0.588 B4 175 57 577
Employes Stock Trusts

Beginning halanca 24836 24807 2851
Share-hassd awand sclivily 82 {T1) 56
_Er'n'lr:g bk 2,818 2836 2807
Accumulated Other Comprahensive Income (Loss)

Beginning halancs [2.202) (3.060) (2 6431
Cunulative adjustments lor acoounling changas’ — {437)

Mt chargs in Accumudabisd athar compniben sive incorma (lass) (486) 1,205 {417}
Ending bafance (2,788) (@262 (3060}
Common Steck Held In Treasury ol Cost

Beginning balancs {13.971) 211 {5,707}
Sharg-basad award sctivity 1.188 806 arg
Repurchases of common siock and amployss tax withholdings (5.954) (5.566) (4,282}
Ending balance {18.727) {13471} M1
Commaon Stock lssued to Employes Stock Trusts

Baginning halance (2.828) (2,807} (2.851)
Share-based award aclivity 83 b 156}
Ending balance [2.918) (2 836) (2307}
Mencantrolling Interests

Bagirming Balancs 1. 180 1.075 1,127
Ml incorma applicablis B nonconlrolling indanests 195 1315 105
Mat changa = Acoumudaled ather comprahensive incomea (loss) [1=] BT 4
Oither et increases (decreasas) [138) (137) (161}
Ending balancs 1.148 1,160 1075
Total Equity $ sE S 14065 7edee

1. Saa Mo 18 fof nlomation regending e rofos of recempdon and mclvaifcation of Sedes & Prefemad Siock
2 fae Moms 2 ars 18 for furthar infamaton mpedleg cumulats asusments fof aceairdng chargas,

1. Saa Note 15 for information reganding dividends e share for sach dess of afiode.

December 2019 Form 10-K &0
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statements Morgan Stanley
5 st mdbans 2019 2018 wn?
Cash flows from opersting activities
Ml wncorme s 8237 § 8881 § 6216
Acpus rments 10 recondle nal incoma o rat cash provided by (used for) oparaling aclalies:
Drodarnad Ecemes Lo 165 440 2747
Stock-based conpensation axpense 1153 az20 1026
Depreciabon and amorazation 2643 1844 1,753
Frension for (Releass of) cradit losses on landing actilies 162 {15) 20
Ohar aparaling adjusimants [185) 199 153
Changas m assets and kabdies:
Teating asssts, nel of Tradng iabdles {13, 668) .72 (2T 5EE)
Sacurities bamawad 8,764 ThaT 1,226
Zacurilids loanad {3.402) (1 684) (2.252)
Custamas and othar recevabiles and alher assets 31 {728 {8,315}
Custames and olhar payables and ofer kabililes 16,842 {13,063) 2007
Sarurilies punchased under agresmenls 1o fasell 10,208 {14.264) 17 6a7
Sacurilies sold under agraements o repurchaks 4,441 (6J665) 1,796
Mot cash provided by jused far] cperating activities 40,773 7305 (4,508}
Cadh flows from invesling sclivities
Proceeds from (paymants fory:
Ctivier Aaaits.Pranisas, souiprent ind softwars, nal {4.828) {1.865) {8 820}
Changes n loans, net {17.358) (6754} (12925
Irvastmant aecuriiea
Purchases {42,5586) {27 800 {23,862}
Procesds from sales 17151 3208 18,131
Procasds from paydowns and maturities 12012 12 6ER 7445
Cither investng actvies [A53) (28 {251}
Hit eash provided by (used for) investing aclivities {33,561) {22 861) {12,391}
Cashflows from financing activites B S
Mat procasds from (paymenls far):
Othar sacuned financngs 3605 (1.226) 1573
Deposits 2513 28384 573
Procesds fnom:
lasuance of prafermed stock, mel ol issuance coits 487 494
Issuance of Borowangs 30,605 40056 55416
Paymants for|
Borainigys {40,548) {34.761) 35 #25)
Repurchases of comman slock and employes lax withhaldings (5.54) (5.566) (4,292}
Cash diidends {2,627 {2 a75) {2 085}
Cithar fnancing aclivilies [147) [200) 53
Wit eash provided by (used for) financing activities {14, 088) 24 405 18,261
Effect of axchangs rale changes on Gaeh and cash equvalents @y (1.828) T a670
Pk i eeet (Georaast] in Ca and ash Buvalnte (5025 6,801 3005
Cash and cash aguivalents, a1 bagnnng of penad B7.196 80,355 77360
Cash and cash equivalents, at and of period - 2471 % AT 166 § 80,385
Cash and cash aquvalants:
Cagh s dus from banks 5 4293 § 541 8 24816
Inlarest beanng depasils with banks 45,366 21258 21,346
__Reskicted cash 32,512 35356 34231
Caah and canh equivalents. s end of pariod 5 B2AT1 § HT. 156 § B0JE5
‘Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash payrivents Tor
Irflerreat 1 12,511 § G477 § sarr
IFcore anes, nal of refunds 1.808 1377 1,390
S Motes 0 Consolidated Finamcial Statements &l December 20019 Form [0-K
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Introduction and Basis of Presentation
The Firm

Mlongan Stanley s a global fmancial services firm that maintans
significamt market pesitions in each of its business segmems—
Institutional Secunties, Wealth Management and Investment
Manngement. Morgan Stanley, through its subsidianes and
afflintes, provides o wide variety of products and services toa
large and diversified group of clients and customers, incluing
corporations, povernments, fimancial  mstiutions  and
individualz. Unless the context otherwize requires, the terms
“Muorgan Stantey” or the “Firm™ mean Morgan Stanley (the
“Parent Company ™) tegether with 195 consalidated subsidmries.
See the “Glossary of Common Terms and Adronyms™ for the
defimtion of centain terms and acronyms used throughout this
Farm 10K,

A description of the clients and principal products and services
of each of the Firm's business segments s as follows:

Instifusional Securities provides inwvestment banking, sales
and trading, lending and other services (o corporations,
governments, financial institutsons and high to ulira-high net
worth clients. Investment banking services consist of capital
raisang and financial advisony services, inchuding services
relating to the underwriting of debl, equity and other
securities, a5 well as wbvice on mengers and scquisations,
restructurings, real estate and project {inance. Sales and
trading services inchude sales, financing, prime brokersge and
market-making activities in equity and ficed income products,
neluding  foreign exchange and commodities. Lending
activities include onginating corperate leans and commercial
real estate Joans, providing secured lending facilities, and
extending Dimancing to sales and trading custoeers, Other
achvities  nclude Asmn wealth management services,
investments and research

iFeaith Management provides a comprehensive amay of
financial services and solutions to mdividual investors and
srnall to mediin-sized busineses and institubions covermg:
brokerage and mnvestment advisory services, lmancial and
wealth planmning services; stock plan administration services,
annwaty and insurance products; securities-based lending,
resadential real estate loans and other lendmg products;
banking: and retrement plan services.

Investment Managenrert provides a broad range of imvestment
strategies and products that span geographies, asset classes,
and public and private markets to a diverse group of chients
across metitutional and mtermediary channels. Strategies and
products, which are offered through a vanety of investment
vehicles, include equity, foed income, Dquidity and
altermative’'other  products.  Institutional  clients  include:
defined benefivdefined comtribution plans, foundations,
endowments, government entities, sovereign wealth funds,
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insurance  companics, third-party  fund sponsors  and
corparations. Indwvidual chents are generally served through
inermediaries, inchuding  affilinted and  non-affilated
distributors.

Basds of Financial Information

The financial sgatements are prepared in accordance with 115,
GAAP, which requires the Firm to make estimates and
assumptions regarding the valuations of certain financial
instruments, the valuations of poodwill and intangible assets,
com pensation, deferred tax assets, the cutcome of legal and b
matters, allowance for credit losses, and other matters that affect
it Financial stalements and related disclosures. The Firm
believes that the estimates unlized in the preparation of s
finance ] Satements are prodent and reasonable. Actual results
coulld differ matenally from these estmates.

Certn reclassifications have been made to pnor penods 1o
conform to the current presentation. The Notes are an imegral
part of the Firm's Dnancizl sttements, The Furm hus evaluated
subsequent events for adjustment to or disclosure m these
financial statements through the date of this report and has not
adentified any recordable or disclosable events not otherwize
reported m these financal statements or the notes thereto.

Canrsolidmtion

The financm] statements include the sccounts of the Firm, s
wholly owned subsidianies and other emtities in whach the Firm
has a controlling financial interest, meluding certain VIEs (sce
Note 14). Intercompany balances and transsctions have been
eliminated For consolidated subsidiaries that are not wholly
ciwrecd, the third-party holdings of equity interests are referred
o s noncontrelling imerests, The net income attributable 1o
noncontrolling interests for such subsidiarnies = presented as Met
income applicable to noncontrolling interests in the income
statements. The portion of sharcholders’ equity that is
attnbutable to noncontrolling merests for such subssdaries 1s
presented as noncontrolling mterests, a component of Total
equily, in the balance sheets.

Forentities where the togal equity investment at risk s suTicient
to enable the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support and the cquaty holders bear the
economic ressdual risks and retums of the entity and have the
power 1o direct the activities of the entity that most sigr ficantly
affect its economic performance, the Firm consolidates those
entities 1t controls either through o majonty voling mterest or
otherwise. For VIEs (ie, enfittes that do mot meet the
aforementioned criteria), the Fiom consolidates those entities
where it has the power o make the decisions thm most
sigmficantly affect the economic performance of the VIE amd
has the obligation to absorh bosses or the right to receive benefits
that could potentially be significant to the VIE
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For investments in entities in which the Fiarn does not have &
controlling financial imterest bat has sigmficant influence over
operating and financial decizions, it applies the equity method
of accounting with net gains and losses recorded within Other
revenues (see Mote 10} unless the Firm has elected to measure
the investment at fair value, in which case net gains and losses
are recorded within Investments revenues (see Nale 3).

Equity and partnership interests held by entities qualifving for
BECOUNIITE PUIPOSSs s thvestment comipanics are carmed at far
value

The Fim's sigmificant repulated US. and  international
subsidianes melude Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC ("MS&C0.7),
Moagan Stanfey SmithBarmey LLC (“333R7), Morgan Stanley
& Co., Intemational ple (“MSIP"), Morgan Stankey MUFG
Securines Co., Lud. (UM3MS™), Morgan Stanley Bank, N.A.
[("MSENAT) and Mosgan Stanley Private Bank, National
Association (“"MSFENA™),

Consolidated Cash Flow Statenvents Presentation

For purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash
equivitlents consist of Cash and due from banks, Interes bearing
deposits with banks and Restnicted cash Cash and cash
eguivalents includes haghly ligud imvestments with onginal
matunities of three menths or kesy that are held for mvestment
purposes and are readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash,

Restricted cash meludes cash in banks subject to withdrawal
restrictions, restricted deposits held as compensating balances
and cash segrepated in compliance with federal or other
regulations

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized when the promased goods or services
are delivered 10 our Custom ers, in &h amount that is based on the
constderation the Firm expects to receive in exchange for those
goods or services when such amounts are not probable of
significant reversal. These policies reflect the adoption of
Revernre from Contracts with Customrers on January 1, 3018,
Please see “Accounting Updates Adopted”™ herem for the more
sigruficant differences in policies applied n prier periods.

Investment Banking

Revenues from investment bankmng activilies consast of
revenues eamed from underwnting, primanly equity and fixed
ineome securities and loan syndications, and advisory fees,
primarily [or mengers, acquisitions and restructurings.

Underwriting revernses are generally recognized on trade date
1f there 1= no uncertainty or contingency related to the amoumt
to b paid, Underwriting costs are deferred and recognized in
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the relevant non-interest expenses line items when the related
undderwriling revenues are recorded.

Advisory fees are recognized as advice is provided to the client,
based on the estimated progress of work and when revemes are
not probable of a significant reversal. Advisory costs are
recopnized as imcurmed in the relevant non-interest expenses line
items, including those reimibursed.

Cenmmisstony and Fees

Commassion and fee revemues result from transaction-based
amangements n which the client s charged a fee for the
execution of transactions. Such revenues prmarily arise from
Iransactions. in egquily securilaes, services rebated (o sales and
rradang activities, and sales of mutual funds, altemative funds,
futures, msurance products and options. Commassion and fee
revenues ane recognized on trade date when the performance
obligation is watisfied.

Asser Manapenent Revenues

Aszel management, distribution and admanastration fees are
generally based on related asset levels being managed, such as
the ALM of a customer's account or the net asset value of a
fund. These fees are penerally recognized when services are
performed and the fees become known Manapement fees are
rechsced by estimated fee wanvers and expense caps, 1 any,
provided to the customer.

Performance-based fees not in the form of camed nterest are
recorded when the annual performance target 13 met and the
revenues are not probable of a significant reversal,

Sales commissions paid by the Firm in connection with the sale
of certain classes of shares of its open-end mutual fund products
are accounted for as deferred commission assets and amortized
1o expense over the expected life of the contract. The Firm
periodhically tests deferred commission assets for recoverabality
based on cash flows expected to be received in future penods.
Ciher assel management and distribution costs are recogniced
as incurred in the relevant non-interest expenses line items

Carried Imteress

The Firm is entitled 1o receive performance-based fees in the
form of carried interest when the retusn incertain funds exceeds
specified performance tangets. When the Firm cams camied
infercst from funds as specified performance thresholdsare met,
that carried interest and any related general or limited partner
interest 15 accounted for under the equity method of accounting
and measured based on the Firm's ¢laim onthe NAV of the fund
at the reporting date, taking into account the distribution terms
applicable to the interest held

See Note 21 for information regarding the net cumulative
unrealized am oum of performance-based fee revenwes at nsk of
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reversal. See Mote 13 for information regarding peneral parter
guarantees, which include potentml obhgations 10 retum
performance fee distributions previously received.

Ehhver [tems

Revenues from certain commicdiles-related  contracts are
recognized as the promised goods or services are delvered 10
the customer.

Recewables from contracts with cuslomers are recognized in
Customer and other recervables in the balance sheets when the
underlyving performance obligations have been satisfied and the
Firm has the night per the contract to bl the customer. Contract
ssetsane recognized in Other assets when the Firm has satisfied
its performance obligations bul  customer paymemt s
conditionial.  Contract  labibities are recopmized m Other
liabilitses when the Firm has collected payment from a customer
based on the terms of the contract, but the underlying
perfarmance obligations are not vet satsfied

For contracts with aterm of less than one vear, incremental costs
to obtain the contract are expensed as incurred, Revenues are
net discounted when payment is expected within one year

The Finm presents, net within revenues, all taxes assessed by a
governmental authority that are both impoesed onand concurrent
with @ specific revenue -producing transaction and collected by
the Firm from o customer.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Instruments withan Trading assets and Teading liabilities are
mensured at far value, ether as required o allowed by
accounting  guidance. These financial instruments primartly
represent the Fim's trading and investment positions and
include both cash and derivative products Inaddition, securities
classified as AFS are measured at fur value.

Gainsand losses on instruments carried at fairvalue sre reflected
in Trading revenues, Investments revenues or Investment
banking revenues i the meome statéments, excepl for AFS
securtties  (see  “Investment Securities—AFS and HTM
securtties” séction heremn and Note &) and dervatives sccounted
for as hedges (see "Hedge Accounting”™ herein and Note 5).

Interast income and merest expense are recorded withan the
ineome statements depending on the nature of the mstrument
and related market conventions. When imterest 15 incheded asa
component of the mnstruments’ fair value, interest is included
withan Trading revenues or Investments revenues, Otherwise, it
15 included within [nterest income or Interest expense. Dividend
income is recorded in Trading revenues or Investments revenues
depending on the business activity,

The fmr value of OTC financial instruments, including
denvative contracts reluted 1o Nmancial instruments  and
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commodities, i presented in the accom panving bakance shests
on a net-by-counterparty basis, when appropriate. Additionally,
the Firm nets the Gur value of cash collateral paid or received
against the far value smounts recognized for net dervative
positons executed with the same counterpasty under the same
masler Netlng agreement

Fair Value Cynion

The Farm has ¢lected to measure certmn eligible imstruments ot
fair valee, ingludmg Securities purchased under agreements 1o
resell, Loans and lending commuments, equay methosd
investments and certain other assets, Deposits, Sscurities sold
under agreements 1o repurchase, Ciher secured financings and
Bosrowings

Fair Value Measwrement—Definition and Hierarchy

Fair value is defined as the peice that would be received to sell
an ket of padd to transfer a labality (L., the “exit price™) i an
orderly transsction between market participants al the
measurcment date.

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the
perspective of o market participant rather than an entity-specific
measure. Therefore, even when market assumptions are nol
readily available, assumptions are set to reflect those that the
Firm believes market partcipants woald wse in pricing the asset
or habality ot the measurement date, Where the Firm manages
agroup of linancal assets, financial habilites, and nonfinancal
itemsaceounted foras derivatives onthe basis of s net exposure
fo cither market nsks or credit nisk, the Firm measures the fair
value af that group of Ginancial insruments consigently with
how market participants would price the net nisk exposure at the

measurement date.

In determining far valse, the Firm wses varous valwtion
approaches and establishes a hierrchy for anputs used in
mensuring fair value that requires the most observable inputs be
used when available.

Oibservable inputs are mputs that market participants would use
in pricing the asset o linbihty that were developed based on
market data obtained from sources independent of the Firm,
Unobservable inputsane inputs that reflect assumptions the Firm
beliey es other market participants would use in pricing the asset
or lability that are developed based on the best information
avallable inthe circum stances. The fair valueierarchy 1zbroken
dewn mto three levels based on the observability of nputs ==
follows, with Level | being the highest and Level 3 being the
lowest level:

Lavel 1. Valuations based on quated prices in active markets
that the Firm has the ability to access for wentical assets or
liabilities, Valuation adjustments, block discounts and diseournits
Tor entity-specilic restrictions that woulsd not transfer to market
participants are not applied to Level | instnements. Since
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valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and
regularly avalable mm an active market, vahation of these
products does not entail a signalicant degree of judgment.

Level 2. Valuations based om one or more quoted prices in
markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are
observable, either directly or mdirectly.

Level 3. Valuations based on inpuls that are unobservable and
significant to the overall fair value measurement.

The availabality of cbservable inputs can vary from product 1o
product and is affected by a wide variety of factors, including
the tvpe of product, whether the product is new and not vet
established inthe marketplace, the liquidity of marketsand other
chamcteristics particular 1o the product. To the éxtent that
valuation & based on models or mputs that are less observable
or unohservable in the market, the determination of fair value
requures more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment
exercised by the Firm in determaning fiasr value 15 greaiest for
instruments calegronzed m Level 3 of the far vakee hierarchy.

The Firm considers prices and inputs that are current as of the
meastrement date, wnchiding during perieds of markel
dislocanion. In perieds of market dhslocation, the observability
of prces and mputs may be reduced for many instruments. This
condition could cause an instrument o be reclassified from
Level 1 to Level 2 or from Level 2 to Level 3 of the fair value

hierarchy.

In cerlain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall
into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy. In such cases,
the toetal Barr value amount is disclosed in the level appropreate
for the lowest bevel ingat that is significant to the 1otal fadr value
of the asset or hability.

Farlwation Techniques

Many cash instram ents and OTC denvative contracts have bad
and ask prices that canbe observed inthe marketplace. Bid prices
reflect the highest price that a party iswilling to pay for an asset.
Ask prices represent the lowest price that a party is willing to
aeeepd foranasset. The Firm carries positions ab the point within
the bad-ask range that meets its best estimate of far value. For
offsetting posithorns in the same financial instrument, the same
price within the bid-ask spread s used to measure both the long
and short positions.

Fair value for many cash instruments and OTC dervative
contracts i derived using pricirg models. Pricing models take
into account the contract terms, as well as mulliple inputs,
ineluding, where applicable, commodity prices, equity prices,
interest  rate yield curves, credt curves,  comelation,
creditworthiness of the counterparty, creditworthiness of the
Firm, option volatility and currency rates.
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Where appropriate, valuation adjustments are made 1o secount
for vanous factors such as higudity nsk (hid-ask adjustments),
credit quality, model uncertamty and concentration sk and
funding. Adjustments for liqudity nsk adjust model-denved
mid-market amounts of Level2 and Level3 financial
instruments o the bid-mid or mod-ask spread required 10
properly reflect the exat price of a nsk position. Bid-mid and
mid-ask spreads are marked to levels observed m trade activity,
broker quotes or other external third-party data. Where these
spaeads are unobservable for the particulas position in guestion,
spreads are derived from observable levels of similar positions.

The Firm applies credst-related valwation adjustments to its
Borrowings for which the fair value option was elected and to
OTC derivatives. The Firm considers the impact of changes in
1t own credit spreads based upon observations of the secondary
bond market spreads when measunng the far value for
Bomowings

For OTC denvatives, the mpact of changes in both the Fim's
and the counterparty’s credit rating i considered when
meazsunng fair value. In determining the expected exposure, the
Firm simulates the dstribution of the future exposure to a
counterparty, then apples market-based defaull probabilinies 1o
the Future exposure, levensging extermal third-pany CDS spread
data. Where CDS spread data are unavailable for a specific
counterparty, bond market spreads, CDS spread data based on
the counterparty s credit rating or CDS spread data that reference
a comparable counterparty may be vilized. The Firm also
considers collateral held and legally enfiorcesble master netting
agreements that mitigate its exposure to cach counterparty.

Adjustments for model uncertanty are taken for positioaswhose
underlying models are reliant on significant mputs that are
neither directly nor indirectly observable, hence requirng
reliance on established theoretical concepts in their denvation.
These adjusiments are derved by making assessments of the
possible degree of vanability using statistical approaches and
market-based information where possible.

The Firm may apply concentration adjustments to certain of its
OTC denvative postfolos torellect the additronal cost of closing
oul a pafticularly large nsk exposure. Where possible, these
adjustments are based on observable market information, but
in many instances, significant judgment is requared to estimate
the costs of closing out concentrated risk exposuses due 1o the
ek of ligquidity in the marketplace

The Firm applies an FYVA n the fair value measurements of OTC
uncollaterahzed or partilly collateralized denvatives and in
collateralized deswvatives where the terms of the agreement do
net permil the reuse of the collsteral recevesd, In general, FVA
reflects a market funding nsk premium mherent m the noted
derivative imstruments. The methodology for measuring FYVA
leveragesthe Firm's exasting credit-related valuation nd_imtmmi
calculation methodbologes, which apply to both assets and
lizhilitses.
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See Note 3 for a deseription of valuation techniques applied 1o
the magor categones of fnancel instrumients measursd a1 fair
value.

Aszers and Liakilities Measured av Falr Valice on @ Nei-
recurring Basis

Certain of the Firm's assets and liabalities are measured at fair
value on 8 non-recuming basis. The Firm incurs losses or gains
for any adjustments of these assets or labalings to fuir value

For assets and liabilities measured ar fair value on a non-
recurring basis, fair value = determined by using various
valuation approaches. The same hierarchy for inputs &s
described above, which requires than observable inputs be used
when available, is used in measuring fuir value for these nems.

For further mformation on financial assets and liabalities that
are measuned ot fair value ona recurrmg and nonsrecurming basas,
see Mote 3

Offsetting of Derivative Instruments

In connection with its derivative activities, the Firm generally
enters inde master nething agreements and colkateral agreements
with its coumberparties. These agreements provide the Fum with
the right, in the event of a default by the counterparty, to net &
counterparty”s rights and obligations under the agreement and
1 higusdmte and et off cash collateral against any et amount
owed by the counterparty. Denivatives with enforceable master
netting agreements are reported net of cash collateral recerved
and posted

Haowever, in ceftain crrcumstances, the Fim may nol have such
an agreement in place; the relevant insolvency regime may not
aupport the enforceability of the master netting agreement or
collateral agreement; or the Firm may not have sought legal
advice 1o support the enferceability of the agreement. In cases
where the Firm has not determined an agreement 1o be
enforceable, the related amounts are not offset (see Mote 571

The Fiem's pohbicy 15 generally to receive securities and cash
posted as collateral (with nghts of rehypothecation), imespective
of the enforceabality determination regarding the master netling
and collateral agreement. In certain cases, the Firm may agree
fior such collateral to be posted to a third-party custodian wder
a control agreement tat enables 1 1o 1ake contrel of such
collateral i the evemt of a counterpany default The
enforceability of the master netting agreement 18 taken mto
acoount inthe Firm’s risk management practices and application
of counterparty credit limits

For information related to offsetting of dervatives and certain
collateralized transactions, see Motes 5 and 7, respectively,
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Hedge Accounting

The Firm apphies hedpe accountmg usimg varsous denvative
financel instruments for the following types of hedpes: hedges
of changes in the fair value of assets and liahilities due to the
risk being hedged (fair value hedges), and hedges of net
investments in foreign aperations whose Tunctional currency is
different from the reporting currency of the Parent Company
{met mvestment hedpges). These financial instruments  are
included within Trading assets—Derivative and other contracts
of Trading labilities—Derivative and other contracts n the
balance sheets. For hedges where hedge accountng 15 beng
applied, the Firm performs effectiveness testing and other
procedures,

Fair Value Hedpes—Interess Rate Risk

The Firm's designated fair value hedges consist of interest rate
swaps designatedas hedges of changes inthe benchmark interest
rate of certain fixed rate AFS securities and senior borrowings.
In the fourth quarter of 2009, the Firm aksa began designating
inferest rate swaps as fair value hedges of changes in the
benchmark mterest rate of certain fixed rate deposits. The Firm
is permitted to hedge the full, or part of the, contractual temm of
the hedped mstrument The Firm uses régressaon amalvss 1o
perform an ongoing prospective and refrospective assessment
of the effectiveness of these hedging relationships. A hedging
relationship is deemed effective of the change in Fair value of
the hedging mstrument (derivative) and the change in fair value
ol thehedged item (AF3 securily, deposit habibity or borrowing ),
due 1o changes in the benchmark: interest rate, offaet within a
range of 80% 1o 125%. The Firm considers the impact of
valuation adjusiments relate d to counterparty credit spreads and
s own credit spreads (o determine whether they would cause
the hedging relationship to be ineffective

For qualifying fair value hedges of benchmark imterest rates, the
charge in the fair value of the derivative, offset by the change
in the fair value atnbutable to the change in the benchmark
nterest rate risk of the hedged asset (habihty), 15 recognized in
camings cach period as a component of Interest income
(expense). For AFS securities, the change in fair value of the
hedged tem due 1o changes other than the risk being hedged
will continue 1o be reported in OCE When a dervative 15 de-
designated as a hedge, any basis adjustment remaining on the
hedpedasset (liabality) is amortized to Interest incom e (expense)
over the remanang life of the asset (liabality) using the effective
nterest method

Net Investment Hedges

The Fiom uses forward foreign exchange contracts to manage a
portion of the currency exposure relating 1o its net investments
1n foreign operations. To the extent that the notional amounts of
the hedging imstruments equal the portion of the investments
beirg hedged and the unsderlving exchange rmie of the derrvative
hedging instrument 15 the same as the exchange rate between
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the functional currency of the inveatee and the intermediate
parent entity’s functional currency, 1t s considered o be
perfectly effective, with no income stalement recognition. [f
these exchange rates are nod the same, the Firm uses regression
ailvaistoassess the prospective andretrospective ¢ flectiveness
of the hedge relationships, The gain or loss rom revahung
hedges of nel investients in foreign operations sl the spol rate
is reported within AQCL The forward points on the hedging
instruments are exchuded from hedge effectiveness testing and
changes in the fair value of this excluded component are
recorded currently in Interest income.

Far further information on derivative instruments and hedging
aclyaties, see Node 5,

Investment  Securities—Availate-for-Sale  and  Held-to-
Alwturity

AFS securities are reported at fair value in the balanee sheets
with unrealized gaans and losses reported in ACCT, net of tax,
unless such securities are designated in a far value hedge.
Interest ncome, including amortization of premmums and
zceretion of discounts, 18 included in Interest income in the
ineome statlements. Reahzed gains and losses on sakes of AFS
securtties are classified within Other reverses m the income
statements (see Note &), The Frrm utithzes the “first-in, Arst-out™
method as the basis for determming the cost of AFS securities.

HTM secwrities are repored at amortized cost in the balance
sheets. Imterest income, including amortization of prem ms and
aeeretion of discounts on HTM securities, i included in Interest
ineome in the income statements,

T

AFSsecurities and HTM securities with a current fair value less
than their amortized cost are analyzed as part of the Firm's
pernodic assessment of temporary versus OTTT at the individual
securny level Atemporary impairment is recognioed m ACC]
for AFS securities. OTT1 is recogmized inthe income sialem enls
with the exception of the non=credit portion related Lo a securnity
thatthe Firm doesnotintend toselland isnot likely tobe required
tosell, which is recognized in AOCT

For AF3 securities that the Firm either has the intent to sell or
that the Firm s likely to be required to sell before recovery of
its amortined cost basis, the impairment is considered OTT]

For those AFS secunties that the Fimm does not have the intent
o gell of ix pot Likely to be required to sell and for all HTM
securmies, the Firm evaluates whether it expects 1o recover the
enitire amortized cost basis of the securite. [F the Firm does mol
expect o recover the entire amortized cost of those AF Sor HTM
securities, the impairment 18 considered OTTL, and the Firm
determines what portion of the impairment relates to a credit
loss and what portion relates 1o non-credit faciors.
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A credit loss exasts if the present value of cash Nows expected
e be collected {(discounted at the implicit interest mie at
acquisition of the security or discounted at the efective vield
for secunties thal mcorporate changes in prepayment
AU plions ) is less tham the amortized cost basis of the security.
Changes in prepavment assum plions alone are mol considersd
1o resull in a eredit loss

When determinimng if a credit loss exists, the Firm considers
relevant information, meluding:

+ the length of ime and the extent 16 which the fair value has
been less than the amortized cost basis;

+ adverse conditions specifically related 1o the security, s
industry or gecgraphic anes;

+ changes in the financial condition of the issuer of the security,
the presence of explicit or imp]lcil gumrantees of repayment
by the U5, Government for U S Government and Agency
secunties of, in the case of an asset-backed debt sccurity,
changes m the financial condiion of the underlying loan
ohligors,

= the historical and mplied volatility of the fair value of the
secunty;
* the payment structure of the debt secunity and the likelihood

of the suer being able fo make payments that increase in the
future;

+ failure of the issuer of the secunty to make scheduled interest
of principal pavments;

= the current rating and any changes to the ratimg of the secury
by & rating agency,

= recoveries of sdditional declines in e value after the balance
sheet date.

When estimating the present value of expected cash flows,
information wtilized ncludes the remaining paveent terms of
the security, prepayment speeds, financial condition of the
wssuer(s), expected defaults and the value of any underlying
collateral

Laans

The Firm accounts for loans based on the following categonies:
loans held for investment; loans held for sale; and loans at fuir
value

Lotns Held for Investment
Loans held for investment are reported at outstanding principal
adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, any

umamorized deferred fees or costs for originated lowns, and any
unamaortized premiums or discounts for purchased loans.
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Intevest Income.  Interest income on performing loans held for
investment 15 secrued and recogrized as interest income at the
contractual rate of interest. Purchase price discounis or
premiums, as well as net deferred loan fees or costs, are
amortized intointerest income overthe life of the loantoproduee
a level mie of returmn

Allowawce for Loan Lossex  The allowance for lean losses
represents &n estimate of probable losses related to loans
specifically identafied for imparment inaddition 1o the probable
Iosses inherent in the held-for-investment loan portfelio,

The Fim utihizes the US. banking agencies” defimtvon of
criticized exposures, which consist of the Special Mention,
Substandard, Doubtful and Loss categories as credit quality
indicators. For further information on the credin quality
indicators, see Note §. Substandard loans are regularly reviewed
for impairment. Factors considered by management when
determining impairment incluwde pavment satus, fair value of
collateral, and probability of collectng scheduled principal and
interest pavments when due. The mpairment analysis required
depends on the nature and type of loans. Loans classified as
Doubtfisl ar Loss are considered impaired

There are two components of the allowance for kan losses: the
spocific allowance component and the mheremt allowance

COMponent

The specific allowance component of the allowance for loan
losses 1s used to estimate probable bosses for exposures that have
been specifically identified for mpairmient analysis by the Firm
and determined to be impaired When a loan is specifically
identified for impairment, the mparrment i measused based on
the presemt value of expected future cash flows discounted a1
the loan’s effective interest mie or the observable market price
of the loan or the Fair value of the collateral i the loaniscollateral
dependent. A lean is collateral dependent if the repavment of
the loan s expectad tobe provided solely by the sale or operation
of the underlying collateral. 11 the present value of the expected
future cash flows (or alternatively, the observable market price
of the loan or the fair value of the collateral) iz less than the
recarded investment in the loan, then the Firm recognizes an
allowanee and 4 change 1o the provision for loan losses within
Chher nevenues.

The inherent allowance component of the allowance for loan
loesses represents an estimate of the probable losses inherent in
the loan portfoboand includes loansthat havenot beenidentified
as impaired The Fam mamtains methodelogies by loan product
for calculating an allowance for loan losses thit estimates the
inherent losses in the lean portfolio. Generally, inherent losses
in the portfolio for non-impatred loans are estimated wing
statistical analysis and yudgment regarding the exposure at
default, the probability of default and the loss given default,

Cualitative and environmental foctors such as economic and
buziness conditions, nature and volume of the portfalio, and
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lending terms and volume and seventy of past due leans may
also be considered in the ealeulations. The allowance for loan
losses 15 maintaned at a level to ensure that it s reasonably
likely to adequately absorb the estimated probable losses
inherent in the porfolic. When the Firm recognizes an
allowan<e, there s alsoa charge o the provision for loan losses
within Cther revenies,

Troubled Debt Restructurings.  The Firm may modify the
terms of certain loans for economic o legal rensons related 1o
a borrower’s fnancial dafficultios by granting one or more
cencessions that the Firm would not etherwise consider. Such
modifications ane accounted for and reported as a TDR. A loan
that has been modified in a TDR is generally considered o be
i paired and s evalunted for the extent of impaimment using the
Firm's specific allowance methodology. TDRs are akso
generally classified as nonacerual and may be retumesd to scerual
statusonly afterconsidering the borrower 'ssustained repayment
performance for a reasonable period.

Nowacornal Loans. The Firm places loans on nonacorual
status if principal or interest is past due for a pented of 90 days
or more of payment of principal or imerest is in doubt unless
the obligation is well-secured and inthe process of collectaon.
A loam 15 considered past due when a payment due sccording 1o
the contractual termsofthe loan agreement has not beenremiited
by the borrower. Substandard loans, if identified as impaired,
are categonzed as nonaccrual, is are loans classifed s Doubaful
or Loss,

Payments received on nonacerual loans beld for investment are
applied to principal if there s doubt regarding the ulumate
collectibility of principal. If collection of the principal of
nonaccrual loans held for investment 15 not in doubt, interest
ncome s realized ona cash basis, [fneither principal nor interest
collection 15 in doubt, loans are placed on accrual status and
interest income is recogmized wsing the effectuve inferest
method. Loans that are on nonscorual states may not be restored
1o acerual staius until all delinguent principal and’or interest has
becn hrowught current after a reasonghle period of performance,
typically a minimum of six months

Charge-offs.  The Firm charges off a boan i the period that it
15 deemed uncollectible and records areduction m the allowance
for losin lesses and the balance of the loan. Tngeneral, any portion
of the recorded investment in o collateral dependent loan
(including any capitalized accrued interest, net deferred loan
fees or costs, and unamortized premium or discount) in excess
of the fair value of the collmteral that can be identified as
uncollectible, and is therefore deemed & confirmed loss, is
charged off against the allowsnce for boan losses. In addinon,
for loan transfers from loans held for myvestment to loans held
for sale, at the time of transfer any reduction in the loan value
13 reflected as o charge-off of the recorded mvestment, resulling
an o new cost basis
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Lending Commttmeniz. The Firm records the Liability and
relnted expense for the credit exposure relatesd to commitments
to fund loans that will be held for myvestment in a manmer similar
to outstanding loans discussed above, The analysis also
ineorpofates o eredit conversion fsctor, which is the expected
ubilization of the undrawn commitmient. The habiliy and
expense for the eredil exposiire are recorded m Other Liabilities
and accrued expenses in the balance sheets, and Other non-
interest expenses in the income statements, respectively, For
moee information regarding loan comm itments, standby letters
of credit and financial guarantees, see Note 13,

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are measured a1 the lower of cost or fair
value, with valuation changes recorded in Crher revenues. The
Firm determines the valuation allowance on an individual foan
basis, except for ressdential mortgage loans for which the
valuation allowance is determined at the loan product level. Any
decreases i fair value below the imatial camying amount ansd
any recoveries in far value up to the initial carrving amount are
recorded inCther revenues. Increases i fair value above initial
cafrvang value are fcd recognized,

Interest income on leans held for sale 1s accrued and recogmized
based on the contractual mie of mierest. Loan origination fees
or costs and purchase price discounts o premiums are deferred
s an addjustment o the loan’s cost basas unnl the related boan 15
sold and, as such, are included in the periodic determination of
the lower of cost or fair value adjustments and the gain or loss
recognized at the time of sale,

Lawacling Comnriments. Commitments to fund mortgage loans
held for sale are denivatives and are reporied in Trading assels
or Trading liabilities in the balunce sheets with an offsel 10
Trading revenwes in the income statements.

For commitments to fund non-mortgage loans the Firm records
the liabalny and rebated expense for the fairyalue exposure below
cost of such commitments in Cther liahilities and acerued
expenses in the balance sheets with an offset 1o Other revenues
in the income srlemenis

Loans and lending commitments held for smale are subject 1o the
nomacerual policies described above in the Loans Held for
Invesiment—Nonacerual Loans section. Becawse loans and
lending commments held for sale are recognized at the Jower
of cost or fair value, the allowance for lean losses and change-
off policies does not apply 10 these loans.

Loans at Fair Value

Leans for which the far value option 15 elected are camed at
fair value, with changes i fair value recognized in earnings.
Loans carried at fair value are not evaluated for pumposes of
recording an allowance for loan bosses. For further information
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on loans carried at Eair value and classified as Trading assets and
Trading labalities see Mote 3,

Lending Commitments. The Firm records the liabality andretated
expense for the far value exposure related to commitments to
fund loans that will be measured at fair valee, The liability is
recorded in Trading ligbilities in the balance sheets, and the
expense 5 recorded in Trading revenues m the income
stalements.

Loans and lending commitments at fawr value are subject to the
nenacerual polictes desenbed above m the Loans Held for
Investment—Nonacerual Loans section. Because such loans
and lending commitments are reported at fair value, the
allowance for loan losses and charge-off policies do net apply
1o these loans.

For further information on loans, see Note &

Tromsfers of Financial Asceis

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when the
Firm has relinquished control over the transferred assets. Any
felated gamn ar loss onsale 13 recorded m Netrevenues, Translers
that ane not accounted for as sales are treated as collmeralzed
financmgs, Secunties borrowed of parchased under agreemerits
to resell and securities loaned or sold under agrecments to
repurchase are treated as collateralized financings (see Note T).

Securities purchased under apreements 1o resell Creverse
repurchase agreements ) and Securities sold under agreements
to repurchase (“repurchase agreements™) are camied in the
balance sheets at the amount of cash paid or received, phes
acerued nterest, excepl for certwin feverse repurchase and
repurchase agreements for which the Firm has elected the fair
value option (see Note 4) Where appropriate, repurchase
agrecments and reverse repurchase agreements with the same
counterparty are reporied on @ net basis. Secunties borrowed
and secunities leaned are recorded wt the amount of cash
collateral advanced or recewved

In instances where the Firm iz the lender in secunties-for-
secunties transactions and 15 permitted o sell or repledge these
secunibies, the far valie of the collaterl recerved 15 reported in
Trading asscts, and the related obligation o retum the collateral
isreported in Trading liabalines inthe balance sheets. Secunities-
for-secunties transactions where the Firm s the borrower are
not meluded in the balance sheels

Premises, Equipmeni and Software Costs

Premises, equiptent and softvare costs consist of baldings,
leaschold mprovements, fumiture, fixtures, computer and
communications equipment, power generation assets and
software (extemnally purchased and developed for intemsal use).
Premises, equipment and software costs are stated at cost less
aceumulated depreciation and amortization and are included in
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Other assets in the balance sheets Depreciation and
amartization are provided by the strnght-line methed over the
estimated uselul Iife of the asset.

Estimated Usaful Lives of Assals

i yuarn Estimutad Ueeiul Lifs
Bednrgs 1
Lakaih s il ti—ELilsng i of leass b 25
Lagiahold mprormmen s—Othar tmm of lease o 16
Furriture and fxiures ¥
Compuier and conmuricasions squipmaen I
Powwisl pENBmMELN Buses 16 o 20
Sofwire oI 2w

Premises, equipment and software costs are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
suggest thal an asset’s carrving value may not be fully
recoverable,

Coadwill and Intangible Asscis

The Firm tests goodwill for impairment on an annual basis and
om an interim basts when certain ¢venls or Circumsknces exist
The Firm tests goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit
level, which is generally at the level of or one level below s
business segments. For both the annual and interem tests, the
Firm has the option to either (i) perform a guaiifams
impawrment test o (1) firsd perform & gualitative assessment 1o
determine whether it is more hkely than not that the fair value
of a reporting unit is less than its camying amount, in which case
the quantitative test would be performed.

When performing o guerrfitative imparment test, the Firm
compares the fair value of a reporting wmit with its carrying
amount, including goodwill If the fair value of the reporting
unit s less than its camrying amount, the goodwill impaiment
loss 15 equal to the excess of the carmving value over the far
value, limited to the carmyimg amount of goodwill allocated 1o
that reporting unt.

The estimated fair values of the reporting unats are derivesd based
on valuation techniques the Firm believes market participants
would use for each respective reporting unit. The estimated fair
values are generally determined by utilizing a descounted cash
Mow methodelogy or methodologies that incorporate price-lo-
book and price-to-carmngs multples of centmn comparable
cOmpnies.

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated wseful lives
and are reviewed for impairment on an interim basis when
imparment mdicators are presenl Impairment losses wre
recorded within Other expenses in the income statements.

Earnings per Common Share

Basic EPS 15 computed by divading eamnings available to Morpan
Stanley common sharcholders by the weighted average number
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of common shares outstanding for the period. Earnings avaibable
to Mongan Stanley common shareholders represents net income
applicable to Morpan Stanley reduced by prefemed stock
dividends. Commaon shares outstanding include common stock
and vested R3Us where recipients have satisfied enher the
explicit vestng terms or retirement-eligibality requirements.
Dilsted EPS reflects the esumed conversion of all dilunve
securities,

Share-based awards that pay dividend eguivalents subject 1o
vesting are included in diluted shares outstanding (if dilutive)
under the treasurny stock method.

The Furm has granted PSUs that vest and convert to shares of
common stock only if predetermined performance and market
geals are satisfied. Simce the issuance of the shanes 15 contingent
upon lhe satsfaction of certam conditons, the PSUs are
included mn diluted EPS based on the number of shares (if any)
that would be issuable i the end of the reporting period was the
end of the contingency period,

For further information on diluted earnmgs (loss) per common
share, see Note 16 to the financial staitements

Deferred Compensation
Stock-Based Compensation

The Firm measwres compensation expense for stock-hased
awards at feer value. The Firm determines the fair value of R5Us
(including F5Us with non-market performance conditions)
based on the gram-date fairvalue of its common stock, measured
a5 the volume-weighted avernge price on the date of gramt
(VWAP™) The fuir vabee of RSUs not entitled 1o dividends
until comversion 15 measured at VWAF reduced by the present
value of dividends expected to be pard on the underlying shares
price to schedubed conversion date. PSUs that contain market-
based conditions are valued wing a Monte Carlo valwtion
madel.

Compensation expense is recognized over the relevant vesting
pericd for each separate westing poriion of the award.
Compensation expense for awards with performance conditions
15 recognized based on the probable cutcome of the performance
condition st each reporting date. Compensation expense for
awards with market-hased conditions is rr:m-gmmd reapective
of the probability of the markel condition bemg achieved and is
net reversed 1f the marketl condition 15 not met. The Firm
aceounts for forfeitures as they ocour

Stock-based  awards  generally  contun claw  back  and
cancellation provisions. Certain awards provide the Fim
diseretion 1o claw back or cancel all or a portion of the award
under specified circumstances. Compensation expense [or thoae
awards iz adjusted for changes i the fagr vabse of the Firm's
common stock or the relevant model valuation, as appropriate,
until conversion, exercise of expiration.
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Employee Stock Trusts

In connection with certiun stock-based compensation plans, the
Firm, a1 iis discretion, has established employvee stock trusts 1o
provide common stock voting rights to certain employees who
hold cutstanding RSUs. The assets of the employes stock trusts
are consolidated with those of the Firm and are generally
acoounted for in a manner similar to treasury stock, where the
shares of common stock cutstanding reported in Common stock
iasued 1o employes stock trusts are offset by an equal amount
reported in Emplovee stock trusts in the balance sheets.

The Fim uses the grant-date farr value of stock-based
compensation as the basis for recognition of the assets in the
emplovee stock trusts. Subsequent changes in the fair value sre
net recogmized as the Firm's stock-bused compensation plans
miust be settled by delivery of 3 fixed number of shares of the

Firm"s common stock.

Deferred Cash-Based Compensatton

Compensation expense for deferred cash-based compensation
plans is calculated based on the notional value of the award
granted, adjusted for changes in the fair value of the referenced
investments that emplovees select Compensation expense is
recognized over the relevant vesting period for each separate
vestng portion of deferred awards. Compensation expense for
these awards 1s adjusted based on nottonal camings of the
referenced investments unfil distribution.

The Firm invests directly, as aprincipal, in financial mstrum ents
orother investmentstocconomically hedge itsobligations under
its deferred cash-based compensation plans. Changes in the
value of such invesiments made by the Firm are recorded in
Trading revenues and Investments revenues. Although changes
incompensation expense resulting from changes inthe Bairvalue
of the referenced investments will general v be offet by changes
in the fair value of investments made by the Firm, there is
tvpacally atiming difference between the imm edinte recognition
of gains and losses on the Firm's investments and the deferred
recognition of the related compensation expense over the
vesting period

Retirement-Eligible Employee Compensation

For year-end stock-based awards and deferred cash-based
com pensation awards anticipated to be granted to retirement-
cligible emplovees under award terms that do not conlam 4
future service requirement, the Firm accrues the estimated cost
of the awards over the course of the calendar vear preceding the
prant date, which reflects the peried over which the
o pensation 15 eamed.

ol
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Carried Interest Compensation

The Firm generally recopnizes compensslion expense oo any
portion of carmed mierest (both realized and unrealized) that is
allocated to emplovees. For information on performance-hased
fees in the form of carried interest, which are directly related 1o
comied interest compensation, see “Revenuwe Recognition
Carried Interest™ herein

Income Taxes

Deferved 1 assets and liabilities are recorded based upon the
temporary differences between the [nancial statement and
mneome tx bases of assets and liabilities wing currently enacted
taxe rates in effect for the year in which the differences are
expected to reverse, The effect of a change @ oy rales on
deferred tax assets and habilites is recogmized moncome tax
expense (benefit) i the period that inchedes the enactment date.
Such effects are recorded in income tax expense (benefith from
continumng operations regardbess of where deferred taxes were
origmally recorded

The Firm recognizes net deferred tax assets to the extent that it
believes these assets are moge likely than not to be realized. In
making such a determination, the Firm consrders all avalable
posiive and negative evidénce, meluding fulure reversals of
extsting taxable temporary differences, propected future taxable
income, tax planning strategies and resulis of recent operations.
When performing the assessment, the Firm considers all tvpes
of deferred tax assels in combination with each other, regardless
of the ongin of the underlving temporary difference. [fadeferred
tax asset isdetermined to be wirealizable, a valuation allowance
is established. If the Firm subsequently determines that it would
be able 1o realize deferred tax assets in excess of their nel
recorded amount, 1t would make an adjustment to the deferred
fax asselvaluationallowance, which would reduce the provision
Tor mcome s

The Fim recogmzes tax expense associated with GILTI
included mthe Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“Tax Act™pas it is incurred
as part of the current income taxes to be paid or refunded for the
current period.

Uncertain tax posations are recorded on the basis of a two-step
process, whereby (1) the Firm determines whether # 15 more
likely than not that the tax positions will be sustamed on the
bwasis of the technical merits of the position and (1) for these
posiionsthat meet thisthresheld, the Firm recognizes the largest
amount of tax benefit that s mose hkely than not 10 be realized
upon ultmate seitlervent with the related tax authonty. Interest
and penalties related o unrecognized tax benelits are recognized
asa component of the provision for income taxes.

Foreign Currencies

Aszets and liabilities of operstions with son-US, dollar
functional currencacs are translated at vear-end rates of
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exchange. Gaing of bosees resulting from tramslating foreign
currensy fmancml statemenits, net of hedie gains or losses amd
related tax effects. are rellected n ACCT m the balance sheets.
Gamns or losses resulting from remeasurement of foreign
currency transactions are ineluded in net income, and amouts
recognized in the mcome statement are iranslated at the rate of
exchange an the respective dite of recognition for each amaount.

Accounting Updates Adopted in 2019

See Mote 16 for a summary of the Retamed earmings impact of
these adoplions.

Leases

Upen the adoption of Leases the Firm began recopniang in the
balance sheet leases with terms exceeding one vear as nght-of-
use (“ROU™) asseis and corresponding Liabilities. The adoption
resulted i an increase 1o Betained earnmmgs of approximately
563 milbion, net of e, rebated to deferred revemse from
previously recorded sale-leaseback transactions. Al transiion
on January 1, 2019, the adoption also resulted in & balance sheet
gross-up of approximately 54 billion reflected in Other assets
and Other liabilities and accrued expenses. See Note [ o lease
disclosures, inchading amounts reflected in the December 31,
2019 balance sheet. Prior period amounts were not restated.

Asallowed by the guidance, the Firm elected ot 1o reassess the
followmg at transition: whether existing coniracts are or conlin
leases, and for existing leases, lease classification and mitial
direct costs. In addition, the Fum continues to account for
existing land easements as service contracts

Bioth at transition and for new leases thereafter, ROLU assets and
lease lisbilities are mitally recopmized based on the present
value of the future mmimum lease payments over the lease term,
including non-lease components such as fixed commen area
maintenance costs and other fixed cosis such as real estate taxes
and insurance.

The discount rates used in determining the present vatue of
leases are the Fim's incremental borrowing rates, developed
based uponeach lease s term and currency of payment. The lease
term i ludes oplions 1o extend or lerminate the lease when it
ia reasonably certain that the Firm wall exercise that option. For
operating beases, the ROU assets also include any prepaid lease
payments and imtial direct costs incurred and are reduced by
lease incentives. For these leascs, lease expense s recogmzed
on 4 straight-line basis over the lease term af the ROAT asset has
not been impatred or abandoned

Derivatives and Hedging (ASU 2018-16)

The amendments i this updste permit use of the O3 rate based
on the Secured Overmght Financing Rate asa U S, benchmark
interest rate for hedge accounting purpeses. The Firm adopted
this update on a prospective basis for qualifying new or
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redesignated hedging relatioaships. This update dad not impact
the Firm's pre-existing hedges.

Aecounting Update Adopied in 2015

See Mate 16 for a summary of the Retaned eamings impact of
thas adoplion

Revenue Recognition

The Firm adopted Revenues from Contracts with Customers
wsing the modified retrospective method Our revenue
recognition policies are reflective of this update since adoption,
while 2017 revenues and expenses remain as presented under
the prior accoamting policy

The more senificant differences to the accounting policy In
place prior to adoption were: (1) the presentation of certain costs
related to underwniting and advisory activities in that such costs
were recorded met of [nvestment Banking revenues versus the
curreni practice of recording the cosis i the relevant non-
com pensation expense line tem; (i) the presentation of certain
costs related to the selling and distribution of investment funds
in that such costs were reconded net of Asset Management
revenues versus the cumment practice of recording the costs in the
relevant non-compensation expense lme tem; {(ur) the
recogrition of certain performance-based fees [rom  fund
management activities not in the form of camed interest that
were recogrized quarterly versus the current practice of
deferrmg the revenues until the fees are nol probable of a
sigmificant reversal, and; (i) the tming of the recogmation of
advisory fees in that such fees were recorded when realizable
verse the current practice of recogmizing the fees as advice is
provided to the elient, based on the estmated progrress of work
and when the revenue is not probable of a ssgnificant reversal.
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3. Fair Values
Recurring Fair Value Measurements
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Falr Value on a Recurring
Basis
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Morgan Stanley

Valuation Hisrarchy
Classilication

L5, Treasury and Agency Securilias
L& Treasury Securnlies
= Fanr value i3 delasrnned wirg quobad nddel prices
L5, Agamey Sacunlies
+Nnr1-|‘.'.\ll.nb1- RETOT B ] mh-umg—mllrwhﬂmﬂgmﬂmﬂmhlpﬂm and callabla
bl Saounibies ane valuad hy benchmarong modal-darived prices to quated markal prices

md trndnmlafwm'rwnhu
= The fiar value of agency momgage M*h'ﬂumm Becuribies it model-driven based on apreads of
cuibas.

ﬂ:ﬂ'&‘ﬂﬂﬂ Io-ba-anrouncad 8
= CMOs ans ganarally valued usting qualsd mirksl prices and bate dals sdusbed by subsquent changas
in rélated mdioas for mﬁwﬁ inglrumants

Other Soversign Govemment Obligations

= Fair wathes i dedermingd using quoted prices in achive markets when avalable. Wiannot aailable, quobad
EmnMImmm are umad, In the absence of posilion-specific qualed prcas. Trir vl mavy
determinad fhrough banchmanong from comgparable instuments.

Sate and Mureopal Smnhﬁa

= Fair vabkos 8 delermned recanlly enaculed iranaaciions, markal prce qualalions of prcing modeds
that faclor in, whire applicabls, inlersst rles, bond or CDS sproads, adusied for any basis difarence
bsibwesnin caesh aned dierabv matrumants.

RMES, MBS, ABS (collectively known as Morigage- and Assal-backed secunties ("MABS"))

= Movigage- and assel-backed secunies may be valuad based on prce or spread data chianed from
v urmn?uunmuﬂmlﬂm peartas ﬂ'?:l? mrﬂ:‘ Drbrd. :

= When posifion-spacific axbamal peick data ans nol obsers ¢ vl dalerianaition My regune
barchmarking b comparaile instrumaents. andor ana iupeciad cradit lossis, defaull and mcovery
radas, andior applying discounled cash low lachnigues, avaluating the comparable insinuments
for wea iy e vaRURNON of @ach securily, ummwmmmmmmmlmnﬁ,
crachl enhancement laveis, lype of collataral, delinquancy rates and Ioss &

aticbon, I'nrRhBdeml'm FICD seoced and (he level of documaniaton foe @a loan ane cordedensd

-Mlﬂmﬂn‘dmﬂlﬁmmnm&yhuhﬂhmnﬂﬂmmﬁcmllmﬂmammh

Ao Silnucure of aach ransaschon Kay inputs bo thede models are markel spoeads. Trscastad cradit

Imumaﬂdﬂmwdg;omnmtmhrmasmmm

abuabon levels of and CMBS indices ars usad ag An acdtonal data poind for benchmarking

PRIMPORES OF b Proe oulright nce s POSIsnE,

Loans and Lending Comembments
-Fru#mdmﬂlnﬂuwmngm-ummmm ksl o uol afans
mﬂqm}.nﬁmwmmm. mmmmcusmlmmu

indopandent aalemal parties adusted for basis diferénce batwasn cash and danwlive
ith i aluation nm;alu and delmdl recovery analysis whare such

Irasaadchons fuolabonsg &a uiohasnrabla.
= Far wvalus of conbripent corporats lendng cmmilments is W me.rbﬂ ek el
Iixaris ard T anbop ated fiadsd price Baged o pici iabe Banbks
ﬁdmw Thits withsitian af laans ard [Bndiry amuriteants alia |mmﬂ s el

15 considared an atinbute of e contract,
= Fair vakie of morigape loans i delermined using obsarvable prices based on ransactonal data or Lhid-
party pmngfmmmbla inslnumants. when avadable,
on-apeciic axbamal prices am nol ohasreabla, lair vabus i estimated based on benchmarking
o prices &nd rales obsarvad m ihe primacy muhrmwhmwbmrhmnnrhmdmhe
prament wiles of axpected fubes cash fAows wing Ba Frm's bast avslsble asSmaies of e iy
msmp‘bnru Hﬂwrg'fnmmdmh . propayrimnt rabes, foreard ysld curoes and discount
rals Commensuniba wﬁhnukulmdmwamﬂuddnwhﬂuﬁw thea :aplﬂ:mmmmdcmﬂ
sprands. of recent comparabls secunitizaton ransactions,
-Fumnr%wlmmmhdmﬁ Tuturs inlens sl cash Nows, nel of estimatad
aredd lossan are darived by chiadang b markal chserdalia CD3
spraads, inmplied debl yields or wolalilibe relncs of the bawn callabiral

Corparata and Othar Dtk

Carporate Bana's

= Fair value ts determined using recantly axecuted ansacions, markal price qualations, bond sprearts
and COS spreads oblasnad from independent exlamal paties, sech 83 vendors and brokers, adjusted
fer any basis cdillarancs beteasn cash and dénvalive msrumants

= Tha sipread diati used are for the same mahrily 34 the band I the spread data do nal reference tha
issusir, thisn data that ralerancs comparsble stus ane used, When posiion-specific axiemal price dala
ara ol chsarvable, far value is detarmined based on ssthar ban i 1o comparabie insliruments
o eaah fow models with yiald curves, band of sngle-name COS apresda and recovery rales as sigrficant
IM.

o8
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* Laval 1

* Leval 1 - pn-this-run agency
insund dabl securitieg il actvaly
radad and inpuls are obmarvable
* Ganenally Lavel 2 - all ofhar

aclively iradid and inputs drs

ctvsrvakil

s Larpid 3 = il‘_l'l_'im'\nl'llri th
rading actty i kmiled or inputs
ana unobarvable

« Generally Laved 1
= Lenvinl 2 = il e mwkonl is bans
atlive or prices ane

« Leval 3 - in mstances whera the
peices ane unabsarvabie

= Genaally Laved 2 - if value based
on observaile makal dals lor
comganable instumants

* Larval 3 in instancas whata
markat datla s nol ohsaryabla

» Genanally Level 2 - if value based
on abaeraile markal data for
campatabla insluments
leﬂj. il odnrnal prices or
mgnlil:mlﬁnnd-ahan

m?mabrhvﬂml
e Bigreficant subjactivly
redaled b proparty bype
cifferenicas, cash Nows,

pitrfarnance or ather inpubs

= Laval 2 - Il valus basad on
citvsarvabila Lkt for

pricas or sigrefcant spraad inpuls
Bra unolisanvable

« Gansrally Lavel 2 - if value based
on obsareabla markel dala for
comparatie inslrumants

= Lewal 3 - i nalances wisare phcas
or sagraficant spread inpuls e
unghsanyabls
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Morgan Stanley

Valuation Hisvarchy
Clasaification

coo

= Tiheas Fienn it casin CO0s thal typically relenance & ranche of an undarlying arl‘m‘bc portiohio w-
raime CDS spreads collat by carparata bands {CLN) or cash portialio aTAB S Aaans [ asset-b acked
COOs"),
th‘.\mh!m a rrw\ru‘pl.rlmd!ndﬂl!mu— th fir vahai of CLMS, i usually unchsersabia and
driwid tnchriqua, Other modied inpuis such as credi spreads, including collateral
apraads, 8 mlamal rades are lypncalty chsereable,

= Agapt-hacked COOR are valued based onan evaluation of U kel and modsl inpul paranmeler sourced
froen conparable indtruments as indicated by markel actvity. Each assal-backed CDO posbon i
evalualad indapendently Laking inlo consideraion available comparable markel levels, widarying
collateral parfomianee and pricng, deal slructures and Boquidity

Corporate Equitas
Saced.

= Exchange -iraded edqui Bacuriles G araly valued hased on qualed prces from the exchange. To

the xtent these securilies e valuaton aduabmeants s nol applied.
= Unliabed sty Secwibas ars ga mmmmum al each security, mﬂmg
rounds of financing and third-party ransactions, discounted cash flow anatyses and marked-basa

irﬁﬂﬂaﬁmmhﬂﬂg comparable ransactions, radng multiphes and changes in mareal cufook,

-Llal.l-d fund wuls are penanall rnaﬂcadh:l Ihe exchange-traded price i aclvaly tradad. or NAY if nat
Undisbad hend uﬂsamgammlz:y ta HAY

Drivative and Other Conlracts
Listed Darivatve Contracls

= Likesd dhérvvalives thal ar aclively raded ane valuad based on quabed priced fram he axchanga
= Lufilesil cderiviatnegd thal and ol actrealy irdissd an vaheed using he same achreiued 88 thoda wlﬁdh
OTC desivativid 38 foled balonw.

OTC Davivalive Condracts

= OTC darivalive contracts include forward, swap and oplon contracts ramudmmrmms foreign
currencies, cradil akandi nrmrm enliies, aipuily pRoAs of commadily prce
mdhmm e T wlibundl ﬂ'l'{:dni-.rump'ﬂﬂ.ﬂmn

= Degiending an T prod

] amuarmmﬂ mcluding clossd-lom analybc formutas, such s the Black-
Seholak opsa ing madsl, smulaion models of & combmation thersal. Many p medis da rot
ental maldninl subjeciivity a8 tha mathodalogas smployed do nol necissstab judgrnant since

madal inpula may be obssrved fom acivaly guoled markets, & ie the case for pananc intereal rale
mm&m;mmmmww m;nmmwommm and cartaan COS. In tha case of

\atirahad i procucts, the prcng models used by the Fam are witely acceplad by the
firancal saracas inhasiry.

= Mora conplax OTC deivalive products ane bypically less liquid and requine mona j-ldnﬂwn! in !'1-

implermantalion af the valualion echniqua since trading activity or quolss are
includias carlain al infaresd rata denvalives wath bath voladlity and coralalion ﬂmmﬁ
wmm{!hrnrh mwduwahwnl-alwnhrhur—dahdvmgwh

[,-'.ga and eradit desreatives, Mning Oy G L mﬂigage—n*sun{-haﬂaad sabiarilies and
baskal COS. m'nmmqw-ndmaunu I, redationships bo obasraabds dabs poinks, batad an
:-:Indcsaﬂw o absarvaions, mh-nﬂw-ﬂanﬂmmumuhmﬁdmﬂ

Faor furthir information on the valuation lechniques for OTC derivalive products, see Nala 2

IFrvarddribants

= Irnves irnents nclude direct ifvesiments in agquily Securilies. a3 wall a8 vancus investmsant m
funets, which inciud irvestnents mada inconnedion with :auhnma:h,ua defermad compensation plans
+ Exchange-raded drecl sqety swesimanis sre generally valued based on quobed prces from the

exchangs
= For direct investmenis, ikally, the ransackon price B genarally considered by the Firm a8 the el price
g i 1ls besl estimate of ter value

" AR Baiia B EL SRtievaly CniIing Y 1R of B R e by e re) Avavaont 1B
g in gesnarally s rrung-r ta b
tha bast estmata of fir value, These ivvestments am ncledsd in the Fund whﬂll'rlhi'hlll

fusnal Value
= For nones:
walug afer inikal recogeibon & Based mmmldmmﬂmﬂm ineealrnent,

rounds of financing and trandactions, discounted cash Now analyses and markel-base

Marasunemanls” section harsin,

* Levil 2 - whan addher comparable

= Lenval

markal ransachions are
ohsarvabik, ar eredil cofrelaion

i L.dininmﬁ:m

Laval 3 n isthar comparabla
markal Fansactions are
unahsaryabla. o the cradi

camalabion ingul i ssprificant

L‘ﬂn:naHy Lawad 1 - axchange-
Sacubas and fond units o
ﬁ tradad

sl
Fraded, or
B anndnd

sacurilies il nol acvl
il g ciryg & riscinl

Laval 1 - isted denvalives thal ana
ail raced

* Leval & - hated devivalives thal ae

rid vty radad

Genarally Lawal 2 - OTC

darivative pracucts valuad using

ohaervabls inguls, of whers e

unobseny able ingul i3 nol deenad
ificant

= Lawval 3 - OTC dérivalive products

traded nvesiments sther hedd drectly or held withen intemally managad funds, fair ©

fiar which the unobisarnsable input
is deamad significant

anil furds whiers rounds

infarmation, indudng comparable Firm ransactons, irading andtipes and changes in
arnang other faclon

Physical Commodiies
= The Frrm rades vanous physical commodies, inc
&mﬁl@

raabural gad ard pracious melds
= Fair vidlue i dalémmined whing obdery abie inpu

broker quatabicns ard pubbahed indices.
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Morgan Stanley

Valuation Hierarchy
Clasaification

Irvastment Sacurilies —AFS Secunbies

= AFS securilies are composed of US. government and agency secuites (e.g. LS. Tre RECUNBAS,
agency-issuad debl, agency morgige pua.-hm.gh securilies and ChOs), CMBS, ABS, state and
muricpal secunfes, and corpormba bords

Far further infonmation on the determenaton of fair value, refer to the comaspanding assatBability Waluation
Techriqus described harein for fe san insluments.
Dapoaiis
Carificains of Daposi
= Tha Firm issiuees FOHC -insuned cartficatis of daposil thal pay sither foad coupans ar thathave my
terms lirked 1o e perfarmance of debl or sty secuntes, indices or currancies. Thae fair valus of these
cerbhcates of deposd is dedermined uaing valuation models thatincomsocate obaarvabie inputs nelenandn g
idenbeal of cormparable securibes, inckiding prices 1o which the daposils ara linked, inlenast rate yal

curvirs, op bon volablty and curtency rales, equity prces, and Uhe impact of tha Firn's own oradil spreada,
axdjusted for this impact of the FOIC nsuranca, which is basad on varilla deposil issuanos rabis,

Sacurities Purchased under Agrasrmants o Resell and Seourities Sold under Agréemants to Repurchasa

-Fﬁrﬂmnmﬂnﬂdmnﬂaﬂmﬂarﬂmﬂﬂmﬂ mahodoogy.

= The inputs 1o the vahsabion induda conl il cagh Mo collaterd nding spreads, which ana the
incresmanlal apread e Lhe OIS rade for & speahs collaleral rate {which refers 10 the rale spplicable 1o
a spociiic hpe of asourily pledged as callateral),

Cither Secured Finandings

= Oher sacured financ mmmmﬂmmmmumau{ amamhn awmanla
b repunchase commodilies, e iabikbes reladed 1o asdea of enckng comeTitments
secaunted for 58 financags, and contracts which ane not dasaified as OTC mmammlﬂ
reed irmestmanl crilana.

For furthar information on the determination of valuation hierarchy dassificalion, ses tha comesponding
Valuation Hierarchy Classification descried hanen
Barrowings
= The Firmn camias carlam borowings al Tar value which ame primanly composed of melruments wivaes
payments and redemplion values are linked 1o the pedormancs of 3 Spacific indes, a baskel of slocks, a
spacific aquity secunty, a comenodity, a credi! axposure or baskel of creds eposures; and inslruments
with various inleresl-rale-redabed lealures induding slep-ups, step-downs. and Zem CoUpOnS
= Faur vabue 15 catermined usng valuation madals far the denvalive and dabl pertions. af the instruments
Thase madels incomporale obeervable inpuls rederencing idanbical or comparable secunbes. including
prici o which the instrements ane hried, interes) rabe yieid curvas. oplion valalifly and cusrency rales,
nd commodity or equity prices
= Indégréandent, dxlimial ar'ndtmdld pricas ara congidered as wll as ibe impact of the Fimi's own onedil
spraads which ane basad on chsarved secondary bond markel sproads.

o7
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» For further nformaton on he

» Generally Lavel 2

= Lavel 3 - in instanoss whers he
unabaireiabibe inpul is desmed
significant

 Gandrally Lavel 2

* For furihar informaion on the
disterminaton of valuaton
rearaschy classification, aa-a thi
coraapanding Valuatio
memmtmdmm
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Roliforward of Level 3 Assets and Liabilitios Moasured at Faic . B oBEE SR
Value on a Recurring Basis © o
Fp—— e e 2o Baginning balance %3 Iz 4
U3, Treuiury and soanty secariies Rpakres 402 Lerapkeed Gains (kssss) i ] (Bl
Baginning balancs 5 5§ -5 74 Prsckariam a2 3 173
Raakres ard Loreskesd gains Joasas) 4 ' i Bates () e e
[ora— a7 3 B Nt rarstsrs 248 43 233
alas (=41 —  qD) Ending baluros $ WS 55 66
Hut imnses 1 - 167 Unrgsitrad paing (ossas) 5 14 " s 1]
Ercing balarce 3 23 g 14 Fh Investments
Unreakirea gains {lossen} S 4 5 1 % e Bagnring bk $ yar 5 1020 & osd
[ p——— T Reakoes anaurmaizes gains (osses) noogs
Beginning balancs § s 15 ] Purchass 40 149 12
Raakred ard urreskred gains (lossas) 3] - — Sl (L41] [Fd i ELEA]
Purthasss H m = Setlamants - - 8y
Zabes 1 135 o Nt rarstes M 175} i
el tansters (e 1 i Encing balanoe 858 5 AT 5 1020
Ering; balarcs 3 5% W% 1 Unrasalirad gees flneni} $ B S 2%
Urreakired geins {nsshs) Y e - = Nat dedvathves: Intersst rato
”ﬁ;’.;,";;’a;i".;;,;‘ B Beginring bulanos 5 AR § 1218 § 420
Baginring Balance § 48 % 4% b Rnalzed and Lrosalred gains (ases) ir 11 322
Raakrea srd crreskeed gains (josses) - -— 3 Potrhrise 1] fo] i
Puech _ — A [T, (16 {15} {18
Bl (147] 1] (i Eatlamants 1 (177 608
il wansiens - 2 qsey Hat trarutory L -
Ering balercn $ 1% 148 % 8 Ening baluncs $ TTTE AR E 1200
Unmakired gains (loisss) 1 — % — 8 = Unreabified gairs (kiseg} 5 BT § 0 5 a4
Ty Mt darvathoes: Crodit
Bagirring balance § Mg am s T Baginning balance $ 405 41 %
Raakred ard prosskreg gains (osses) (1€] -3 a7 Rakzed and Lrovslred gains (ases) i24] n 1435
132 L Fi] 280 Pt 144 13 -
(s e {188 Iunnces (180) B8} [EH
(441 FLEL] (ar Eariamants 111 -} A58
17 = fin bl e A SV
$ 45 a5 4 Ersing halancs $ 124 3 a0 % 41
Unmakred gains {lossas) 3 Ns s n  Mneealed peiesibeser) LI Ly £ ST S
Loans snd bnding commitmsnts ot derdvathvies; Forslgn axcharg
Bagwrrieg balares $ B0 5 sEdE S BOZ2 Beginning balanos I L T L
Ruskred #nd uorasloed gart [ " 2 {906 182 Feakzed ard urreskred gains (losses) {205 179 {108
Purchasas 23T Bi4E 3616 Prtcharian 1 3 -
Sdtlus, i1.088] (25300 {1.581) lesuances — (1} i
Sariemanty (] (RIEG (1463 Setlamants 7 2 a
e} wnnsins {13 0 a0 . L e & 0
Ercing balarce § 5073 5§ GE/0 5 5546 Ending balencs s L AT
Unmeakred gains (losssa) 3 @5 (1355 13 Urrealirad gars (kssas) $ (1M 5 a5 fLE]
Corporats and ctbaer debt et dervatives: Equity
Bagwring balarcs EIRTE I ST Baginning butance S 14855 1208 5 164
Faalkned ard reaskee gaires ( e 06 I Fimalized ard creesized gains (losses) (260) e 136
Porthasas £5 74 487 165 Ee i,
Cnlen (I I ) [LTE TR T ST+
Setlamants Mmoo i 2 T4 06
WAl yansas [ F] |20y a8 o7 [2255) 28
Ersing balarce $ 1,996 5 106 § 700 3 (6B 5 148815 1204
Unmsakzed gains {losses) 3 38 5 ms Unreakrad gairs {lossas} § (1945 211§ 168
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Morgan Stanley

in the previous tables do not reflect the related realized and

P He 1B N7
Wt derivatives: Commodity and ather unrealized gains (losses) on hedgmg mstruments that have been
Becarrerg balarce § 2053 5 1448 3 1600 classified by the Firm withan the Level | andor Level 2
Rankres ara Leraedres gains (losiss) 3 S0 b calegories,
Prsckasns 15 B F
bstimsss @z qm n The unrealized gains (Josses) during the period for assets and
Beleriaits (1] @1 e liabilities within the Level 3 category may include changes in
[ 1 i @ fair value during the period that were attinbuiable to both
Ercing baiarce $ 1092 £ ez § 1Adb observable and unchservable inputs. Total realized and
Uririakend gk (ki) % (1§ =2 5 20 unrealized gains (losses) are prmarly included n Trading
Deposhs revenues in the income stalements,
m:mm“*ﬂ 2 :: : T::I 3 ‘: Additonally, in the previous tables, consolidations of VIEs are
WAL, " o P included m Purchases and deconsolidations of VIEs are included
Eraraae 1151 2 @ in Settlements
Hat trnsters 48 {35 (7
Encing balarce T s T3 4 Significant Unobservable Inputs Used in Recurring and
Unreakred losses (gains) : ) s 3 i urring Level 3 Fair Value Measurements
Nordervative traging |l bilies
irathanty 5 - _— » Valuation Techniquas and Unobservabla Inputs
Raakred ard urrsalzes knsses (gains) [31] 3] [ Balance | Ransga [Aeerage)
:M f ”::' 11:::' L At Desomber 31, 2618 At Db 31, 2018
Assats at Falr Value on a2 Recurrng Basls
Ma! mnstas 3 8 T4 U3, Tressury and
Ening balarce 3 35 B35 25 agency spturities 4 o3 "
ik o o' PP ;. SN 1 L S - PR
Securities sold under ag ia ko repurch 100 by 104 points.
Begirre balancs $ =5 I0% 140 ol pi, L 4100 peinks}
Seats and
IEsumnces = = 1 Wepaieif
Mol imnstars = 150) Fic 'm _ L] LI s
Erzing halurca s —5  —s5 150 byl oo i
Unreakied ares Gaini) T =% —3 = gl MM 94t 100 point) (9 poiin)
Ceher epcured financings o ' s s
Baginring balance s wes 20§ 4M Comparable pdcing
Reakres 4 Lereskees bsses (pairs) 5 199 25 Band prica © o 96 poieds (4T poamts] O io BT poinis (38 poins)
Baumncs = 8 & oo ¥ 3 o073 B BETA
Estlomanis ] ELEN] {261} IWargin o micsdsl
Hat imnsiers [21] 17 [Tk Ewcourd ras 1% b3 8% %] 1% ko T (TR
Encing balarce P @y 363 B Wokatlty sk 15% 1o B3 [28%] 1A% I S AN
Unraakend ke (gairs) ] s 5 & 28 Crndn Sgrnad 9 86 39 bps (18 bps) 1415 90 bps (36 bpe
Borrowings gt pricing
g o iy e loanpica  §910100 poiets (33 poists) 310 151 o (36 pori).
R —— et (28 s g S 2 u Lol
IssLARCes 1484 1,554 1088 “ther ot i 1288 B 1078
Garlemacty (9501 () gd2d) Companibla picing
Nabvaiabat P e Band prics 1110 108 poimts (24 poimts] 17 19 100 gsints (72 peints)
Ercing halarce 3 4085 5 D406 5 2084 Concoured caah S
Unakred kmses (Gams] $ 605 (w3 1A g b b ]
Porion of Urreslko losses (e el - oo, s
reenrdi in DOI—Chings v ra: 182 | Tt Otz el
A v iz

1, Gawing 2098, the Flm wansternd fom Lavel 3 5 Ll 2§24 billien of Doy sty % 4% i T 450

chom 151 1 ke tion in e pignFicancn of S anocbesreabls inputs dating

oy vkl
Level 3 instruments may be hedged with instnements classified
inLevel | and Level 2 The realized andunrealized gains (losses)
fior assets and liabilities within the Level 3 category presented
Drecember 2019 Form 10-K
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Balanes | fings {Serage'y Bslance | Risges |Svorage)
P At Decorber 31, 3010 Al Dacarribar 38, 2018 Ry AtDecomber 31, 3010 Al Dacarber 31, 2018
Coaporste oquities H gr & e Liabilties Measured st Frir Velio on § Recuring Basis
Comparabls pricieg Daposits ] 1 E Fid
Euily piica 108% 100 [irep—
levastments # [T ™ Al the monary
& ey valaibty 18% to 37 [20%] s
Othar setwned
L= B 17% (15%) e I 16% (10%) financings § 19 5 208
= Tio 16 times (1 bmes) 7o 10 e {15 ) Diczintad eash S
-~ Fuarifieg 4 A1 00 124 Bpa (11T bp) 1032 100 s (168 bps)
CBT0A rullipls T o 34 times (11 times) 1 34t {12 e Opfion modal
Companstia pricieg Viksity thew MM =
“-E-mltpﬁnl i TE b 100 (%) TE by 100% (RN Hu_ﬂﬁrf.?rm i T
B e § o s Bortowings L] 408 E S80H
Option mcdel '" s
1R wolafiley skew 2% 00 150% (BX% BIR) 2% In S5 (4N 1515 wkaity 5400 8% [21%] % o 3% {ZI%)
R cawe CEvP RO AT b DI [T { 1) MY Vedkility shw <%, 15 B8 firL 29 e (0%
Buandt veldiity £ b 1 (3% § 14%) WA Eguity temalation Yt B4 (TH) S5 1 B B
FX
:::m H‘ﬁwﬂ'\-m“‘:ﬂ* mwumu\.rdm:i Euaty - F: 7% 10 % %] TE o 5% I
— IR Comslalion MM BE D T (B T TR
st : R “ IR FX Cemslation 0%t B (TN AT 2E% R SE (SN 1 44N
- Honrecunin g Fas Vabes Mesiorosnt
v 8 rottantic
L i jpointy 10 9 poings {§ poanta) Loans ¥ 150 5 1360
Bond price D10 104 peodets [45 poasts) 015 75 points (26 prants) Canpormte ian modal
Crmt spread 940 460 bps (1 bps) 356 1o 408 bps (380 by} Cimat spomad B9 b5 406 bpa (29 bpa] 074434 bps (161 bps)
Funing spemact 47 b 117 byps (34 bps) 47 e 08 Bps {35 b Wintmbeuss model
Comslation rmodel Cemat nprat 207 b3 I8 bps (29T bps) 2060 01D bps (347 by
e conlatin. e WEolEE
Forsign eachasge’  § mi & fi- ?H—FHH-W of g
b F:_Fmgmmm
- FX el PG b SIG [ANY, VAR B s SO (A5 T EAR) 1. A dingin Mo is dedlcasd bor range bed Iremiage wheen Hem i no st
W arence betessn the meserm manmory and Senage Arounls epresent
R wolay skew 2% 0 190% (B3 BIA) 2% In S5 (4N 151N mh;“'wmm‘m‘““m¢“m“
IR casen T0% b0 T1% C10% £ 105 H 2 inchates devathon comtiscts with raitipts ks (L2, hybrid produets
= tam cdal ) it IO ] et i The previous tables provede information on the valuation
. k e B 11485 techniques, significant unobservable inputs, and the ranges and
:’:“' e avernges for cach major calegory of assets and habilities
oty 9% te I, [3E%) 179 Lo % {3E%) measured at fair value on a recumng and noarecurring basis
\elmiity semw 3%, e % (%) % 3 P 1% witha significant Level 3 balance. The level of aggregation and
Copsty comalation 3% 1o B0 (T % 1o 90% (1 breadth of products cause the range of inputs 1o be wide and not
FI comatation ST o 6% |- 3T%) £O% 1o 5% |-2H%) evenly distributed across the inventary of financial instruments,
R oo % b A (T N T i A5 (05 1 1% Further, the range of unobservable inputs may difler across firms
Cormicdity i 1 the Fmancial services madustry because of diversity imthe types
i B AME: D it of products included in each firm™s inventory. There are no
:‘F“ ":" predictable  relatonships  between  multiple  significant
ﬁ ™ $3t0 ¥IBE (R2E] per BB 5310 5185 (531] per W unobservable inputs attnbutable o a given valuation techmgue,
Cowmmadity valabty T4, b HRI% (Y TS s 187 {17%} ) R
——— Anincrease{decrease) tothe followimg ssgnificant unobservable
] A% v 0% (B % b e (BTN inputs would generally result in a higher (lower) fair value,

Dazcember 2019 Form 10-K
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instruments. Valuation wing comparable imnstruments can be
done by calculating an imphed vield (or spread over a Digquid
benchmark) from the price of a comparable bond or loan, then
adyusting that yield (or spread) to derve a valwe for the bond
of boan. The adjustment 1o vield (o spread) should account
for relevant differences in the bonds o loans such as matsity
of eredat quanlity. Altermmtively, a price-to-prce bass can be
assumed between the comparable instrument and the bond or
loan being valued in order to establish the value of the bond
of loan,

Comparabie ¢quity priee: Aprice derived from squity raises,
share huybacks and external bid levels, éte: A discount or
premium may be included in the fair value estimate

Certtingency probabiline: Probability assocmted with the
realczation of an underlying event wpon whach the value of an
assed Is contingent.

EBITOA muliiple / Exit praliiple: The ratio of Enerprise Value
1 EBITDA, where Emerprise Valwe 15 the agpregate valee of
equity and debt mimus cash and cash equivalents The
EBITDA multiple reflects the value of the company in terms
of its full-vear EBITDA, whereas the exit multipbe reflecis
the value of the company in terms of its full-vear expected
EBITDA at exit. Either multiple allows comparison between
companies from an operational perspective as the effect of
copital structure, tsation and deprecitionamoriization 1=
exchuded.

* Recovery rate: Amount expressed as a percentage of par that
is expected to be received when a credit event oceurs.

A nerense {decrease ) tothe follow ing sipnilicant unobservable
inputs would generally result in a lower (hugher) fair value.

* Cadrgyhenic bagys, The measure of the pnice differential
between cash financial instruments and their synthelic
denvative-based equivalents. The mange disclosed in the
previcus table sipnifies the number of pomts by which the
synthetic bond equivalent price is higher than the quoted price
of the underlying cash bonds.

Credil spread: The credst spread reflects the additional net
vield an investor can earn from a securtty with more eredit
rizk relative 1o one with less credit risk. The credit spread of
a particular secunty s often quoted m relatson to the yield on
a credit nsk-free benchmark secunty or reference rate,
typacally either U3, Treasury or LIBOR.

* Funding spread The cost of borrowmg defined as the
ncrementzl spread over the OIS rate for a specific collateral
rate (whach refers 1o the mie applicable to a speafic type of
securtty pledged as collateral).

WACC: WACT represents the theoretical rate of retum
required to debt and equity mvestors. The WACT 15 uwsed in
a discounted cash flow model that caleulates the value of the

101

equaty. The model azsumes that the cash fow assumplions,
insluding projections, are fully reflected inthe current equity
value, while the debt to equity ratio s held constant,

Anincrease (decrease) tothe following significant unohservable
anputs would generally result in an im pact to the fair value, bul
the magnitude and direction of the impact would depend on
whether the Firm 1s leng or short the exposure.

» Corvelaiion: A pricing nput where the payoll is driven by
more than one underlying risk. Comelation is a measure of
the relationshap between the movement of two vanables (i.e.,
how the change in one vanable mfluences a change in the
other varmahle).

= lnterest rate corve: The term structire of interest rtes
{retationship between imterest rates and the time to maturiy)
and a market’s measure of fubure interest rates at the time of
observation. An imerest mte curve 15 used 1o s¢1 mterest ratle
and foreign exchange derivative cash [lows and & a pricing
input used in the discounting of any OTC denvative cash flow,

Folatifine: The measure of vanability in possible returns for
an mstrument given how much thal wstrument changes in
value over time. Volatlity 15 4 pricing input for options and,
penerally, the lower the volaulity, the less nsky the option.
The level of volatility used in the valuation of a panticular
option depends on a rumber of feciors, meluding the nature
of the risk underlying that opiion, the tenor and the strike price
of the option

Volatifie siew: The measure of the difference in implied
vaolatility for options with identical underliersandexpiry dates
bt with different strilies

MNet Asset Value Measurements
Fund Interesis
At Becembar 14, 2018 A1 December 31 X8
a i

§ oy e cm Conumtimen] m Commbment
Privais squiy 5 20TE 8§ 45 & 1314 % ate
Raal ssimn 1,349 150 1,105 161
Hudga" - '] 03 4
Tatal 5 A5 § ] P 481

1. st n edige Sonch iy B solgect i mitlel parod lock e or gate puireniiam,
ki ol el o witheliaineg feom this o dusing o caee ietial peiod
o Msiniel e nederngtion arand oo iy isdarpiion dits neapeciely

Amounts in the previous toble represent the Firm's carrying
value of general and limited parinership interests in fund
investments, as well as any related performence-based fees in
the form of carmed interest. The camying amounts are measured
basedonthe NAV ol the fund taking into aceoamt the distnbutien
terms applicable 10 the interest held. This same measurement
applies whether the fund mvestmenits are sccounted for under
the equity method or Fur vabhse,
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FPrivate Equity.  Funds that pussue  multiple  strategies,
ingluding beveraged buyouts, venture capital, infrastruchare
grenvth capatal, distressed investments and mezzanine capital.
Imaddition, the funds may be structured with a focus on specitic
geographic regions.

Feal Estmte.  Funds that mvest in real estate assets such as
commercial office buildings, retail properties, mult-family
ressdential properties, developments or hotels. In addition, the
funds may be structured with 2 focus on specific geographac
regions

Investments in private equity and real estate funds genermlly are
net redeemable due o the closed-end nature of these funds

Instend, distributions from each fund will be received as the
undderlying investm emsolthe funds are disposed and monetized

Hedge. Funds thal pursue vanous investment stralegies,
including kang-short equity, Mxed income/credit, event-driven
and muli-sirategy.

See Note 13 for informastion reparding general partner
guarantees, which include potential obligations to returm
performance fee distribuions peevieusly received. See Note 21
for information regarding carried mierest at risk of reversal,

Honredepmable Funds by Contractual Maturity

Carrying Velus 5t Decamber 31, 7013

£ by nesiony Privats Egudty Rinal Exus

Lass thin & years ] 1,208 § 1,041
el e B2 202
Crvme 1 yor b1 ] 106
Tatal 5 2,078 § 1,343

Dazcember 2019 Form 10-K
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Morgan Stanley

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

Carrying and Fair Values
At Decambar 31, 2019

£ o e Lovmd 2 Lowved 3" Toal
Apnats

Loans 5 1,543 8 1,504 5 3,043
C!._h_lrnmu—muhuununu. HEl “_:. 13
Total $ M1 5 13 % 3,180
Liabdieles

Criver hahilies and soousd

spansas-—=_snding commimenis  § 1312 % 8% 3 2m
Tokal & 132 % a3 % 21

A1 Deosmhar 31, 2012

5 iy s LevelZ  Lewel3’ Tecal
Assois

Loans. -3 2:7 3 1080 § 3887
ke gvests—Oher mvsatmanty 14 LIE ] LAL ]
Tatal 5 238 1,480 5 3,80
Liabdiles

Cekar liabalties and alcrued

g Landing iearis 4 P 85 § ar

Total 5 o B: £ 57

1. Fer significant Leval ) talwncsn. refir i3 “Signifcant Unobseraabls ingputs |k in
FAsaEming s Morawomring Level 3 Fair Valss Messrsmanty” sachion hensin ion
detals of the signficanl ipchasrable inpuls Bad ‘or noeeorTng e ke
maugerE

Gains [Losses) from Fair Valee Remeasuremants’

3 iy i e 18 2017
Aszats
Loars” $ L 184 % t
Ocboar i s— Ol rosimants’ () [L-t] {68y
m;wﬁ—mmw

=g stwarne [P4] {45 126)
Tatal 5 (8 § (170 § i73)
Liabditjes
Ottar Rabsiies and aoorusd

rwm—Lmuh:nrmrmn’ § a7 5 48 5 s
Tord I a7 3 4% 5 "

1 Gawvs and losses for Losns snd Othes ssests-Offei awastments e clieaiiad in
Cfesr twems i 00 ofhe feme. gaire and Iosses aee reconed i Dfher nevenmss i
Hul o oy B o sl iy W i ey mp

2 Moawsowrreg changes in e fer valus o oo aed lendeng cormimsnts. wies

catmgory

undarlying coliaral and fof B held - Sor-uad camegory. baked on recenlly faecobac

mr-. il price quotitiorm walodtion model that Noporss macion

ot whers - be. pich an complicsble kean or debd prices e COS
wpriie] Mkls, st o iy Disid cHfnch bbtessn Cish W diahellhen
TR, B i Sl rccreiey Sty svieanm Siesh IRATRAStN 0 quslisar: M
unchaarvatie

3 LMMHMHM—MWMWMW

mmwummuwdmm
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Financial Instruments Not Measurad at Fair Value

Az Bocambar 1, 310
e Viliim

©a ——
'Umq Linetd 1 Liwsd2 Lol 3 Todsd
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Morgan Stanley

Al Decemtar 51, 218
Fair ol
cmm Liwend 1 L2 Ll 3 Tistml

1 o evlicen i i
Finsrncisl akacts Finaecisl annaty
Canh ancl cash squivalents Gt and canhs popsalents

Cash and tas ey Cash and dus oy

ks ¥ 47§ 4 F — §  — & 4 Barks W5 5308 5 = § M5
m FLE TR - = 48388 kmm 2008 M8 - — =g
Fiinsretud conh A ara = — ' Frendsrtacd canh W MR - — 33
e EAsIe e — R R

HTM 41532 306ET 12681 1 FTRE L] M WTIE AT 1L0E AT4 EREES
Bacuities puichasad ganchiad

ﬂmh .50 —  ETM 48 B2 el [ —  aE BEE 4T
Hanurties bomcesd 184,540 —  1045m — tedEm Senties bormyed 116,313 L L) - N2
Cutsmd il AT s i ot

mcevables 1134 — A AT s 47472 —  MEE  3ME 4TES
Laawn® 130,637 = 2393 10ROSE 430,352 [P 115570 — MBI ST
CHtsr ani 402 - it = o iy asats 481 fa F e i
Finaneisl iabadition Finamcial labiltics
Daposis § 1T § — $MEN § — HEEN Deposis 5 1ETIE S SHTAT 8 — AT
Sacuties sokl under e sold undes

mr‘ A48T -7 - Bl mm 48947 —  dgms B35 43510
Bazamdies kwnd 0506 — B3 — B st Eraned RLE-- = 1 L .
CHbar paciaesd fnancings (111 i [ BF Ea ey pcuresd Snancings & T - a@a aod o
Cunterre gnd ofmi Cuntorroer gl Sther

payaties 134,635 - TN T ] gl 178,561 — 178581 —  17E 561
Berntrwings 138,186 = 135 18 1117 Deaveraing 138,478 —  pes M35

Comimdment Commiment
Azt Amcand

Lﬁ.‘?‘mﬁ“= § 1M F —§ T4 13 B 1085 L::'r‘ri“’  foamad 5 - § 1248 § 31 5 1570

103

A A iy hckad, Coaiys
bk ipgraaiuatins Lk withu K7 Welda iRSinibles and papaties

2. e ko IS iRl 0 vBkin 00 & RO Dk

3 Lincha'n j o s -k oy (el aful Hisld foy

Sty Fosh i et S it oo Difuliei) S iliTainali, i Moda §3

The previous tables exclude cenan financial instruments such
as equity methed investments and all non-financial assets and
liabilitses such as the value of the long-term relationships with
the Firm's deposit customers

4, Fair Value Chption

The Firm has elecied the fair valwe eption for centain eligible
instruments that are risk managed on a fur value basys to mitigate
ncome statement volatilny cawed by measurement basis
differences between the elected instruments and their associated
risk management transactions of to eliminate complexities of
applving certain accounting models.
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Borrowings Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis Diffarance batween Contractual Principal and Fair Valua'
L] Al Ay A
Decembar 34, Dmoenibar 31, Docamber 31, Cracamber 31,
£ vt s M8 2008 # i sitens FL AL e
Busiress Unit Aesponsibie for Rizk Management Loans and oiher ek k1 13,037 & 13004
Ecnity | 30,24 % 24,404 Nonacenal ks’ 10,843 10,831
Iieces s 27,238 @ Bemowngs' inie3) L
SR e L% 1. Areousis indeats contstl principal o o (ks Boan} e vodom
A [ o B
Creah 1.246 456 & “That sy e s b, v Y i avicare e 4o
Fomign anchange 1202 ik oither debt relales i Jebi p dl ot wnll Bl pawr.
Total 3 AT 5 51164 3 Ewchades bomosings whens the mpayment of ihe indial prncipal smount luchsdes

Hot Revanues from Borrawings undar the Fair Value Gption

& iy iy 2018 018 2087
Trasding meverues § B9 5 ZA/M £ (480T)
Ieerns Sxpans ws az 443

ot ravenuss’
A At

;] ﬂ'lﬂu 5 iisa 3 (4060

1. Amounds o nof neiect anvy ga of losses. om relsled socnomes hedges

Gauns (losses) from changes m Gairvalue are recorded in Trading
revenues and are mainly attnbutable to movements i the
reference price or mde, interest rates of foreign exchange rates.

Gains [Losses) Dud to Changes in Instrurment-Spacific Craedit
Risk

Trasing
v Biierind i
2019
Booming $ (111 % [FRETH
Lo and ot ek’ 213 -
Lsnsirg cornmiineenis i —
Cehar - {30y
2
Boerowings: $ 24} 5 1062
Laars and ohar ek’ 165 -
Langirg commitmants. (e} —
Cehar (5] &1
iy .
Bommosings ¥ (2% 1903
Lairs and o debt’ 150 -
Langirg commiimants (¥4 —
Cehar - L
A ]
D e 31, Ix Ear 31

£ iy msigng mMe 200R
ﬁm:‘ﬂ'!nm-lu:ﬂ'ﬂl_

Rt metprizadin % {1,996 § 172

1 Losns accd piter dabt instnerant-specfic comll gakm (Iowsen | wars datsimined By
aachichng the non-cred components of gana and |osses

December 2009 Foan [0-K

104

Basad gn changes m & re'svencs prica o Index

The previous tables exclude nonerecourse debt  from
consolidated VIEs, liabilities related to transfers of financial
assels reated as collateralizred financings, pledged commaodities
and other labilities that have specified assets atnbutable 1o
them .

Fair Value Loans on Nonaccrual Status

L A
December 31, Diatembeer 31,
il | E— | R
Honacenal bars & 1400 % 1407
Honaocnal loans § or monms
s el dus k] 330 5 B2

&, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Firen trades and makes markets globally m listed futuses,
OTC  swaps, lorwards, options and other derwatives
referencing, among other things, inlereal mies, equities,
currencies, nvestment grade and non-investment  grade
corporate credits, leans, bonds, US and other soversign
securities, emerging market bonds and loans, credit indices,
ABS indices, property indices, monigage-related and other ABS,
amdd real estate koan products. The Firm wses these instruments
for market-making, Foreien curmency expasure management,
and asset and liability management.

The Firm manages s markel-making positions by employing
a varwety of risk mitigation siratepies. These strategies include
diversificationof risk exgpesures and hedging,. Hedging activities
conziat of the purchase or sale of positions in related securities
amd [inancial nstruments, including a vanety of denvative
products (e.g., futures, forwards, swaps and options). The Firm
manages the market nsk associated with s market-makng
activities ona Firmwide basis, on a worldwide trading division
level and on an individual product basis,
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Dwrivative Fair Valuas
Ab Decemiser 31, 2079 At Devembar T1, 2015
Asseis L
Blalerdl Clared Exchange- Blateral Clsarsd Exchangs-
Famsens _FTI'C T Tracdac Tatsl . £ by miicem [a) 1+ OTC Tracea Totml
ﬂ:l‘llm IIIIII:;M Mﬂ-i:l- Deslgrated as accountng hedges
Iriernss ratn $ BT s — 3§ — 8§ &7 Intaras! FAts § B2 % 15 — % B3
Fomgn axchange a1 1 - 42 Fomign axchangs a1 ] - A5
Tetal T 1 A i) et Bl 8 — B
N_ﬂ_dﬁr-'iﬂﬂ_“l-l:l:;h_i_hl;ﬁﬂ Wot designeted as accounting bedges
ernsl ftn 179,450 4830 549 184,808 Intmrsd ratn 153,768  3EET 07 158,052
Cmit 4885 24T - 1,312 et
Enreign suzhanga BLOGF 158 33 B43TE Forsign sechange
Bty F ol - TA4T 51,068 Emney
Commasty s ot 8,306 — 188  1i.268
Tetal 284,228 BBSS 35940 318,824
Total gross derivatives §284,043 3 BESE § 25940 5319530
Amounts ofiset
Courtamarty ey EATI0) (TER) (24097) [245.041) Countamarty netting (V002200 (52800 (24.548) {220,008)
Cash collateral natirg {41,222} (1,278 - [42497) Cash cofataral nattieg (38.204) {1,180} —  |30.384)
Tatal In Trading assats M1 5§ BT S 1903 § 32001 Total bn Trasing assets § IT4AT 5 PB4 § 1432 5 20073
Amcunts nat affeel’ o B Amounts not offest’
Financl inurumens colweral  (18,506) - —  [15,506) Financial i dateml  {12.467) - = {12467)
Dehar cask colasral [L17] — - [£14] _!_lhrmmhl'.ﬂi M = =
ot amouris 3 14360 3 &7 5 1903 3 16,250 Hot amaurts 5 14000 5 264 5 1432 § 16,678
sl menours. for wihich masiar o Colair| Bpraamisn il winas fod vl i ar o colalanl Axfaaanly
Ara 0t i placs of may nod be legally enorosabis % 1,000 e o) i pless of My 1ol De lag arforeaahis £ 128
Liabiltias Liakiktien
Binteral Clearss Exchange- Bdainral  Clearsd 0
& iy rliony. oTs oTc Traces Total iy i oTC OTC  Traded Tatal
Desigrsed as ;:-‘_ Dagig as Eng b
Irimas rale % 1 &8 —% - ¥ 1 Irtwrest ratn 5 176 8 = § - % 176
Fonsign exchangs 13 B - 168 Foneign sachange 62 B - B
Tetnl = m -  m Teal i w —
Mot deslgrated as scoounting Fedges Not deslgnsted a3 acccunting hedges o S
ke Fie 184,507 3587 438 17.E30 Iriares] rats MAXRGY  2EED BN 14BIAS
Cradit 4798 3423 - 1821 Crecit 4545 1 EOR - .153
Foneign axchangs 85,065 1452 3 67496 Fomign wxchange BLOOG 1302 W B340
Eouity 30,135 — I2T33 52.BER Euity W — pal el SR
Commacky s oher 7,713 — M1 p Commadey and ofher 6503 - zpar  soan
Teal 7208 BI1Z 28013 30,530 Tetal 243338 SA70  DRIE0  27BAIT
Tatal grogs dechestives $277,330 § Bzi0 § 28,013 S310,680 Total gross dervatives $293576 § 5500 § 25280 5275430
Couramparty nesng [@13FI0p  (TIM) 4007) (245,D41) Counlfary ating (UG0I20)  {b2BOp (2 AABG (220020)
Cash collataral raneg [ELE T ] — AT 234y Cash collatared nalting (2r B0} (2EA e ]
Tatal In Trading labiitles § 27228 5 124 B 1,082 § 284N Totad in Tresing Fabiktes 5 15406 § 50§ 1792 § 27258
Amounts not aMfset’ Amounts net affust’
Finangal ins'ruments colateral (7,747} - [287)  (B,034) Feardal i da:pral {4,700 — (188}  (5.4TH)
Drhar sash collaoarl §idj - — (AL} eber cash oollaveral {B3) 0 - {54
hot smaures $ 10467 5 124 § 7% § 2080 Het amounis 5 M4 5 405 45 § 20720
Hal smour’s for which masssr reding oF colliteral sgrsamea et amourts for which master recing or colatenl agresmsnts
are raf in placs or may not ba legaly anforosable % 5,680 mmb?ll.-mmu.}y:lnl_lr_ihg:&m l .l_j.:'a_.
1 Armuts il 19 ruer R Sgreecsnty and colateial ol i

105

Esusrn ittt vy om Moy 53 by e il e i o] vl bt wehae
Criain Difer CRLMY T Rl P i CCSAEANCE with apghratds 0Tseitng Acoouning
T
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See Mote 3 for information related to the unsettled fair value of Llakiithes
futures contrasts ned designated as accounting hedges, which Biataral Claarsd Exchangs-
are extluded from the previous tables. il el OTC OTC  Teded o
Daslg d s Eng kedg
Darivative Notionals Iriras raln 5 8 wrs = 5 10
At Degember 31 2010 Fiorsign mazhangn & i = )
i Toral 7 108 - 15
[rTer——— Exchanga- Not designsted as accounting bedges
£ Do TG OTC  Trames Towl ! 4048 5735 Bl 1462
Desigreted ns 0 hadg Crecit 162 ra - 238
I rme § s M - § 108 Fomsign exchangs b2 1.3] 114 "7 2582
Eonsign machange ] = - 2 Ecnity aan it BT sl
Total 16 i3 - 110 C iy and aer 72 - A 137
ot desigrated as scoounting hedgas Teval B0 bgzz 14Ba  ind0r
R Fiee 430 78 TIZ 12,80 Taesl grass dorvstives § L0237 5 6030 & 1488 § 4n52D
L 136 78 - 28
Fonsign axchangs EL " i#  n7ER The Frm believes that the notional amounts of dervvative
Eqlty hCd = bl ot contracts  generally  overstate s exposure. In most
Commety s cher R =  n circumsiances, notionnl amounts are used only ws o reference
Tooml T.HE 7568 1222 16,35 paint from which o calculate amounis owed between the parties
Total gross dertvatives $TETT S TEER S 1222 § 16461 to the contract. Furthermore, nobonal amounts donot reflect the
— bencefit of legally enforceable netting amrangements ar risk
R e mitigating transactions
i"f:h' — e L Gains (Losses) on Accounting Hedgas
interns ratn 3 —35 T3 -3 N £ mwen e M 2017
Fimign snchangs E k - 11 Fair valus hedges—Recognieed in b [ !
'I";-IJ @ -.?... =S I!h Iminrmst rin coracts $ {10 5 4} 5 —
Mot deslgrated aa ting hedg B Irvasiman Saurises—AFS 10 ‘ i
intarass rain 4185 668 B8 1,007 Falt valu hedges—Recognised In btsrast sxpenas
Cmdit 183 B - 7 It At corrasta $ 4212 5 (183 E (10
Frreign seshanga 2,841 # 1 2048 Duposis’ T _ =
Enity 285 - 515 870 Boameangs WosE 1501 1309
Commodiy and other a5 — L3 146 Nt irvestmart hedges—Forsign sxcharge comracis
k. I L DT TR S ihmE Rucogrized in OC| ¥ 145 e g 6
Tatal gross derivatives $ 7730 5 T4 0§ 1298 § 16,088 Forwerd uq;:’lmfmnwm
Foarm! Income 136 52 20
Ab Docember 15, 2015 =
Mgt
Biaiwal Claamd Exchange-
§ by niics aTc oTG Trasuad Tokald
Desigretod ns g hadg
It Fe $ Wi s2s -5 &
Fonsign sachange L] 1 - i
Total 0 53 - 73
-Nu""__ i 44 ting ey )
e a Fle d007 6ok 198F  1LET
Cmdit 2 T - 20
Ennwign axchangs 436 & 14 2568
Ecity 73 s 37 T84
Commaoodiy and odher 1) == L1 164
Tetal (L R ] 1808 16.384
Total groes derteatives £ 70895 5 65953 S 1605 5 16457
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Morgan Stanley

Fair Valua Hedges—Hedged ltams event of one-notch of two-notch douwngrade scenanios based on
% = the relevant contractual downgrade tnggers.

Decombar 31, Decsmber 31, ~ " 1
£ bt s 2010 2018 Maximuwm Patential PayosutNational of Cradit Protsction Sald
Invastent seurities—AFS

a Yoars 1o Maturity st Decamber 31, 2015
- by ; 3 T § 201 § i bl 1 13 38 Oweb Toml
Bants sclyumants nchuded in esmying : s - Single-nnms COG
; I pmda £ mwms ws Ni 5% T8
Mm:'ml}rwmﬂ Honneesiment gride 2 s 1 1 m
':h'..,"g..,h“ " 5435 § = Toal $ 253 2885 493 10§ 40
Bty s aimecy inchefed I camiing Index and basket COS
_ A L s e Imewsiment grade t 4% TS 485 s 68
Bormowangs Hon-messtmant grade H 4 17 10 n
mmt‘mwmmw B AREANEE MM Toral § 1§ 1mE BAE G 06
e SRR Total COS sokd § W3 W HZI M5 M6
amount’ s 3 803 5 {1 88D Orhae ereust eodrmncs - e —

1 Thas Fim g decdgnating intem i sales i i valos hadges o certun AFS
et i U third quirar &f 2018

2 The Fiers bagan desiputing ekl fale wwign i D vadus hidges o Slsin
Dpazais i B Sowrth quaisee of 2008

3 Corying aeound i pisents amcrtiesd cost b

£, Hibckpn neceysniting Basis ncfust oot s AF S seciaities, Diwpos ity ancd Boriwings e

privewily relaied I melsiandieg fadges

Derivatives with Credit Risk-Related Contingencies
et Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Posted

At A
Deoember 31, Casosmber 31,

§ ey ECER e
Hat derfeaiioe liabillios with credt risk-

redated comEngent fnmums |3 >,820 5 16,409
Colataral pociad LES: | H] 11081

The previous tble presents the aggregate fair value of certain
dervative contracts that contain credit risk-related contingent
fieatures that are m a net liability posttion for which the Firm has
posted collateral i the pommal course of business

Incremental Collateral and Termination Payments wpon

Totlcrampratectionsald 5 36 5 37 5 112§ M § 36

TS romeson ol with fasntical rotteion purch At s 167
Vows 1o Mausty ai Docenbac 31 2018

i ey k| 13 HE Cwaeh Toul

Single-nams €08

Iredatmin grade 5 2T M5 10 5 -1 3

Hen-iraesimen grde i i o i ai

Tl 5 325 B35 W5 0S5 4

Index and basket COE
Iremcimisn) grade
Hondrsesimen grade

Toral

Total COS askd

e p— i P - o -
Tatal crecl protection sald § 425 515 12§ W/ § 2
'O promecion Solt with il proecine purchised 5 20

Fair Value Assot (Liability) of Credit Protection Seld'

AL A
Dacomber 31, Dwcember 31,

Potantial Futurs Ratings Downgrada S ivaon it ik
Sdnglenams COS
AR
Bas . Irwstmunt grade 5 1,857 5 118
8 0t oS Flal ] Hon-irseaiman! grade {540} 403
Orereich downpracs 3 54 Tiral ] LE ] {285)
Twn-noich ownprads 328 Index and basket COS
EBdien| dowrgrads apeamants inchuded in e anwunts Fy & Irsssimani grade ] 1,082 § 314
b &
— Non-invesumar grace o a
¥ Aeround represants pangements between e Fem and ofer parties whers upon the Teval 5 1,006 & RG]
X 3¢ cf ona packy. the wchec] packy s b Sveral ko B other = i
party. Thasa bivteral downgrde mTiegements ane isad by the Fier (o manags the Tolsl COB scld % 1,703 % 1v.384)
rink £ counderpoy dcengraches Oher crecll. CONTAGS Ty {14}
T‘nhluﬂpmhdhnuﬂrl 3 1,888 5 11.3048)

The additional collateral or termination payments that may be
called in the event of a future credit rating downgrade vary by
contrasctancdcan be based onmtings by enher or bath of Moody's
Investors Service, Ine. (“Moody's™) and S&P Global Ratings.
The previous table shows the future potential collateral amounts
and termirmbion paymments that could be called or required by
counterparties or exchange and clearing organizations in the

1. Irmsimd grade o ireesirand piace el iranation s bassd on he sdenel omes
rating off the efemecs obligation. el et clings seres o8 the Credt Risk
Moragemant Depatment’s ssssssment of ol cbk and tha basi oo a
Ly el Crmd lirets T ak s o confol cred sk Tha Fam ases

ity and j B mrslae The vanicus sk poadreiers. nelated 1o
mach chiiger
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Protection Purchased with CDS
Htical
M M
Cwcambeer 31,  Dicenibar 31,
i e Faigd] 018
Sangle rams 5 118 & 116
Index ang basket 103 17
Tranched woax e baskel in d
Totad $ 236 % 247
Fair Vailue Asse {Listikey)
At Y
Decambser 31,  Ducembar 31,
£ remieng Fiold Filil
Single rames H TIN5 2T
e and bazknt {1,138} 1333
Tranched index ard basket J450) {2515
Tatal o & {!;I.'I.H.I- ISuB

The Firm enters into credit dervalives, princapally CDS, under
which 1t receves or provides protection against the nsk of
default ona setol debt obligations sswed by aspecilied reference
entity of entities, A magority of the Firm’s counterpartes for
these derivatives are banks, broker-dealers, and insurance and
oaher financial instietions

The fair value amounts as shown in the previous tables are prior
1o cash collateral or counerparnty petling.

The purchase of credit protection does not represent the sole
manner in which the Firm nsk manages nis exposure o eredit
dervatives, The Firm manages its exposure 1o these derivalive
contracts through o vanety of nsk mitigation strtegies, which
inelude managing the credit and correlation nisk across single-
name, non-tranched indices and baskets, tranched ndices and
beaskets, and cash positions, Ageregate market rigk limits have
beenestablished for credit derivatives, and market risk meisures
are rowtinely montiored agamst these lmits. The Fiom may also
recover amounts on the underlying reference obligation
delivered to the Firm under CDS where credit protection was
sold

December 2009 Foan [0-K

Morgan Stanley

Single-Name CDF,  ACDS protects the buver against the bess
of princapal on & bond or boan in case of a default by the ssuer.
The protection buyer pavs a perodic premium (generally
quarter]y) over the hife of the contract and & protected for the
period. The Fim, intum, performs undera CDS il a credit event
as defined under the contract oceurs. Tvpacal eredit events
wnclude bankruptey, dissolution of insolvency of the referenced
entity, fatlure to pay and restructuring of the oblizgations of the
referenced entity.

fndie angd Basier CDE. Indext andd basket CDS are products
where credit protection is provided ona ponfolio of singhe-name
CDS. Generally, inthe event of a default onone of the underly ing
names, the Fimm pavs & pro rta portion of the total notional
amaunt of the CDS.

The Furm alao enters into tranched mndex and basket COS where
credit protection 15 provided on a partseular portion of the
portiolio loss distribution. The most junior tranche s cover initial
defaults, and once losses exceed the notional of the tranche, they
are passed on to the next most semor tranche in the capital
strscture.

Cither Credit Comracts,  The Firm has invested in CLNs and
CDOs, which are hybad mstruments contaimmg embedded
derivatives, in whach credit protection has been sobd to the issuer
of the note. IF there iz a credid event of a reference entity
underlying the instrument, the principal balance of the note may
net be repaid m full to the Firm
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6. Investment Securities
AFS and HTM Securilies
Al Decemmbaer 31, 2018 Al Dwosonkes 31, 2018
Gimss Gross G Gross
Argrized Uessalizes  Lrreglires  Fai Amorited  Unmakred Ureaknes  Fair
£ 1y mesiong Cenir Chaarts L ke 3 oy s (=Y Gairs Lagsas Wakia
AFE uoeuritien AFS gncusitie
LS. goweirment and agency securntien: L5, gowememen] drd agency securitien:
LLE, Trawry securidas & 32488 5 I 1 411 § 32,578 LULE, Traasury sacurties £ M8 5 40 5 BA5 §ABE5T
U5, sgeecy secuies’ LLLE 4p o 20874 _ U5 ageccy secutied 140 L] 48720253
Tetal U5, gowen 1 ard Tauad U5, govenimment ard
lnlr-:rmiur;-r 83,100 4Ty MY A8 Epercy nsduring S7.008 ] 1053 55.005
Compomte erd olfer debt Corporms ond ofer debt
apercy CHBS 4,810 &5 BT 4,808 Agency ChBS 1.054 —_ B2 002
Corporate bords: 1,80 17 ] 1,007 Non-agency CMBS 461 == 14 447
S ard msuricinal Coarpeata hordi 1.5k - b 1563
F::;HN | 4m 22 - 503 S ard ericipl
il 1,580 1 W 188 = 20t 2 E 20
FEELFY goiadae
Total conporale And odher
b 8T8 5 88  B,FM g e R 1067 " 151082
Total AFE necunties 1,052 5] o D -k “mqm-l ? b7 12 LFAT R
HTM pecusites Torsl AFS scLes &2 27h &2 1208 B1D6T
ULE. govermrent and agency seaurides: HTM sacurities
U.E. Treas.ry secunides 0,148 bl & 30661 L5, GOeeiTiner: Ard Agency e.ntes:
ME speiyeciial AR T _AaAn e 1A H 403 HrAn
Total LS, goverrmsnt ard £
el : s i w8 43388 Tﬂisﬁ;mm 12,4568 ] 445 128
- EOWEITTRES Arc
Comorats ard other debt 0,288 52 a8 2040
_ Mor-agensy GMBS Tes = 1 Tag Coporma and oher oab
Tetal HTH scurite 43,502 T RLLE Nt Hor-agercy GBS 403 — o A
Sk toideten, - e D2 ek =t T
Tatal ir "'-'u“ na 5105480 5 4300 8 407 #106,356 Teval HTM saouriias i 52 853 IGOGE
Total Fvestmant
s 5 5346 § 114 § 2034 SOU026

1. LS agancy sacieities consist masnly of agency-issiesd debd, agency mongage pass
Humaigh poo] seciries and CROs

2 Underlying s ara Backed by & ruisriines, oismalsly from te LS Depareand of
Ecdecation, of of lnast B5% of the principad bakance and intiest culstansiing

100 December 219 Foam 10-K
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Investment Securitias in an Unrealized Loss Position
4t Decamber 31, 2078
Less thar: 12 Morths 12 Months or Longer Total
Gods Groas
Urmsabregd U aakrac
1t mstons FalrVetve tomes  Fakrviive Lowses  FPeirebie =~ Looses
US, grovarrasns and Aency wecuniSe
LS, Treamry sacurides 5 473 § M s 7004 3 B 3 12687 § 111
LL5. mperoy seoufiies LA Fid T.8AT &0 13,338 100
Total U5, poweiPmar: ard Agancy secLites A 48 15,804 183 23,095 211
Corporans ard oiher ok
Agercy CHBS 2294 % 631 kil 2,975 57
Covporse bords: 194 1 44 - 238 1
EFELP sders loan ABS &1 - 1,185 2] 1,258 8
“Tetal exspewate and e duhi 2579 7 1,800 58 489 86
Total AFS securiins 10013 n 17480 222 27,004 =7
HTM macurides
LLE, g mimeant and AGency seirses:
LS. Trams.ry sacuiies [T.7L] a2 Ba1 — B.ESY &2
ULE, iparey nscysite T 1 A » 444 L
Total UE, govermert ard agency securiSes. 2588 T 307 38 11,837 kL]
Comonte ara olber gebt
_Nonsguncy Chies w4 s = me s
Tetal HTM securtdes 1733 ] 2136 ] 11808 110
Total irveatmanrt sscuriies 5 A8746 & 148 & 20627 § Pl 38371 § &7
Ay Decnnsber X1, AR
Lo thare 12 Morths 12 Monthe of Loeges Toal -
Gross Gross Gries
Unraalired Unreabred Unmakred
& oy el Fair Valus Lossas Fanr Valua Losses Fair Vakis Losses
AFS securites
UE. grisironsel and agancy et
U.5, Treasury saciriies H 19807 % Bl % o0 § s § HEn § fiifi
U5, sgercy secunides 12504 a3 4142 1] 17.045 7
Total U5, govemmsrt ard agency secundes 32841 024 10,036 2 42577 1,153
Comorate and oiher deb:
Agercy CWBS A B - - L1 L.
Hon-aganoy CMBS - - 446 ] a46 14
Corporse borcs. 47 T L Fi ] b2 1480 2
FFELP sfars loan ABS 13688 15 — —_ 13466 1%
Tetal enqpoats and ather deb! 2644 ) 0 100 1z
Totnl AR secyritins 24488 1o0e 11802 a8 Tarmr | e
HTM sscurites
ULE. gowemment and agency secuntes:
U5 Treas.ry sacuidas = - 11,884 a0 TR &3
U5, sgery tsouniies Eale] ] 10004 a4 I e
Tetal U5, goveremiact ard agency securitiés "o 1 1 168 g 21 BTH o
Corponte and olber debt
MNot-agency CWES L] 1 218 L i L
Tetal HTM sacurises i i Tan %] il L)
Total Irveatmart spcuritiss 5 Ml & wpi0 G20 8 M § Gnr § 2
Dazcember 2419 Form 10-K 110
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The Firm believes there ane no securities in an unrealized loss
position  that are  other-than-temporanly  impaired  after
performing the analvsis described in Note 2. For AF S securities,
the Firm does not intend to sell the secunties and 15 mo likely
o b requared to sell the securities prior to fecovery of the
amortized cost basis, Funhermore, for both AFS and HTM
securies, the secinities have not experienced credit losses as
the unrealized losses reported in the previous table are primarily
duclnhi#uriﬂtcrtslm!ﬂsimr those securities were purchased.

See Note 14 For additional information on securities issued by
VIEs, inchading U3, agency morgage-backed securnies, non-
agency CMBSE and FFELP student loan ABS.

Investment Securities by Contractual Maturity

At Dacambar 31, 2019
= Eur Annuakred
£ iy ey Cosl Wl Yight
AFS pocurites
LS. grivermant and AQancy Seane:
U.E, Tinasury seourtes;
Do il 1 jlar k] 229 8 30 2%
After 1 year theowgh & yeam 25949 0T 1.8%
— Ao yoars through 16 ywars L B & 1.r%
L. BAR_aum
U5, agaray tacisiien; '
D within | ywar e 340 10%
After 1 yaar (brough & yeens. 352 159 1.8%
Aftar & ymars through 10 years 4,380 1,373 9,8%
Aftar 10 yaars 18,673 R 24%
T o aeaTs
Tetal UL, gewamnsmnt ard agency % Nk B iR o
Corpanate and other cebt
Apercy CHES:
Aftar | yaar ikrough 5 paarm ne [ 1] 14%
Aftar b yeans through 10 years 3,286 3,305 2.5%
At 10 yuars 924 00 2.0%
Total 4,810 4,808
Do within 1 ywar 41 43 1.T%
After 1 year (Froagh & yeas 1448 1,462 26%
_ Aner & yaars shrough 10 years 400 A 20%
Toal 1484 A, T
e T T ke
Aftar 1 yoar through & yeams. 5 ar A%
Aftar & yaars through 10 years ™ 2 2.5%,
Aftar 10 jyaars T4 = 4%
Total L4 £l
* FFELP sadurt Inen ABS:
After 1 yoar (Frough: & yma bl ] 0.6%
Afar & paars Trcugh 10 pears awr 3T 0EY
o AR L[ - S P [ 1%
:W‘ 1,580 1.‘!“
Tolal comporats and ofher debi 5,762 3 2%
Total AFE sscurities £1.957 EL223 2.0%

L1

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
Morgan Stanley
At Decambaer 11, 215
Aprerar Fr Tm;n
Wil
£ L Lol Ve WM
HTM s iaides
U5, gonndmande] AN Bgancy mesLien
ULS, Treasury seourtiss:
Dus wikin 1 year 2438 § rA52 2.5%
Almr 1 year Feough & yeans 18,028 18,354 1%
Atar & yaars thiough 1) years LX BAaz 2.2%
Afar 10 ymars 14083 1,143 2.5%
Total 3,145 36,551
LLE, apency seoulibe:
Atwr 5 yaars throogh 10 years £ 45 1.0%
At 10 yaars. 12843 12538 L6%
Totsd 12,588 1rA833
Tofal U.S. govanmmaers ard
secuTias ! i AT 43,344 2%
Cofporns and o er deliT;
Bonagency CHBE
Dus wikin 1 year L] Bl %
Atmr 1 year Frough & years 124 s 8.5%
Atar & ynan hiough 0 years s 532 5.3%
At 10 yaars &1 ] 41 2%
Tedal corporals and oher debl e 733 4.0%
Total HTM seaurties 43,503 24,133 3%
Total bvesimant securities sl 5 106338 1%
Gross Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of AFS Sacurities
_Anmeons il Pl 'HH_I_
Grnss mbalfed gains $  Mas 48
Gross reakeed (lossesh (1o 111
Tatal' § b3 § 35
1. Puslend pains and ko Qe i i e i e L
Drecember 3019 Foem 10-K
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7. Collateralized Transactions

The Firm enters snto securities purchased under agreements to
resell, secunties sold under agreements torepurchase, securities
borrowed and secunities loaned transactions 1o, among other
things, scquare securities 1o cover shorl pesitions and settle other
securities obligations, to sccommodate customers” needs and 1o
finance s mventory positions.

The Firm mamages credit exposure arising from  such
transactions by, In appropriste clrcumsiances, enlenng mo
master nettmg agreements and collateral agreements with ais
counterparties. These agreements provide the Firm with the
right, in the event of o defoull by the counterparty, 1o et 4
counterparty’s rights and abligations under the agreement and
to liguidate and set ofl collateral held by the Firm agoinst the
et amourt cwed by the counterparty.

The Firm's policy 15 generally 10 ke possession of securities
purchased or borrowed inconnection with secunities parchased
under agreements to resell and zecurities borrowed transactions,
respectively, and 1o receve cash and securnities deliverad wder
securities sold under agreements 1o repurchase or securiies
Ioaned transactions (with rights of rehy pothecation)

The Firm alsomonitors the fair value of the underlying securities
s compared with the related receivable or pavable, including
secrued interest, and, &5 necessary, requests additional
collateral, as provided under the applicable agreement to ensure
such transactions are adequately collateralized, or the return of
excess collateral

The risk rebed o o decling in the marker value of coltateral
pledged or recerved 1s managed by setting appropriate market-
based margin requirements. [ncreases incollateral margin calls
on- secured I'im.m:ln,g due to market value declines may be
miatigated by increases 1 collateral magin calls on securities
purchased under agreements to resell and securities borrowed
transactions with similar quality collateral. Addiiomally, the
Firm may request lower quality collateral pledged be replaced
with higher quality collateral through collateral substitution
rights in the underlying agreements

The Firm actively manages its secured fingneings i a manmer
thust reduces the potential refinancing risk of secured financings
of less liquad assets and also conseders the quality of collateral
when negotiating collateral eligibility with counterparties. The
Firm wtilizes shorter term secured financing for highly liquid
assets and has established longer tenor limits for less liguid
assets, for which funding may be at nisk in the event of a market
disruption.
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Offsetting of Cartain Collateralized Transactions
AECcambiv I, 2010
atarce
Grods  Amceri Shest Mel  Amounis Hai
£ iy i AmoLrts Amouris Mot D%set’
Azt
Beunties
prcrAsAd uncer
AR o
ruiall S2ATHE S(U5B221) 5 BAZM § (RN F 2024
Smcurities
Excrrireed NSIE (2O7H) 106,549 (101858 4,600
Linbdities
Eaciarit by, 5000
e
EgrReEeTE I

FpurchEis 5213519 S(159,319) 5 54200 § (44543 % 9,851
Sacuities lnansd 11457 [2o81) B,506 [£.324) 182

Wt amounts far which master netting agresmants sme not in place of
mmay net ke logally enforcaable

Secuniben purchaisd Lrde agfuaimanty It niasll § 2,258
Bacunilies bomowesd 1,481
Eacuriles sodd under agreements [0 epunchass 8,033
Gecurities aned. LS

At Cecambes 21, 2018

Balance

Gross  Amverss  ShestMNel  Amouns,  Mei
_i_llfw_ll_a_-_; ot D?'MIE wa!__ Mot Ol Amonis
Ansals
ey it
prrchased under
Egremmers in
el SIE2.9TE S{1R4A54) § DBS522 § (PHAIOFE 2012
Emcimitias
EeorTired fE A R I 1 T e T - T 4
Liabiikios
Seauntios sold
ot s i
mm S214.213 S{1R4454) 5 40,750 § (4109515 8.684
Sl laaneg WAGE (10300 110908 (LR K10 pall

et amounts for which master netting sgreements are not in place or
may nod be legally snformeabls - P

Secunitisn pumhiss Lrder sgreemants. o neial 5 1510
Sacuinthes bommwnd 4
St ek Bl LT APl | ML s 8.2
B ] i

1 Amounts relats in Fasiee et ajresrents that have besn determeanad by the Fum
e b gty enforsmatobs i e sernd o et bk i cartan clfves criteeis aim ned
Mk i accsrdmnch Wil app h =] 3 P

For information related 1o offsetting of denvatives, see Note 5.
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Gross Sacured Financing Balances by Remaining Contractual
Maturity

At Decamber 21, 2019
Overnight Less than 2080 O

£ iy ey ard Oge B0 Daps Days 00 Days Tl
Baonites sold inder

AGr=BCdCs 10

raprchase § E753 ¥ 09300 2604 34947 212810

Secninisen st 2am 3286 w6 BIGT 41487

offsating disclosuns  § E3538 § 84,588 527430 §43484 §225008

Traing abl e
QA 12 et
SR
as collsieml AT - = = 22,8TT
Tatal § 33493 § B4.5856 §2TAR0 S42.464 S24B.8E1
A1 Docamber 31, 2018
Ovenigh? Less than 3050 O
£ ¥ Frdicsn ard Opsn 30 Days G0Days  Tosal
Escunises sold undar
AgreeTECs 0
rejrrchass § SH503 § AA42F S350 SIAS0N $214.213

Securie ke Rl 608 18RS BXNG 30306

Tetal iedutesd in ha
offsating disclosurs § 74900 § 67046 SATETT S34.508 £244.510

Trading SsbiGes—
Ohiigation o eum
SETLITHS Pl
s collaeral 1755 —_ — —_ 17504
Taital £ 02404 & GFOOR SITETT SM4508 £362.112

Gross Secursd Finanting Balances by Class af Collateral
Pladged

Dﬂwhl‘bﬂ , w";ﬂfil.
£ iy ooy okl 2018
Securitles sold Undes BgTeamsETE 00 repurc ke
US. Tramsry and agency seosribies 5 BA.ADE 5 B8 40T
S5a%e ard muricpal seouriies o0s5 nas
Crhar sovensigr govemmant ohigations. 109,414 120432
Agg 22 mr
Corparaoe ard clher deb) 6,066 brig
Coffotn doultea 25,563 rnrs
Cthar ELE] H54
Total 3 33,848 § 214,243
“Becurntins loansd o
ther aormsraior oovemmant ohigatiors. 5 3026 5 1021
Comorate eouibes. B.4322 10,800
Cehar 30 485
Tetal $ var s 30900
Toialinchutes In e ofsaming crckinrs  $ 205000 § 244810
Trading Eabltles—Obligation 1 retrn securklos received o collatral
Corporase oLl s 3 3,873 § 17 504
e I
Tetal 5 JAATT 5 17.504
Tatal g 248,883 5 262,113
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Morgan Stanley

Carrying Value of Assots Loaned or Pladged without
Countarparty Right to Sell or Repledge

At AL
Decambor 31, Cwcambar 30,
Fo il 2018

F iy s

Trading assais 3 41,2H § 430
Loans ipmoss of allvwarcs for loen losses ) TS0 =
Toeal % 41,854 £ 20430

The Firm pledges certain of its tading assets and loans 1o
collateralize securnities sold under agreements to repurchase,
securities loaned, other secured financings and dervatives and
o cover customer short sales, Counterparties may of may not
have the right to sell or repledae the collateral.

Pledged financial instruments that can be sold or repledged by
the secured party are identified as Trading assets (pledped 10
various parties) in the balance sheets

Fair Value of Collateral Received with Right to Sall or Repledge

L3
Dacamber 31, Cacensher 31,
3 iy ez B ik
Colamnl moating wif nghs m sel
of rapingce % BTO280 2 BI0A1D
Eodaseral thai was sold or repledged’ BA0.812 487 5A3
1. Do o i el | 3 o theFimm sl 5 Broksr

daslery

Restricted Cash and Segrogated Securilies

mu:um, mmﬁnral.
Finmione 13 2B
Rasicind cash 5 3zs? s 35,958
Legmgaind seauiies’ 0,061 Pl E)
Total 5 BT.ATY £ [ nk]

1. Secuiies sagregaied indes ‘aderal regulations 'or the Fam's U 5. biokes dealers am
méamtas) i S purshi) uncls hgp s &S el and Trading ddeets n
s Editinca ahasst

The Firm receives collateral i the form of sccunities
connection with securities purchased under agreementstoresell,
securities  borrowed, securities-for-securities  Iransactions,
derivative transactions, customer margin loans and secunities-
based lending. In many cases, the Firm i permitted to sell or
repledge this collateral t0 secure secunties sold under
agreements to repurchase, to enter inlo securities lending and
derivative transactions or for delivery 10 counterparties o cover
short posibions.
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Concentration Based on the Firm's Total Assats

As AL
Dacamber ¥,  Decambiar 11,

E 2018
W and agersy securities
ard other soversign government
igations
Tradting msets’ 1% %
T balincs sbae—Collainm| recsind 12% 1%

1 St goesrsign govmmeriant chiigaiicns ncheiegd n Tradng sssets primarly consid
af b LUK | Sapan and Austials s Decscsber 31, 2580, and U Jagan and Boull m
Diwezonrabont 31, 2088

3 Coliatiral rencd i iy bt 13 5 puizh e g ta

sl el Savcanitl i boavzwid

The Firm is subject to concentration risk by holding large
pesitions in certaim ypes of securities, loans or comm itments o
purchase securities of a smple issver, mchading sovereign
governments and other entities, issuers located in a parmicular
eountry of geographic area, public and private isuees involving
developing countries of msuers engaged in a particular industry,

Positions taken and underwniing and financing comm itments,
inchuding those made in connection with the Firm's private
equity, principal investmentand lending activities, often involve
substantial amounts and siprficant exposure o individual
issuers and businesses, mcluding investment grade and non-
investment grade 1ssuers.

Customar Margin Landing
Al AL
Decombaer 31,  Decenster 31,
Ll E— i E LA
Cupiondd aomvablni fo{sced g N
loans 5 96 5 25220

The Firm provides margin lending amangements which allow
customers fo borrow apamst the value of qualifying securities
Recewvables under margin lending arrangements are included
within Customer and other receivables m the balance sheets.
Under these agreements and transactions, the Firm receives
collateral, which includes US  povernmemt and agency
seeurities, other soverergn government obligations, corporate
ansd ather debd, and corporate equaties. Customer receivables
generated from mangin lending activities are colluternlized by
customer-cwned securities held by the Firm. The Firm monitors
required margin levels and established credit terms daily and,
pursuant to such guidelines, requires customers to deposit
additonal collateral, or reduce positions, when necessary.

Margin lpans are extended on a demand basis and generally are
nol committed facilities. Factors considered in the review of
margin leans are the amount of the loan, the intended purpose,
the degree of leverape being empleved in the account and the
amount of collateral, as well as an overall evaluation of the
portfolio to ensure proper diversification or, in the case of
concentrated positions, appropriate Lguidity of the underlying
collateral of potential hedinng strtegies to reduce nsk
Underlyimg collmteral for mangin loans 15 reviewed with respect

Dazcember 2019 Form 10-K

Morgan Stanley

fo the liguidity of the proposed collateral positeons, valuation of
secunities, histone trading enge, volatility anabysis and an
evalumtion of industry concenteations. For these transactions,
adherence to the Firm's collateral pobicies signaficantly hmits
its eredit exposure in the event of a customer default. The Firm
may request addinonal mangin collateral from customers, af
appropraate, mnd, if necessary, may sell securities that have not
been paid for or purchase securities sold but not delivered from
CLEtOmErs.

riher Secured Financings

Cther secured financings include the liabilities related to
transfiers of financial assets that are accounted for as financings
rather than sales, consalidated VIEs where the Fam is deemed
to be the pnmary beneficiary, and certain ELNs and other
secured bormowings. These liabilsties are penerally payable from
the cash flows of the related assets, which are accounted for as
Trading asseis (see MNotes 12 and 14,

8. Loans, Lending Commitments and Allowance
for Credit Losses

The Firm's bon portfolio consists of the following types of
loans

* Corporate.  Corporate loans primanly include commercial
and industreal lending used for general corporate purposes,
working capital and liquidity, event-drven loans, secured
lending facilities. and securities-based lendmg, Event-dnven
leans support client merger, acquisition, recapitalization or
progect fimance activities. Cosporate loans are structured as
revalving lines of eredit, better of credit facilities, term loans
and bridge leans. Risk factess considered in detesmining the
allowance for corporate loans inc lude the bormower s financial
strength, industry, facility structure, collateral and covenams
along with other qualitative factors.

« Cowsmer.  Consumer loans include unsecured loans and
secunties-based lending, which allows clients to bormow
money against the value of qualifying securities for any
suitahle purpose other than purchasing, trading, of carrying
secunties of refinancing margin debt The magenty of
consumer kans are structured as revelving hnes of credit. The
allowance methodelogy for unseoured loans considers the
specificattributes of the loan, as well as the borrower’s source
of repayment. The allowance mabodology for secunties-
based lending considers the collatersl tvpe underlying the loan
{e.g., diversified securitics, concentrated sccunties or
restricted stock).

* ResidentiplReal Eviare.  Residential real estate loans mainly
include non-conforming loans and HELOC, The allowance
methodology for non-conforming residential mortgage loans
considers zeveral factors, including, but not limited to, loan-
te-value mtie, FICO seare, home price index and delinguency
status. The methodology for HELOC considers credit limits
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and utilization rates m addition 1o the factors considered for
non-conforming residential mongages.

Commercial Real Estare. Commercial real estate loans
include owner-ocoupied loans and income-producing loans
The principal risk factors for determining the allowance for
commercizl real estate loans are the underlying collateral type,
Ioan-te-value ratto and debt service ratio.

Loans by Typa
~ AtDecembar 31, 2019
Lons Weli  Lears ekl _
£ emieng foor Irvvies tmen ! for Saln Totsl Lasrs
Comanats -3 48,766 & 1LE1E & 59,271
Conmmer 34,610 _ 11,610
Raskdontial real #asaie 3,184 13 30,107
Comimirial raal estaze’ 7,850 2,040
Total boars, gross 118,400 12577 130,985
Allpwenss for loan lmses {348} - {30y
Total losns, net % 118,060 % 12,577 % 130,837
Pl rase kans, ra) [ 22,718
Flaming or acjusible mte lars, net 107,031
Loars o nonLl 5. bomowers, net 61T
Al Duoarebar 31, 3018
Loans Hali Loans Welky
F ¥t oesicng o Iy by for Sale Toial Loars.
Comorats £ 15,500 § 13888 §  BOTGH
[=L0H g 27,858 - 27 8RR
Rasigential neal estate 27 AR FF 27 480
Conmuecal raal sstate’ 7810 ) B
Tetal baans, s T IBIB BMIT
Alliwvncs for knan lodses {238) - {238)
Total lasns, nat 5 0215 5 15764 § 1154570
Fiusd rase ans, rad F3 15832
Flaming of Acpsible ri% s, nal Tt O T
Loars o ron-LLS. bomowerns, net 17,568

1 Busgenruing in 2015 koans peevicusly refeimed o 2 YWholssale taal satals e refemed
I a Commescil feal estals

See Mote 3 for further information regarding Loans and lending
commitments heldat fuirvahee, See Note 13 for details of current
commitments o kend in the fuure

Credit Quality

CRM evaluates new oblgors befose credit transactions are
initeally approved and af least anmually thereafier for corporate
and commercial real estate loans. For corporate loans, credit
evaluations typleally nvolve the evahmtion of financaal
statements, assessment of leverage, hiquidity, capital strength,
assel com position and quality, market capitaliztion and access
o capital markets, <ash fow pregections and debl service
reguurements, and the sdedquacy of collateral, if applicable. CRM
also evalustes strategy, market positror, industry dynamics,
obligor’s mansgement and other factors that could affect an
obligor’s nsk profile

Morgan Stanley

For commercial real estate leans, the ereditevaluation is focused
on property and tmnsaction metrics, including property type,
loan-to-value ratio, occupancy levels, debl service ratio,
prevailing capitalization rates and market dynamics.

For residential real estate and consumer loans, the initial eredit
evaluton typreally includes, bul 1s not limited to, review of the
obliger's income, net worth, liquidity, collaseral, lean-to-value
ratioc and credit bureau information  Subsequemt credi
monitoring for resadential real estate loans s performed at the
portiolio level, Consumer loan collateral valees are monitored
on n ongoing basis,

The Farm utilizes the following credit quality indrcators, which
are consistent with U5, banking agencies’ definitions of
criticized exposures, as appheable, in its credit monitoring
process for loans held for investment:

= Paxx. A credit exposure mated Pass has a continued
expectation of tmely repayment, all obligations of the
borrower are current, and the obligor complies with material
terms and conditions of the lending agreement

Specral Merition.  Extensions of credit that have petential
weakness that deserve management’s close attention and, 1f
lefl uncorrected. may, al some future date, result n the
deterroration of the repayment prospects or ool lateral position.

Substandard,  Obligor has @ well-defined weakness that
Jjeopardizes the repayment of the debt and has o high
probability of payment default with the distingt possibality
that the Firm wall sustain some loss if moted deficiencies are
mol corrected.

Dowdbyfiel,  Inherent weakness in the exposure makes the
collection or repayment i full, based on existing facts,
eonditions and circumstances, highly improbable, and the
amount of loss i uncertain

Loss.  Extensions of credit classified as loss are considered
uncollectible and are charged off

Loans considered as Doubtiul or Loss are considered mpaired.
Substandard loans are regularly reviewed for impairment. For
further information, see Note 2.

Drecember 2019 Form 10-K
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Loans Hold for Investmont bafore Allowance by Credit Quality'
Do M.

Recicertinl - Commendial
Comporaln Comumer ReglEviaie Read Exas  Towl

F iy Frsdicr
Pass % 47881 § 31605 §  300EG § 7884 S117,010
Epaonl
mention 464 - = 3 485
Sulbtandand [ L] ] 152 L]
Douteka & - - - 6
Total 4 48,THE § W60 § 204 § TAsE §118400

Al Duossrmiser 31, 2013

Rauicertinl  Comnencd

£ iy oM Compoals  Comuner ReslExaie Rea Exiate  Todal
Pass $ abnir § aresd 5 2raEr & 7ArE £ 08848
Epecal
e tion a0 & - H1F] 00
Exkestndan 20 - ] LEi] ki
Dot - - - - -
Total % 36003 5 I7EER S 2rdEs § 7RI0 $100,053

T Thesn warn 1o lomns hald for insesimend considessd Loss a5 of Decerbes 31, 2250
and 2018

Impairad Loans and Lending Commitments befora Allowanas

AR Decembar 31, 2019

Renidurcal  Conmardal
Coparale  Conpumed Reasl Exate  Real Extie  Toosl

i ey

Lonms

With alowance § A 5 - § = § 85 §353
Withoiut .

Alkrwmrcs 3z 5 aT - 124
Tl impainac

lnans 5 EL ] 8 % LB 35 J417
urE 303 5 B0 &5 489
Lardin

:lmI'rlmmh

With aliwancs H i % — % — § 44 § 1@
Without

al ! R - — - B
‘I'\I:I.llu'rpﬂ'ld

COHTHTE T S 5 %3 — 3 — 5 14 § 80
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At Dacamber 31, 2018
Residenial  Comnercial

§ oy v Corpora’s  Corsufméd Raal Estate  Real Estale Toesl
Loans

With allowarcs 5 P -4 -5 -5
Wihout

alcwanin 2 - Ll -
Tl ienpained

fnans ] B2 & — 8 L0 — 3128
uPl i3] = i - 15
Landin.

mhﬂ

With allowarce § 9.3 — 3 — % — & i
Without

allowanca' a - - -
Tl inpained

it

THT s § 53 § — § — § — § 53

1. Deceniber 31, 2018 and Decamber 31, ZH18, no sowanoe was moorded for these
oans and Ui s e prasan! vtk of B mepeced funs cash dows
o vk o the Gollateral Pekd eguaied 0r axcesded e cherying vake

Leans and lending commiiments inthe previous table have been

evahated for a specific allowance. All remaiming loans and
lending commitments are assessed under the inherent allowance

methodology
Impairad Leans and Total Allowance by Reglan

At Decembar 31, 2010

] Amaticas  EMEA Asid Tetal
Impsred loans 5 m2 5 B %5 o ATT
Toval Allcwancn for laan

(g T TG 3 348

Al Dceeribee 31, 2018
Ammicas  EMEA | Asa Teal
Impaired loans 5 125 5 - - 128
Tetal ABzwvwncs for loan
|50 1

£ it e

a3 42 3 238
Troubled Dobt Restructurings
AL A
Dacember 31, Decambar 11,
£ o s 28 FLT
Loars L] a3 5L
Lindrg comminanis n LY
llm-m:‘a;unimnlrum 1 i

Impaired loans and lending commitments classified as held for
investment within corporate loans  include TDREs. These
restructurings typacally include modifications of interest rates,
collateral requirements, other loan covenants and payment
extensions,
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Allowanca for Lending Commitmants Roflforwand

Residonial  Commrdal
Coportie CordumlPosl Entie Rl Ealie Tl

Fhee i IS
Drecembsr 31, Do 31,
FiL] 5 144 5 T & o 5 & § 238 2008 - 158 5 -3 -5 35 23
Gross Prowinion
chage-ots A = i = 12 Gredamie) LT — = 4 42
Ructvadm = = = xR b . = = =
Kl mcidries Dacambir 3,
{charge-ofis) - - (4] - i2h 2099 5 o -3 3 2% - T & 249
Provision Inthsrant 5 1w § IS - T § 239
[mlnasa) 104 1 7 8 120 = HE iE = %
ot m =1 g LES o Spediic —— —
Dacamber 31, # = e Corpomin  Corsumar  Real Exints  Real Estals  Tolal
LTy % v 53 5 7 % D T e
Irthsman 5 HZ? § B 5§ 3§ MA L K - 154 % 15 - 35 198
Epwaic 20 - - 2 -3 Prosision
fraluna) K i -— 1 B
Fesidersal  Commraisl Qe L5l s - (1} )
it e Comporats  Corsumie  Real Evats Real Estats  Toial mﬂ " a1 & . z
D TR i 158 5 - 3§ 03
o 5 126 § 45 4§ m 5 224 Irthesen 5 150 § 25 ] 35 198
G;?um- Epaciic § = = = &
3 183 — (1} - [L3] — E B sl © al
fh':a_n:!_ﬂ_lu- il — — — bl & by e Compontn Corsumar  Real Esiats  Real Extale  Tolal
el reciron 3,
i 'a'a’ A - (1} - 48 o |3 125 § 15 - § 4 5 180
Proresmn : Prowision
[l {2 3 =13 B (24) {rednimia) ] - - (i ¥
Dikar 3] - - L] ke 1 - - - 1
Dmcember 31, M,
FT % 4§ 75 w5 & § 238 2007 5 154 § 1§ - & 35 108
Irhasmnt 5 135 § TS o § &7 § 233 Inthsrant 5 e 5 3 -4 35 106
Sty = = — & b e
Raidardal  Commancial
£ iy ey Comporaie Corsumer  Real Exace  Raeal Estam  Toial Emm Loans
Dncember 31, Al
e - s 3 4 5 n s 55§ 4 1,
Gross changs- 3 iy e el ]
offy {78} - - - [E] Bakance 3415
Bacovenes 1 — - — 1 .i]m'q'lo.n Tossas {63
Ngﬂma an - Balancs, ra Aas2
e - - - Rnsiving epaymect e, weighied e B
[relaats) ] - 4 12 n bl
Crhar —_ - - 3 2 : ) )
BatEata i Emplovee loans are granted m conpunction with a program
AT 5 126 § 4 5 4§ m oS a4 established ptiman!:.' tor recrut certn Wealth Management
Irhaani CIEL 43 B gy representatives, are full recourse and generally require periodic
Spat i - - - r repayments. These loans are recorded i Customer and other

1. Cuing J15 Be palsans wim pimaily Sl 1 M ecinery & i anegy ity
relatad kan charged &% in 2007

17

receivables in the balance sheets. The Firm establishes an
allowance for loan amounts it does nod consider recoverable,
and the related provision is recorded in Compensation and
benelits expense.
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9, Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill Rallforward

% iy el = W L Todal
A7 Dwosmbaer 31, 2007 § 98 § 559 § 780 § G597
Fonsgn cumancy and othar P —_ — (1]
Auifed - = LLF3 1
A Docambar 31, 2011 § 2r4 3 64N 5 M1 5 BN
Fomeign oumency and other 13y i1} - i14h
Menuined? = 468 — 489
At Dacombar 31, 20997 § 24 5 6001 5 881 3 T4

Acoupiaied mpakmers $ A3 E =3 37§ 00

15— il Gac e
Wi

M — bl Mar g

1 B raprasend i seicun! o th Farms goodwill afer scaurudsied erpaierans

2 Barndutls fhcs i il of thel P o usiition o Sook oy Copiel inc: inihe second
quatar of HHE

3 Astiamualbid Engarrunts wiih peescrded pris 12 e pariads shawn, Tho wens na

g recorded i 2018, T8 of 20T

The Firm's annual goodwill mpairment testing as of July 1,
2019 and 2018 did not indicate any goodwill impairment, &=
reporting units with goodwill had a far value that was
substantially in excess of careying value

Mot Amortizable Intangible Assets Rolorward'

£ 1 st 1% W [ ] Total

Az Docembar 31, 2017 5 348 § 20E2 § 4§ T4
Azouimd - - EE RR
Disposals 18 —_ _ (1]
Amaripation axpanis (el TR (e el
Cchar 13 -— = LE
A2 Decambaer 11, 2000 § /0 % 1828 § B0 £ 24BA
Accuind” 3 F) - ir3
Dhapisals 29y - - (]
ACrTain REpenie a8y v 1% )
Orhar 18 1 - 18
At Depember 31, 2013 § 22T 5 1ERB 5 52 § 2400

Gross Amortizable Intangible Assats by Typa'
l.ll}lﬂnhl'!t. 0 l..1llbh‘:lﬂblr31. g

Gross Groas
Cerping -Amumulites Camying  Acmemslaisd
Adioant

£ by Fremcnd Amoriizadon  Amouni  Ansorizaton
Tradenamas § 205 ™5 M5 £ B0
Cusiomer relsionabips 4371 2763 4,067 2446
Ilsnapsmart conimaots di Jxr Lo am
Crhar 217 163 LEi B0
Tatal $ BI1 E 2304 5 A005 % 2ArT
Extimeed arnual emortimbion sxpenss or Se rexd e yeare - § 307

1 Arcds aschide 55 mlien of mongaga sandcag fghls i 2218
3 At peeiplly dnlest th angast o th Firds heguaiion o Sl Cnpasl e
n ihas sacond guanes of 2018
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10, Other Assets—Equity Method Investments
and Leases

Equity Method Investmants
Al
Dwcesnbar 31, Decernbse 31,
¥ Iy i 1 2018
Irremas e i 5 2363 § 2432
N L L oL
Incons (loss’ S gy anay  pe

1. inchuli impammants of D (st Rusbifei Sgmanty gy
e Freicnti i Bllcen i 3018 541 mllon malated 12 8 thed padty it
marager, i 2015 Sl 2917, 46 illion el 353 millicn, reapectioady, midoed 13 &
S TS [Ty WS MAORT.

Equity method investments, other thin investments in certain
fund nterests, are summarized above and are meluded in Other
assels in the balance sheets with related incom ¢ or loss included
in Other revenues in the income statements. See "MNel Assel
Value Measurements—Fund Interess” inMNaote 3 for the carrying
value ol certam of the Firm s fund interests, which are composed
of general and limate d partnershup inlerests, as well asany related
carmed inferest.

Japanese Securities Joint Venture
# &y s - k] A M B
Incoress froen mvesmant i MUASS 5 T 5 [ 123

The Firmn and Mitsubishi UF) Financial Group, Inc. (“MUFG™)
formed a point venture in fapan comprsing their respective
investment banking and securities businesses by forming two
joint venture companies, Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley
Segurities Co, Lid, (“MUMSS") and Morgan Stankey MUFG
Segurities Co., Ltd. (“MEMS") (the “Joint Venture™). The Fim
owns 3 407 sconomic interest in the Joint Venture and MUFG
owns the other 607,

The Firm's 40fs voting interest in MUMSS 15 accounted for
under the equity method within the Insttutional Securities
business segment, and 5 included in the equity methed
investment balances above, The Firm consolidates MSMS into
the Instiutional Securities business segment, based onits 51%
voling inlerest,

The Firm engages i transactons in the ordinary course of
basiness with MUFG and its affiliates; for example, investment
banking. fimancial advisory, sales and trading. derivatives,
investment management, lending, secuntiztion and other
financen] services transactions, Such transaclions are on
substantially the same terms as those that would be available 1o
unrelated third parties for comparable ransactions
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The Frrm’s leases are prmeipally non-cancelable operating real
estate leases

Balance Sheel Amounts Related (o Loases
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Minimum Future Lease Commitmaents junder Provious GAAP)

A
L1
i sitns: e
20e 5 LT
2020 B&T
2021 B2
2022 656
rE] BT
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Total 5 56T
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Occupancy lease agreements, in addition to base rentals,
generlly provide for rent and operating expense escalalions
resulting from increased assessments for real estate taxes and
other charges,

11. Deposits
Daposits
L Al
Dacembae 31, Decambss 31,

3 iy s 2018 o
Savings ard demanrd dapasity 5 149,485 § 154 80T
Thrres capeondn 40,891 A28
Total 3 10,358 § 187 821
Dmpas = subjec 0 FOIC insuancs ] 14,008 § 144 515
Tl dlperiin Tl aoul of sk T

FDIC insurarcs St 5 12§ 1

Tirme Dopasit Maturitios

H,
5 ir i 2018
2020 3 20,484
20 10,587
a2 3,507
FliFs] 32
o] 2465
Thares e B0
P . s
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12. Borrowings and Other Secured Financings
Maturities and Terms of Borrowings

Veiiald o iy Suitalla Ak -
rm "o H‘.ll\:! 'H“P Dacowber 31,  Docomber 11,
* Hinka gl

_¥ o i Fagl )
‘Driginal sasurifion of prg ot o g
M 13

Lt 4 50 § — - §IgAT R L 1 S
‘Dwiginal sraeritios oo sbar ihan one yoar

to ] 5 - = = — ¥ - % A
0 1654 AR 14 5040 Fr i 24 26
e 13,8148 LA =] RLY EL=s] Th, 085 8 B4
FirEy [ X5 B0 1 1T VA 16, i
boive] [ X5 3447 14 2 H3E i B 13,595
o 11380 I 14 5T 1,0 RLE L]
Tremater RGN WDE WS MM2 ML man
Totat IR LA 200 BADSAd & ABB0E 5 17

Todal
arowings  SE0AA3M B4, 281 8200 BMAM 8 MBRe §  mAR

o

ol
el L S DA AR

1 i e B g v intorsl. B ] £ 1 ket i e, inchuieg LBOR,
Pl by and S0P Arcunts il nate carrc 48 Ui vk adl e
pyriand prininirn. inchaling notes lnked 1 the parfarmancs o o speciie mdan, 8
skl of sirchs, & apacilic aguity secusly, § SOty & St saposinn of bankey
of ol aapomed, and Tl wEh vaidus sl -oe dalied fashee
nvchuching abap-agl, Wep-derari i rain Sfupon

2 Tha around shown or thes Pansnt IBgTasents arounts O in holdsis of

thes Fiar(s Goniia G pretimnd shock fos which o noice of redsmpion wis Housd Ses

Fca 1B Fror uth il rustisn

Ownly inchidess Bomowings with original maheiies [reater than one yaar Wesgh

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley

options used to economically hedge the embedded features are
derivatives and also are carned at far value, Changes in fwr
value related 1o the notes and econemic hedges are reported in
Trading revenues. Sec Notes 2 and 4 for further information on
borrowings carfied st fair value.

Sanior Debt Subjact to Put Options or Liguidity Obligations

At A
IJlHuublr:H Dwzambar 31,

£ v ey 2018
Pt otions el in ek e 5 29¢ 5 520
Linvidiy nblgatiors” ¥ 1344 § 1.204
1 nckuies cbigaiorm b fuppon sesteday ok ding

Subordinated Debt
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Subordmated debt generally s issusd 1o meet the capital
requirements of the Firm or s regulated subsidiaries and
primarily is U5, dollar denominated. Mamrities of subordinated
notes range from 2022 to 2027

Rates for Bormowings with Original Maturities Greater than One
Year

2019 Mg HHJ'

AT CoUpon 18 calculaled iAlng U S, and nonllS dollar isierest e and
ks Mnoncial inainersnts ion whech s G valos option s slecisgd '.lh.p’ll
of th wariabls rabe notes soed by subsidianies mm comed o (el valus 50 8 wekgl

Contractual weighled aversge coupan” 4% 3sW  33%
ESwcthes wigghind svstigs coupon a % bwigr 9%  3E%  15%
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Borrewings with Original Maturities Greator than One Yaar

At AL
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Certaan senicr debdt secuntees are denominated in vanous non-
L5, dollar currencies and niay be structured 1o provide a retum
that 15 linked 1o eqpaity, eredit, commadity or other indices (e.g,,
the consumer price index). Sendor debt alzo may be structured
to b callable by the Firm or extendible at the eption of holders
of the senior debt securities

The Firm s Borrow mgs also mchede notes camed and managed
ona fairvalue basis, These include instruments whose payments
and redemption valwes are linked o the performance of aspecilic
index, a basketof stocks, & specific equity security, a commadity,
a credit exposure or basket of credit exposures, and instrum ents
with varnous interest-rate-rebated features, including step-ups,
step-downs and zero coupons. To minimize the exposure from
such nstruments, the Firm has entered into various swap
contracts and purchased optums that effectively convert the
bormowing costs ko (loating rates. The swaps and purchased

Dazcember 2019 Form 10-K
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In general, other than securties inventores and customer
balances firanced by secused funding sources, the majority of
the Firm's assets are financed with o combanation of deposits,
short-term funding, Neating rate long-term debt or fixed rate
long-term debt swapped toa floatmg rate. The Firm uses interest
rate swaps to more closely match these borowings o the
duration, holding period and interest rate characteristics of the
assets being funded and tomanage interestmte risk. These swaps
effectively convert certain of the Firm''s ficed rate borrowmgs
inte floating rate obligations. In addiion, for non-U.5. dollar
currency borrowing: that are not used 1o fund assets inthe same
currency, the Firm has entered mio cumency swaps that
effectively convent the barrowmgs inte 1.5, dollar obligatons.

The Firm’s use of swaps for asset and liability management
affects ns effective average bormowing rate
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Othar Sacured Financings
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Othser secured financings include the labilities related to certain
ELNs, transfers of financial assets that are accounted for as
fimancings rather than sales, pledged commoadities, consalidated
VIEs where the Firm is deemed to be the prmary beneficiary
and other secured borrowings. These liabilties are gencrally
payable from the cash flows of the related assets accounted for
s Trading assets. See Note 14 for further information on other
secured financings related to VIEs and securitization activities
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Maturities of Transfars of Assels Accounted for as Securad
Financings'
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1, Exthudas Secoritivn b urdes sgrssrunts 1 ipurthans s Seciities kxnc
For translers of assets that fal to meet accounting critena for a
sale, the Firm continues 1o record the assets and recognizes the
associated liabilities in the balance sheets

13 Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies

Commitmants
5 v b Total
Lendrs:
Comporate § FREAT § 34547 § 4TS24 § 5940 $141,083
G i T i L] = TH6T
Rlasicanial arg
Carrint zal faal
#slale I ama BB m 1.418
Forward-siart
unndn-ﬂ
moesvablas £3.313 22 — 11881 5137
Undenariing T — ot - BT
Iressimin! acivisies o s B0 i 1,303
Latiers of owedl and
o Srarcal
_ pAranee 188 2 == i 100
Totsl 5 EAEY & 35440 § LROTE § AT §1067338
Corpores lending commimenss particjuisd to Find paies 5 B,003

Forwasd-siaring frarcing mosksbins waited within thme
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Since commitments associated with these instruments may
expire unused, the amounts shown do ned necessarly reflect the
actual futsre cash funding requirements.

Types of Contnritments

Lending  Commritments. Lending  commuments  primanly
represent the notienal amount of legally binding obligations 1o
provide funding to clients for different types of loaniransactions.
This category also includes commitments in loan form provided
to clearinghouses or sssocited depositories of which the Firm
15 4 member and are contingent wpon the defaull of a
cleannghouse member or other siress event. For syndications
that are led by the Fimm, the lending commitments accepled by
the borrower but not vel chosed are net of the amounts agreed

Deecember 2019 Form 10-K
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o by counterparties that will participate in the syndieation. For
symadications that the Firm participates in and does not Jead,
lending commiments accepted by the borower bul nol vel
closed imclude only the amount that the Firm expects it will be
allocated froem the lead syndicate bank. Due to the nntuge of the
Fim's obhgations under the commitments, these amounts
inehade certiin comnitm enits participated to third parties.

Forward-Starting  Secured  Financing  Receivables. This
amount includes securities purchased under agreements toresel|
and secunties borrowed that the Firm has entered into prios 1o
the balance sheet date that will settle afier the balance sheet date.
Also ncluded are commiiiments 1o enter Mo securities
purchased underagreements to rese ll that ane provided to.certain
clearnghouses of associated depositonies of which the Fim 1=
amember and are contingent upon the defaul of s cleannghouse
member or other stress event. These transactions are primanly
secured by collateral from PS5, government agency securities
and other soverergn govenment obligations when they are
funded

Uinderwriting Comnrimments, The Firm provides underwmiting
commitments in connection with its capital raising sources toa
diverse group of corporate and other institsional clents,

Investment  Activities. The Firm  sponsors several non-
consolidated investment management funds for third-party
investors where it typically acts as general partner of, and
investment advisor to, these Tunds and typically commits 1o
invest g minacity of the capital of such funds, with subscribing
third-party investors contributing the majority. The Firm has
contraciual capital commitments, guarantees and counterpanty
arangements With pespect 1o these investient management
funds.

Letters of Credit amd Other Financial Guarariees. The Firm
has outstanding ketters of credit and other fnancial guarantees
issued by third-panty banks 1o certain of the Firm's
counterparties. The Firm 1= contingently lizble for these letters
of credit and other financeal guarantees, which are primarily
used to provide collateral for securities and commodities traded
and to sabisly varous masgin requrements in eu of depositing
cash or securities with these counterpartics,

Dazcember 2019 Form 10-K

1212

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley

Guarantees

Obligations wnder Guarantes Arrangemantis a1 December 31,
2018
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Types af Guarantees

Derivative Comfracts, Certain derivative contracts meet the
accounting definmion of 4 guarantee, ncluding centan wrillen
aptions, contingent forward contracts and CDS (sse MNote 5
regarding credit dervatives in which the Firm has sold credst
protection to the counterpary). All derivative contracts that
could meet thas accounting definftionof a guaraniee are ncluded
in the previous table, with the notional amount used as the
maximum potential payout for certain denvative contracts, such
as wiillen interest rate cages and wittlen foreign currency oplions,
The Firm evalumes collateral requirements for all denvatives,
includmg dervatives that do not meet the accounting definition
of a guarantee. For the effects of cash collateral and counterpanty
netting, see Nate 3,

In certain situations, collateral may be held by the Firm (or those
contracts that meet the definition of a guarantee. Generally, the
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Firm setz collateral requirements by counterparty 3o that the
collateral covers various transactions and products and 15 mot
allocated specifically to mdividual contracts. Also, the Firm may
recover amounts related to the underbying asset delivered to the
Firen under the derivative contract

Stamaby Letters of Credit and Cther Financial Guarantees
Isswed In conmection with its corporate lending business and
other corporate activities, the Firm provides standby letters of
credit and other Dinancial guaraniees to counterparties. Such
arrangements represent obligations 1o make payvments 1o third
parties 1f the counterpany fals to fulfill s obligation under 4
borrowing arrangement or other comtractual obligation. A
maponity of the Furn's standby letters of credit are provided on
behnll of coumterparties that are wwvestment grade IF the
counterparty fanls to fulfill its contractual obligation, the Firm
has aceéss to collateral or recourse that would approcamate s
oblization

Market Valwe Guargniees, Market value guarantees ire sssued
to puarantee timely pavment of & specified return to investors
in certain affordable housing tax eredit funds. These guarantees
are designed 1o retumn an investor's contribation to a fund and
the nvestor's share of 1ax lesses and tax credins expected 1o be
penerated by a fund.

Liguidity Fecilities The Firm has entered into liqudity facilities
with SPEs and other coumerpartics, whereby the Fim s
required to make certain pavments if losses or defaults oceur.
Primanly, the Firm acts as haguudity provider to municipal bonsd
securitization SPEs and for standalone municipal bonds in
which the holders of beneficial interests isswed by these SPEs
of the holders of the individual bonds, respectively, have the
right to tendder their mterests for purchase by the Firm on
specified dates al a specified price. The Firm oflen may have
recourse to the underlying assets held by the SPEs in the event
paymenis are requared under such liquidity facilines, as well as
make-whole or recourse provistons with the trust sponsors. The
recourse amount often exceeds the maximum potential payout
amount of the guarantee. Substantially all of the underlving
mssets in the SPEs are investment grade. Liguidity facilities
provided 1o municipal ender option bond trusts are classihed

as derivatives.

Whole Loan Sales Guarantees, The Firm has provided, or
otherwise agreed to be responsible for, representations and
warranties regarding ceriain whole loan sales. Under certain
circumstances, the Firm may be reguired to repurchase such
assets or make other payments related 1o such assets if such
representations and warranties are breached. The Firm's
maximum podential payout related 10 such representations and
warrnties 15 equal tothe current UPE of such loans. Since the
Firm no longer services these loans, it has no mformation on the
current UPB of those loans, and accordingly, the amouwnt
included in the previows table represents the UFR at the timie of
the whede loan sale or a1 the time when the Firm last serviced
any of those loans. The cumremt UFB balances could be
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substantially bower than the madimem potential payout amount
nsluded m the previous table. The related hability primanily
relates 1o sales of loans 1o the federal mortgage agencies.

Securifization Representations and Warranties. As part of the
Firm's  Institutional  Securities  business  segmient’s
secuntizations and related activittes, the Firm has provided, or
otherwise agreed to be responsible for, representations and
warmanties regarding certnin assets trarsferred in securitimtion
transactions sponsorgc by the Firm, The extent and nature of the
representations and warranties, if any, vary among different
secuntizations. Under certam circumstances, the Firm may be
required to repurchase certain assets or make other pavments
related 1o such assets if such representations and warmranties are
breached The maximum potential amount of future pavments
the Firm could be requured tomake would be equal tothe current
outstanding balances of, or losses sssocsated with, the assets
subject to breaches of such representations and warranties. The
amount included mthe previows table for the maimum potential
pavoul includes the current UPB or histonical losses where
known, and the UPE at the ume of sale when the current UPE
12 not known

Cmreral Partner Guaraniess, A5 » general pastner in certain
wnvestment mansgement funds, the Firm receves ceamn
distributions from the pannerships when the retum exceeds
specified performance targels according io the provisions of the
partnership agreements, The Firm may be required to retum all
or a pertion of such distnbutions to the lmiied partners in the
event the hmited pariners do not achieve a certain retumn as
specified in the varnous partnership agreements, subject to
certain limitations.

Client Clearing Guarantees In 2019, the Firm became a

member of the Government Secunities Division of
the FICC's Sponsored Clearing Model Clients of the Firm, as
sponsared members, can iransc in ovemight securities
repurchase and resale agreements, which are cleared through
F1EC, As sponsoring member, the Firm guaraniees o FICT the
prompt and full payvment and performance of s clients’
chbligations, The amount included in the previous table
represents the maximum polential payvout the Firm coudd be
responsible for through the guaraniee it provides. The Firm
minimizes credit exposure under this guarantes by obtaining a
security mterest in its spum-nd member clients” collateral and
their contractual rights urder sponsored member transsctions.
Therefore, the Firm's exposure 15 estimated 10 be an amount
substantially lower than the maximum potential payout amount.
The collateral amount in which the Firm has a sccurity intenest
iz appromately equal iothe maxmium potential pavout amount
of the guarantee,

Orther Guarantees amd Indemnities

In the nommal course of business, the Firm provides guarantees
and mdemnifications in o varety of tmnmctions. These
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provisions genestlly are standard contractual terms. Certain of
these guarantees and indemmifications are desenbed below:

* Indemnities. The Fim provides standard indemmities 1o
counterparties for certain contingent exposures and taxes,
including LS. and foreign withholding taxes, on interest and
other payments made on denvatives, securties and stock
lending transactions, certain annuily products and other
financial amrangements. These indemnity payments could be
requured based on @ change n the tax laws, a change in
interpretation of applicable tax rulings or a change in factual
circumstances. Ceram contracts ¢ontain provisions that
ennble the Firm to tersinate the agreement upon the
occurrence of such events, The maximum potential amount
of future payvments that the Fiem could Be required 1o make
under these indemmifications cannot be estimated

Exchange Clearmghouse Member Guarartees. The Firm 1=
a member of various exchanges and clearinghowses that trade
and clear securities and'or derivative contracts. Associated
with rs membership, the Firm may be required to pay a.certain
amount as determined by the exchange or the clearinghouse
incaseof adefaultof any of its mem bers or pay a proportionate
share of the inancial oblegations of another member that may
delault on s obligations (o the exchange or the clearinghose.
While the rules govermng different exchange or
cleaninghouse mem berships and the fﬂrma.al'ﬂbcscgmnt:c:
my vary, in general the Fom's obligations under these rules
would arise only if the exchange or cleaninghouse had
previcusly exhausted its resources.

In addition, some clearinghouse rules require members 1o
assume o propofticnate share of losses resulting from the
cleaninghouse’s investment of guarantee fund contnbubions
and 1mutial mangm, and of other losses unrelated to the default
of a clearing member, 1f such losses exceed the specified
resources allocaied for such purpose by the clearinghouse

The maximun potential payout under these rules cannot be
estimated. The Firm has not recorded any contingent liabality
in its financial statements for these agreements and belieyes
that any potential reqpuirement to make payments under these
agreements i rémole.

Mevger and Acqurisition Guarantees. The Firm may, from time:
to time, in it role as investment banking advisor be required
to provide guarantees m connection with certan Europenn
merger and acquisition transactions. If required by the
regulating muthonties, the Firm provides a guarantes that the
acguirer in the merger and acquisition transaction has or will
hawee sufficient funds to complete the transaction and would
then be required tomake the scquasitron pavments inthe event
the scquirer’s funds are insulficient at the completion date of
the transaction. These amangements generally cover the time
frame from the transaction offer date 1o ks closing date and,
therefore, are generally shortterm innature. The Firm belieyes
the likehhood of any payment by the Frrm under these
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armngements is remote given the level of its due diligence in
s role as investiment banking advisor,

In addiion, in the ordinary course of business, the Firm
guarantees the debt and/or certain trading obligations (including
obligations associated with denvatives, foreign exchange
contractsand the settlement of physical commodities) of certain
subsidiaries. These guaraniees generally are entity or product
speci{ic and are required by imvestors.or trading counterparties.
The activiies of the Fim's subsidianes coversd by these
pumrantees (including any relsted debt or trading obligations)
are ineludesd in the Ninanceal statements.

Contingencies

Legal

In addition 1o the matters descnbed below, in the normal course
of business, the Firm has been named, from time 1o time, a5 a
defendant in various legal actions, incheding arbitrations, cliss
actions and other hitigetion, arsing in connection with 1ts
activities as a global diversified financial services institution.
Certain of the actual or threatensed legal acttons include claims
Terr substantial compensatony and'or punitive damages or claims
for ndeterminate amounts of damages. In some cuses, the
entities that would otherwise be the primary defendants in such
cases are bankruptor are in financial distress. These sctions have
angluded, bast are nof himited 1o, residentinl mortgage and creda
crisis-related matters.

White the Furm has identified below any individual proceedings
where the Firm believes amatenal lossto be reasonably possible
and reasonably estimable, there canbe noassurance that material
lesses will not be incurred from cliums that have not vet been
asserted or are not vet determmed to be probable or possible amd
reasonably estimable losses,

The Firm contesis hability and'or the amount of demages as
approprigte  in each pending mater. Where  available
information indicates that it & probable a lability had been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the Firm can
reasonably estimate the amount of that loss, the Fam accrues
the estimated hoss by a change 1o income,

] Lo L L1
Lol mepria $ 5§ mes

The Firms future legal expenses may fectuste from period 1o
periosd, given the curremt environment regarding government
investigations and private litigation affecting global financial
services firms, including the Firm,

In many proceedings and investigations, however, it is
nherently difficult to deterniine whether any loss 1 probable or
even possible or to estimate the amount of any loss, In addition,
even where o loss is possible or on exposure to loss exists in
execess of the lmbadity already acensed with respect o @
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previously recognized boss contingency, it is nol abw ays poasible
o reasonably estimate the size of the possible loss or range of
loss.

Forcertainlegal procesdingsand investigations, the Firm canmot
reasorably estimate such losses, particularly for proceedings
and 1w estizations where the factual record 15 being developed
or comested or where plainufls or government entities seek
substantial or indeterminate damapes, restitution, disgorgement
o penaltes. Numerous issugs may need 1o be resolved,
including  through  potentially  lergthy  discovery  and
determination of important @ewal matters, determinsateon of
igsues related to class certification and the calculation of
damages or other relief, and by addressing novel or unsettled
legal questions relevant to the procesdings of investigations in
question, before a loss or addiional loss or range of loss or
additional range of loss can be reasomably estimated for a
proceeding or mvestigation.

For certmn other legal proceedings and investigations, the Firm
can estimate reasonably possible losses, addiional losses,
ranges of loss or ranges of additional koss in excess of amounts
acerued hut does not believe, based on current knowledge and
after consubation with counsel, that such losses will have o
material adverse effect on the Firm s Dnancial statements asa
whaole, other than the matters referred 10 in the following

paragraphs.

Cn July 15, 2M0, China Development Industnial Bank
(“COHBE™) filed a complant against the Fiom, styled Chima
Development fndustrial Hank v Morgan Stanley & Co
Incorporated et al, which is pending in the Supreme Court of
the State of Mew York, New York County {"Supreme Court of
NY") Thecomplaint relates to a 3275 million DS referencing
the super senior portion of the STACK 2006-1 CDO. The
complamt asserts claims for common kaw fraud, freudulent
inducement and fraudulemt concealment and alleges that the
Firm misrepresented the nsks of the STACK 2006-1 CDO 1o
CDIE, and that the Firm knew that the assets backing the CE
were of poor quality when it entered into the CDS with CDIE,
The complaint seeks compensatory damages related to the
approximately 3228 millonthat CDIE alleges thas already kst
under the CI5, rescission of CIIB's obligation 1o pay an
additional 312 mallion, punitive damages, equitable relief, fees
and costs, On February 23, 2011, the court derued the Firm's
metion o dismiss the complaint. On December 21, 213, the
court demaed the Furm's motion for summary judgment and
granted in part the Firm's motion for sanctsons relatmg 1o
spolistion of evidence, Cn Jamuany 24, 2019, CDIE fled anotice
of appeal from the court’s December 21, 2018 order, and on
January 25, 20019, the Firm filkedanotice of appeal from the saime
order. On March 7, 2019, the court dended the relief that CDIB
sought inamotkon toclanfy andresetthe the portionof the court's
December 21, 2018 order granting spolistion sanctions. On
December 3, 2019, the Appellate Division, First Department
{“First Depariment”™) heard the parties” cross appeals. Based on
currently avarlable information, the Finm beleves 18 could meur
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a loss in thas action of up to approximately $240 million phes
pre- and post-udgment interest, fees and cosls

On July 8, 2013, 115, Bank Mational Association, in its capacity
as trustee, filed a complaint against the Fiom styled ULS, Bark
National Association, selely tn ies capacity ar Trustee of the
Morgan Stanley Mortpage Loaw Trust 2007248 (MSA
2007-24X) v Morgan Stanley Morigage Capital Holdings LLC,
Swccessor-br-Merger to Morgan Staniey Morteage Capital Inc.
aind GrvenPoimt Mortgage Funding, Ine., pending n the
Supeeme Court of NY. The complaint asserts chams for breach
of contruct and alleges, among other things, that the loans in the
trust, which had an original principal halance of approximately
3630 mallion, breached various representations and warmanties.
The complaint seeks, among other relief, specific performince
of the loan breach remedy procedurcs i the transaction
documents, unspecified damagesand mnterest. OnMovember 24,
2014, the court granted in part &nd denied in part the Firm's
medion o dismiss the complaini. On Apal 4, 2009, the count
denied the Firm™s motion w0 renew its motion to dismis. Based
on currently available mfomation, the Firm believes that o
coubd incur a loss in this action of up to approximately 5240
millicn, the total onginal unpaid balance of the mortgage loans
for which the Firm received repurchase demands that it did not
repurchase, plus pre- and post-judgment interest, fees and costs,
but plamtifl = seeking to expand the number of loans at issue
and the possible range of loss could increase,

On September 23, 2004, Financial Guaraniy Insurnce
Company (“FGIC) filed a complaint agamst the Fim i the
Supreme Court of NY styled Firmancial Guaranty Tnsirance
Company v. Movgan Stanley ABS Capital ] Tnc. et al relating to
the Morgan Stanley ABS Capital 1 Inc. Trust 2007-NC4. The
complainl esserts claims for breach of contract and fraudulent
inducement and alleges, among other things, that the loans in
the trust breached various representations and warmnties and
defendants made untrue statements and material omissions Lo
inchece FGIC to issue a financial guaranty pelicy on certain
classes of certificates that had an onginal balance of
approximately S876 million. The complaint szcks, amaong other
reliel, specific performance of the loan breach remedy
procedires in the tmnsadlion documents, compensalony,
consespaential and purstive damages, attomeys’ fees and
wnderest. Om Janary 23, 201 7, the court demed the Firm “smolwn
o dismiss the complaint. On September 13, 2018, the First
Department affarmed in part and reversed in pairt the lower
court’s order denving the Firm's motion 1o dismiss. On
December 20, 2008, the First Department dented plaintiff™s
mation for feave to appeal its decision to the Mew York Court
aof Appeals ("Court of Appeals™) or, in the aliermative, for re-
argument. Based on currently available information, the Firm
believes that it could incur a loss in this action of wp 1o
approximately $277 million, the total onginal unpaid balance
of the mongage loans for which the Firm received repurchise
demunds from a certificate holder and FGIC that the Firm did
nol repurchase, plus pre- and post- judgment interest, foes and
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costs, a3 well as claim payments that FGIC has made and will
make in the future. In addition, plantff s secking to expand the
numbser of loans at issue and the possible range of less could
INGreass

On January 23, 201 5, Deutsche Bank: National Trust Company,
initscapaciy os trustee, fledacomplamtagaimst the Firm styled
Drerntsche Bank National Trust Comparty solely in ils capacity
a5 Trustee of the Morgan Stanlev ABS Capital | Inc. Trust 2007-
NC4 v Morgan Stanley Movtgage Capital Holdimgs LLC ax
Sieeessor-be-Mengerto Morgan Stonley Mortgage CapitalIne,
avved Mavgan Stanley ABS Capatal | fne,, pendhing in the Supreme
Court of WY, The complaint assens claims for breach of contract
andalleges, among other things, that the loans inthe trust, which
had an original principal balince ofapproximately 5 105 billion,
breached various representations and warranties. The complaimt
secks, among other rehel, specific performance of the loan
breach remedy procedurcs in the tramsaction documents,
com pensatory, consequential, rescissony, equitable and punitive
damages, attornevs” fees, costs and other related expenses, and
interest. On December 11, 2013, the count granted in part and
dented in part the Firm's motion to dismiss the complaint. On
Cictober 19, 2018, the court granted the Firm's motion for leave
1o amend its answer and o stay the case pending resolution of
Deutsche Bank Mational Trust Company's appeal to the Courn
of Appeals m another ease, styled Deutsohe Bank Nationa! Trst
Companyv. Farclays Bank FLC, regarding the applicable statute
of limitations. On January 17, 2019, the First Department
reversed the tnal cowt’s order 1o the extent that ot had granted
in part the Firm's motion o dismiss the complant. On June 4,
2019, the First Department granted the Fim s motion for leave
toappeil o the Court of Appeals. Based on cusrently available
information, the Firm believes that it could incur a loss in this
action of up 1o approxmately 5277 million, the total onginal
unpaid balance of the mongage keans for which the Firm
received repurchase demands from a certificate holder and a
menaline insurer that the Firm did nea repurchase, plus pre- and
post-judgment interest, fees and costs, b plamiill s secking 10
expund the number of loans a1 ssue and the possible ange of
loas could increase.

Tax

In matters styled Case number 153637 and Case mumber
134353, the Duich Tax Auwthonity (“Dutch Authority™) has
challenged, mihe Disirict Court in Amsterdam, the prior set-off
by the Firm of approximately €1 24 million (approximately $139
million) plus acerued mterest of withholding tax credits agamst
the Firm’s corporation tax liabilities for the 1ax years 2007 to
013, The Duich Authority alleges that the Firm was not entitled
torecerve the withholding tax credits on the bases, mter alia, that
a Firm subsidiary did not hold legal utke 10 cemam securities
subject to withhalding tax on the relevamt dates. The Dutch
Authority his alzo alleged tha the Firm faaled to provide ceran
infarmation to the Dutch Awthority and keep adequate books
and recends, Om Apnl 26, 2013, the District Count in Amsterdam
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isaued a decwion dismissing the Duich Authority's claims. On
June 4, 2008, the Dutch Awthonty filed an appeal before the
Court of Appeal inAmsterdam inmatters re-styled Case number
1800318 and Case number 1800319, On June 26 and July 2,
2019, a heasing of the Duich Awtherity s appeal was held Based
on currently available nformation, the Firm behieves that 1
coilld incur a loss in this action of up 10 spprosamately €124
miltion (approximately 5139 million) plus accrued interest

14. Variahle Interest Entities and Securitization
Activities

Overview

The Firm s mvolved with vasieus SPEs inthe normal course of
basiness, In most cases, these entities are deemed 10 be VIEs.

The Firm's vaneble interests in VIEs inchade debt and aquity
interests, commitrments, puarantess, derivative instruments and
certan fees. The Firm's involvement with VIEsanses pnmanily
from

» Interests purchased m connection with market-making
activities, securitses held in its Investment secunties portfolio
and retmned interests held as a resubl of securitization
activities, including re-securilization transactions.

= (uarantees issued and resmdual  imterests retained in
connection with municipal bond securitizations

* Loans made toand investments in V1Esthat hold debt, equity,
real estate or other assels.

= Derivatives emered into with VIEs

= Structuring of CLMNs or otherassel-repackaged notes desipned
1o meet the investment ohjectives of clients.

= Other structured transactions designed o provide tax-eflicent
yiehds 1o the Firm o ats clients

The Firm determines whether it i the primary beneficiary of a
VIE upon its initial invelvement with the VIE and reassesses
whether it 1sthe prmany beneficiary onan engomg bases as long
as it has any continang nvolvement with the VIE. Ths
determination is based upon ananalysis of the design of the VIE,
including the VIE S structure and activities, the power to make
sigmificant economie decisions held by the Firm and by other
partzes, ol the vasmble interests owned by the Firm and other
partics.

The power o make the mest significant economic decisions may
take a number of different formes in dilferent types of VIEs The
Firm conssders servicing or collateral management decisions as
representing the power 10 make the most sipnificant sconomic
decisions in transactions such as secunitizations or CTX0s, As a
result, the Fimm does not consabidate securiizations o CDOs
for which it does not act a5 the servicer or collateral manager
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unless it holds certain other nghts 1o replace the servicer or
collateral manager or to requare the liquisdation of the entity. T
the Firm serves as servicer or collateral manager, or has certain
other rights descnbed in the previows sentence, the Firm
analyzes the interests in the VIE that it holds and consolidates
enly those VIEs for whih it holds a potentsally signi licant
interest i the VIE

For many transsctions, such as re-securitization transactions,
CLNsand other asset-repackaged notes, there are mo sigmificent
ecomomic decisions made on an ongoing basis. [n these cases,
the Firm focuses itsanalysis ondecisions masde priorto the imnmal
closing of the transaction and at the teemination of the
transaction, The Firm concluded in most of these transactions
that decisions made prior to the mitial closing were shaged
between the Firm and the nitial myvestors based upon the nature
of the assets, mcluding whether the assets were issued In a
transaction sponsored by the Firm and the extent of the
information available to the Firm and to imvestoes, the number,
nature and involvement of investors, other nghts held by the
Firm and investors, the sandardization of the legal
documentation and the level of contimung nwvolvement by the
Firm, including the amount and type of interests owned by the
Firm and by other investors. The Firm focused its control
decision on any rght held by the Firm or mvestors related 1o the
termination of the VIE Most re-securitization transactions,
CLMs and other asset-repackaged notes have no such
termination rghts.

Consolidated VIE Assels and Liabilities by Type of Activity

MMM.IN?_ A3 Decambar 21, 2000

# iy mimony VIE Asses  WIE Liabiities  VIE Assals  VEE Linbiiss
OEF L L= £ 875 —
HARST Ee ] 4 5 a
Gehar’ AT L] anG 48
Tatal ] 1348 § 461 § 1136 § B&

Fapir vy of By Bahailien: ncl B nieresiy cwniecl By the P insuch '@ Ex e e fair
by fiof e Al il ] teraaky Coed bol Mo chastoabin

2 Other primandly inchudes g At
Iranaction

fnchy and shioshued
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Consolidaled VIE Assets and Liabilities by Balancae Sheat
Caption

Al Al

Decombar M, Dmosmber 31,

F oy 2019 018
Assols
Cash and cask scuivalents:

Cash ard dus fram barks 1 ME £ e

Re=rded cask im3 i
Trading assaty at fair velus 943 M4
i and o il 18 25
Gzl _ 18
Imjargitila asiats 111 LRI
Ckar mnsats 388 402
Totald 5 1,048 § 1,035
Linbdiles
Cretoer aacured finsrcings § 422 8 bl
Cether BalEins ond el expsraes s a2
Total 3 461 % ki1
Moncoronlieg e ;] 192 § K

Consolidated VIE assets and habilities are presented i the
previous tables after mtercempany eliminations. Generally,
mes assets owned by consohdated VIEs cannet be removed
umilaterally by the Firm and are not available 1o the Firm while
the related liabalities issued by consolidated VIEs are non-
recourse o the Firm, However, in certain consolidaed VIEs,
the Firm either has the umlateral nght to remove assets or
provides additional recourse through derivatives such as total
refurn swaps, puarantees or other forms of involvement.

In general, the Firm 's exposure 10 loss in consolidated VIEs is
limited to besses that would be ahsorbed on the VIE net assets
recognized in ita financial statements, net of amounts absorbed
by third-party vanahle interest holders.

Non-consolidated VIEs

At December 31, 2045
MABE'  GDO MTOR Q5=

5 1y i 'n-.rn-’_

VIE asants (UPE) $125601 § 2074 § 6065 § R34 L 89,305
Mazimem sxposere B loas”

g:-h;c:dam 5 1634 § 240 § - 5 18 § 11,8577
Durbvative and ober

AR —_ - & B33 - 2,505
&m&i’m‘]

g o - - - m
Total § 16848 § 240 % 4689 § 1049 § 16238
Carrging walus of variable inteeate—Azsoin
Dot and

niwresis § 1634 § 4D § — § 1844 3 110077
Darivative and eher

ST - - [ - 388
Tatal 5 16314 & 240 8 6 § 1008 § 12,365
Ascitional VIE suinis owred 4 11,453
Dwmiivativn ind o er

coniracts 5 e A | -8 - F Al
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Datail of Mortgage- and Asset-Backed Securitization Assets

Ax Decomber 11, 2040 &1 Decamber 1. 20107
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The magority of the VIEs meluded mn the previous 1ables are
sporsored by unrelated parties, examples of the Frm's
involvement with these VIEs include s secondary market-
making activities and the securities held in its Invesiment
securies portfolio (see MNote 6).

The Firm s macimum exposure tolossis dependent on the nature
of the Firm's vanable intzrest in the VIE and 15 limited to the
netional amounts of certain liquidity facilities and other credit
support, tofal return swaps and written put options, as well as
the fair valee of cerain other derivatives and investments the
Firm has made in the VIE

The Firm's maximum e¢xposure 1o loss m the previous tables
does not imclode the offsetting benefit of hedpges or any
reductions associated with the amount of collateral held as pan
of & transaction with the VIE or any party 1o the VIE directly
against a specific exposure to loss.

Liabilities isawed by VIEs generally are non-recourse to the
Firm
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Securilization Activilies

In a secuntization transaction, the Firm transfers assels
(generally commercinl or reswdentinl morigage loans of
securties) W an SPE, sells 1o investors most of the benelicial
nderests, such gs motes or certificales, wssued by the SPE, and,
in many cases, refams other beneficial interests. The purchase
of the transferred assets hy the SPE i financed through the sale
of these interests,

In many securitization lranesclions myolving commercial
morigage loans, the Firm transfers a portion of the assets to the
SPE with wnwrelated paies transferving the remaining assets. In
addition, mainly in securlizalion Cransaclions  invalving
residential mortgage loans, the Fom may sko énter mlo
derivative transactions, pnmarnly mterest rate sWaps of interest
rate caps, with the SPE.

Although not obligated, the Firm generally makes a market in
the securitics isswed by SPEs i securitization transactions. As
a market maker, the Firm offers to buy these securities from,
amd sell these securihes 1o, mvestors, Securilies purchased
thirouzh these tiarkel-making activities are nod considered 1o be
retamed  mierests; these benelicial interests gemerally are
included in Trading asscts—Corporate and other debt and are
measured at fair value.

The Firm enters mto denvatives, generally mierest rate swaps
and nterest rate caps, with a senior pavmenl priority nmany
securtization transactions. The nsks associated with these and
similar derivatives with SPEs are essentially the same s similar
derivatives with non-3FE counterparties and are managed as
parl of the Firm's overall exposure, See Note 5 for further
information on dervative nstrurments and hedging activities.

Tnvestmeent Securities

The Firm holds securities issued by VIEs within the Investment
securities portfolio. These securities are composed of those
related 1o transactions sponsored by the federal mongapge
agencies and predominantly the most senior securites issued by
VIEs backed by student leans and commercial mortgage loans.
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Tranzactions sponsored by the federal moripage agencies
inglude an exphcn or implicn guaraniee provided by the U5,
povernment. Additionally, the Firm holds certain commercaal
mortgage-backed scourtties ssued by V1Es retamed as a result
of the Firm's secuntization activities, See Mote & for further
infarmation on the Investment secusiies portioho,

Municipal Tender Option Bowd Trusts

In & municipal tender oplion bond trust transaction, the client
transfers a municipal bond to a trust, The trust issues short-term
securities that the Firm, as the remarketing agent, sells o
investors. The chient generally retains a residual interest. The
shorl-term securities are supported by a hgudity facdlity
pursuant to which the investors may put their shost-term
interests. In most programs, a thied-party provider will provide
such houndity facility; n some programs, the Firm prov ides this
Isquadity facility

The Firm may, in lieu of purchasing shom-ierm secuniiies for
remarketing. decade 1o extend a temporary loan to the trust. The
client can generally terminate the transaction at any time. The
lsquidity provider can generally terminate the transaction upon
the occurrence of certain events, When the fransaction is
termimnated, the municipal bond 15 generally sold or retumed 10
the client. Any losses suffered by the liquidity provider upon the
sale of the bond are the responsibility of the client This
chligation 15 generally colluteralized, Liquadity [acibines
provided 1o municipal tender option bond trusts are classified
as denvatives. The Frim consolidates any municipal tender
option bond trusts in which it holds the residual interest.

Credit Protection Purchased tirongh CredissLinked Notes

CLN tramsactions are designed 1o provide imvestors with
exposure bo certain credit risk on referenced assets. In these
transactions, the Firm transfers assets (generally high-guality
securiies of money market investmenis) to an SPE, enters into
a denwvative transaction m whach the SPE sells protection on an
unrelated referenced asset or group of assets, through a credit
derivative, and sellzthe securities issued by the SPE toinvestors.
In some transactions, the Firm may also enter inlo interest rate
or currency swaps with the SPE. Depending on the structure,
the assets and liabilities of the SPE may be consolidated and
recognized in the Firm's balance sheets or accounted for as a
sale of assels.

Lipon the cccurrence of a credit event related to the referenced
aszet, the SPE will deliver securities collateral as pavment to the
Firm, which exposes the Firm to changes in the collateral’s
value.

Dervative payments by the SPE are collateralized. The risks
associated with these and smmilar derivatives with SPEs are
essentially the same as those with non-SFE counterparties and
are managed as part of the Firm's ovenall exposure.
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Cither Structured Financings

The Farm invests minterests ssued by entities that develop and
own low-income communities {including low-imcome housing
projects) and entities that construct and own facilities that will
generate energy from remewable resowrces, The interests entitle
the Firm to o share of tae credits and tax losses generated by
these projects. In addition, the Firm has 1ssued guaraniees to
investors in certain bow-income housing funds. The guarantees
are designed Lo retum an nvestor™s comribution to a fund and
the investor™s share of tax losses and tax credits expected 1o be
generated by the fund. The Firm 15 also imvolved with entities
desigried to provide tax-eMicient vields to the Firm ar s clients.

Collateralized Loan and Debs Obligetions

CLOs and CDOs are SPEs that purchase o pool of assets
consesting of corporate loans, corporate bonds, ABS or synthetic
exposures on similar assets through derivatives, and issue
multiple tranches of debt and equity securifies to investors, The
Firm underwnies the secunities issued m certan CLO
transactions on behall of unaflfilated sponsors and provides
advisory services 1o these unafliliated sponsors. The Firm sells
corporate loans 1o many of these SPEs, in some cases
representing a significant portion of the total assets purchased.
Ahbough not ebligated, the Firm generally makes a market in
the securities issued by SPEs inthese transactions andmay retain
unsold securitics, These beneficial interests are included in
Trading assets and are measured at fair value.

Equity-Linked Notes

ELN wmnsactions are designed to provide investors with
exposiine to cenain fisks relmed 1o the specific equily security,
equity index or ether index. In an ELN transaction, the Firm
typically transfers to an SPE either a note issued by the Fom,
the payments on which are linked to the performance of a
specific equity security, equity index or other mdex, or debt
securities issued by other companies and a denvative contract,
the terms of which will relate to the performance of a specific
cquily  security, ogquity index or other index These ELX
transactions with SPEs were not consolidated a1 December 31,
2019 or December 31, 2015,
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Transfarred Assets with Continuing Invelvemant’
4t December 31, 2019°
S

19,83 & B410

RhL GhL
5 0,850 536,203 §

F v Frsdicr
EPE assats (UPE}
Remined interests

Irremszmisn] gracs § W3 T 2378 5 1
Hon-reasiment grage 17 " - a2
Tatal S 46 5 974§ 2376 § a3
Interests purchased in the sscondary market

Ireasimen! Grace 3 &5 197 L ] -
Hon-evvesmant grade o™ M - -
Total 5 M3 a3 e =
Darivative assets 5 - § — 5 — § 330
Drarivative Babdties = - - 148

pmmm.;ms

£ iy maticny T cﬁ;w cili:hrl-.:"‘u
SPE mssais {UPE)" £14375 SE2%0 § 16854 £ 14,608
Remined interests

Erosatien! grade £ 1r s amas 1A 8 a
Won-raasimen praoe & 22 o 210
Total 5 ¥ 5 €65 1512 8 213
Intereats purchased in the sscandary market

Irrasiman! Grace 3 r83 w3 0wk % -
Non-rrasimEn rase 28 [ - -
Taital £ 35 1625 0 5 —
Drivative assats -1 - 5 — 5 — 5 218
Darivative Babdeias - - - 170

Fair Valua st Decembar 31, 2010

& ot iy Ll 2 Lasvad 31 Total
Rotained interests

Iroastmen! ride 5 TA0d 5 4% 2,408
W onFreadimian Fade ] ar 103
Jetat 3 2A07 8 w1y a0
Interests purchasad in the sscondary market

Irvmsiment crace 5 7 % 2% 280
Hon-ineasiment gide -] 58 128
Tatal § 46 3 60 % 408
[ T— ] P 23 338
Disrivatres Babdrins Al 1 148
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P Vil at Decsmiber 28, 2018
5 iy miicos [ Lyl 3 Toral
Ratalnsd interesis
Ireasiman grade 5 1580 § 1§ 1.583
Hon-messiment grade 1 Fard A
Totad 5 1784 & s % 2015
[ purchasad in the dmry musrkoet
Irsastmiad grade g 163 5 s FiLl]
Hon-ireesiman! gads 2] L0 ;]
Tow § oM s ms_ aw
Darivative assets 5 121 5 o 5 216
Darvarive Nnbiltias s 3 118
ML Rossadniial @ Jags ks
ML —Corwmesncal marmpsgs ka
1. Thes Transfmrad Adssts with Ci il Lisbdis i beatn IEAESACTSS. with

SPEs i whach tha P, wcting as princkpal iransfe med financial assets with continesng
Wrepbvmmant and moehved saes estrent See Mobe 12 for in‘ormason on oeiasn
pihwer ranafers of aessts o SPES efech ane acooaanted on &

A ¥ app o o S o anaety whars e Fery's ondy
continiang irenlvement i & denestive s only reporisd in e iolowing Asssts Sold
with Fistsned Exposure babln, and e no longer alsy inchided in Sis. tnbin. A
Dwinrbar i, 201 thase k 1 in oL anc Ot vinad
apgrecimatsly $5 tllion in UPEL S35 rillion in Dervative ssssts and $H10 millon in
Costivatren Laldfims

3 Arenis nckade CL0 wamactions managed by eruwbstic tad paries
4. Arcnmis ckade st tambeeed by vl e ransfeoc

Transferred assets are carmied st farr value prior 1o secuntization,
and any changes in fair value are recogmized in the income
statertents. The Firm may act as underwriter of the beneficial
anterests issued by these secuntizstion vehicks, for which
Investment banking revenues are recopnized The Firm may
retain interests in the secuntized financial assels as one or more
tranches of the securitization. Thess retained imterests are
generally carmied at farr value in the balance sheets with changes
1 far value recogrized m the ncome stalements. Fair valie for
these mierests is measuwred using techmques that are consistent
with the valuation techniques applied fo the Fim's major
categories af assets and lnbilities as deseribed in MNotes 2 and
3

Procesds from New Securitization Transactions and Sales of
Loans

] 2040 28 anir

Herar Iraraacin' 5 MABM 5 ThEX § .60
R iniamasis T 403 o | 2.0ar
Salas of conporais boans 20 CL0 SPEs’ ! 2 7 151

1 Mt gains on new ranaactions and salés of coporsts kaans ks CLO snfites ot tha limes
of B sale wers nok matenial for ol parods pressnted
2 Sipormaing By i Al

The Frrm has provided, or otherwise agreed 1o be responsible
for, representations and warmanties regarding certain assets
transferred in securitization transactions sponsared by the Firm
(see Nate 13}
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Assots Sold with Retained Exposuny

Dacomber 31,  Decsmber 31,

§ iysmiieria i AN R
Groms cash procesds om sale of assels”  § 661 3 FERFY
Fair valus
Anmats wola 3 19,137 § 26,524
i balancw s aar 184
Darivaivs Babdfias recognized

in T balanca sheats 152 63

1. Tha camying valkes of asssts derscognized o the fme of saie approsimales ross
and prieeds

The Firm enters into transactions in which 1t sells securrlies,
primanly equities, and contempomnecusly entess into bilateral
OTC denvatives with the purchasers of the securities, through
which it Fetains exposuse 10 the sold securities

15 Regulatory Requirements
Regubstory Capital Framework

The Firm 15 an FHC under the Bank Holding Company Act of
19546, as amended. and 15 subject 1o the regulation and oversight
of the Board of Governors of the Federal Beserve System
{“Federal Reserve™). The Federal Reserve establishes capital
requirements for the Firm, including well-capitalized standards,
and evalwmtes the Furm's compliance with such capatal
requarements. The OCC establishes similar capital requinem ents
and standards for MSBNA and MSPENA (collectively, the
“L15. Bank Subsidianes™). The regulatory capital requirem ems
are largely based on the Basel 111 capital standards established
by the Basel Commitlee on Banking Supervision and also
implement certmn provisions of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protechon Act.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Firm 15 required 1o mamtam minmum risk-based and
leverage-based  capital  matics  under  regulatory  capital
reguarerents. A sumimary of the calewlations of regulatosy
capital, KWA and ransition provisions follows

Minimum risk-based capital ratio requirements apply 1o
Common Equity Tier | capital, Tier | capital and Total capital
(which inchedes Tier 2 capital). Capitel standards recpure certan
adjustments 1o, and deductions from, capital for purpeses of
determining these ratios.

In addiion to the minimum risk-based capital ratio
requarements, the Firm & subject 1o the following buffers:

* A preater than 25% Common Equity Tier 1 capital
conservation buffer,

+ TheCommon Equity Teer 1 G-5IB capital surchange, currently
at 3%; and

EDINETOOOO
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* Uptoa 2.5% Common Equity Tier | CCyE, currently set by
L1.5. banking agencics al zero.

In 2018, the requirement for each of these buffers was 75% of
the fully phased-in 2019 requirement noted above.

Risk=Weighted Assets

RWA reflects both the Firm s on- and off-balance sheet risk, as
well as capital charges attrnbutable to the nsk of loss arisang from
the following:

+ Credit nisk: The failure of a bormower, counterparty of issuer
tes mrbeet its financial obligations to the Firm,

= Market nsk: Adverse changes m the tevel of one or more
market prices, rates, indices, volanlities, correlations or other
market factors, such as market liguedity; and

= Operational resk: Inadequate or fmled processes or systems,
from human frctors or from external events (e.g., fraud, thefl,
legal and compliance risks, cyber attacks or damage to
phiysical assets)

The Firm's risk-based capital ratios For purposes of determinmg
regulatory compliance are the lower of the capital rats
com puted under (1) the standardized ches for calculating
credit risk and market risk RWA (" Standardized Approach™) and
(1i) the applicable advanced approaches for ealculating eredit
risk, market nisk and operstional sk BWA (CAdvanced
Appreach™. Al December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
the Firm s risk-based capital ratios are based onthe Standardized
Appreach rules

Mimmum leverage-based capital requirements include a Tier 1
leverage ratio and an SLE. The Fim is required to maintain &
Tier 1 SLE of 5%, inclusive of an enhanced SLR capital buffer
of at least 2%,

Tha Finm's Regulatory Capital and Capital Ratios

At December ¥, 2098

£ oy sty SR Ratia

Risk-based capital

Comman BEquity T 1 cagaal 100% § GLTE  164%

Tier 1 capitsl 11.5% T 18.5%

Total capital 115% AT H.O%

Lawarage based capits]

Tier 1 bonragn %S TLAD BN
ASLAIRG AR B BB 194

BLR S0% T4 B.4%
Susppdarmentary kvargs sxpure” 1,185,177
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e MEENA's Regulatory Capital
Fp mitiong Fasy A Ratio ."'_".E"l-."é".'_al'_*"'."!
Risk-bassd capitl £ i w Amonrt Rt
Comenon Exuity Tiar 1 capical BE% S EZOM  1BO% Risk-bizued capital
Tosr 1 capiiad 10.1% oe 1B Commaon Equity Ter 1 cageal 6.5% § 15519 18.5%
Toial capiisl 12.1% BOOSZ 1A% Tier 1 capitnl BO% 18E  18.8%
Total Fkia TG Teboapan 0% L 1R
Laverage-based cupits] Lassrnge-banad capiisl
Tiae 1 Mevarigs Lo rOEG BA% Tier 1 brirage 6.0% % 15818 1.3%
AL mearEge Asses’ 43074 L aid lasis Sk
R i S ORI BA% R TT—
Supplamanlery lenas 12 e [=r—
= i nflis Fgdy  Amoerd  Ratis
i Pocparnd radicn a inzlushe of iy Bufeis applcabds 2 o! e des prasented For Risk-based capital
R Sy IR SNSRI eyt svss w2 o
Fhmuhlymh‘m;t ”:‘ & ‘w L3 of dividends and tha Tier 1 eapital B0 15221 105%
mlﬁl dludhur) L3 l.lm oficass.
2 Aqummu-mu::ummmwnrn Tiew § lawsrags o and Toel caphal MRS 15 1R0%
b compoasd of e avminga dally balancs of cormehdated oo balance shest sy Laverage-based captsl
for the uacters endeg on ihe mspactivs balanca sbaot dates, sedied by disalowed
ok - i Tier 1 lvwrags 50% § 15221 105%
plan assals, ¥t Lus goin cn 2l from assets okl ik seculistions. Frvestrens R 60% 18F  AFN
in Hve Firri's tan captal inslirsints. Certain defiad Lin dssets fed cthes capitsl
15  leremsage mapcsur b Hhe s of i e sessty wreed bn the MSFENA'S Regulatory Capital
Tiar 1 s iy (1} x darmvivas, pobamtial et
m#ﬂhd‘#ﬂnmmmﬂtﬁviﬁnﬂﬂn At Docember 31, Iﬂ‘li
by spealityng purchane] conaf (] tha fof rapi-shyin TH;;F_
kwmqﬂhaﬂmmnmrmuwu Pt el Rk
. \ Risk based capital
';.ar.:. Bank Subsidiaries’ Hegulatory Cuapital and Capital Comman Bty Tiec | captial G B B
ios Tier 1 capitad a0%  TaER TaE%
The OCC establishes capital requirements for the Firm's U.S, 1“‘“’::" T oL B
Bank Subsidiaries and evaluates their compliznce with such i o e .
capital requirements. Regulatory capital requirements for the i 2 S I'm n::
1.3 Bank Subsidiaries are calculated ina similar manner 1o the i
Firm's mﬂmw_}' capital requirements, although G-5IE capatal Al Dk 31 208
surcharge requirements do not apply 1o the LS Bank
Subsadsaries. £ i Fatel Amuei Rty
Risk-bssaed oupitsl
The OOC's regulatory capital framework includes Prompt Commen Exuity Tur 1 cagaal 65% 5 T8) 26.2%
Coerective  Action (“PCA™) standards, meluding  “well- Tiw | capital BO% 783 B3%
capitalized” PCA standards that are based on specified Totad capital 00% 7220 254%
regulatory capital ratio minimums. For the Firm to remain an Leverage-bassd capital
FHC, the U1.5. Bank Subsidiaries must remain well-capitahized Tior | leenrage: 50%% TO83 10.0%
in aecordance with the OOCs PCA standards. In addition, 0 B0%  TOEY  GA%
failure by the L5, Bank Subsidianes to meet mimmum capital : o e e o
requirements may result in certain mandatory and discretionany prmndi AN Al AL B y ol L 3 gAY

actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
aterial effect on the U5, Bank Subsidianies’ and the Firm's
financial statements

At December 31, 20019 and December 31, 2018, the U5, Bank
Subsidianies’ risk-based capital ratics are based on the
Standardized Approaschrules. Ineach period, the mosexceeded
well-capitalized requirements.

Dazcember 2019 Form 10-K

115, Broker-Diealer Regulatory Capital Reguirements
MSECo. Regulatory Capital

AR A
Diacwmbae 31 Dtk 31
A memen L LS
et capital § 13,706 § LR
Excass nei capial 0, ]

MS&Co. s a registered U5, broker-dealer and registered
futures commassion merchant and, accordingly, is subject to the
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minimum net capital requirements af the SEC and the CFTC.
ME&Co, has conmstently operated with capital in excess of 1ls
regulatory capital requarements.

A an Alternative Met Capital broker-dealer, and in accondance
with Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act™) Rule
153¢3-1, Appendix E, MS&Co. 15 subject bo minimum net capital
and tentative net capital requirements. In addition, MS&Co.
miust notify the SEC if its tentative net capatal falls below certmin
levels, At December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
MS&Co, has exceeded its net capital requirement amnd has
tentatn e et capital i excess of the minimum and notificaton
requIrements

MS5B Regulsiory Capital
Ar Ay
Dacombier 31, Decembar 31,
£y Y, L
Hal capitd ] 3,287 5 3480
Excess nai capizal 3,238 3.313

MSESEB is aregistered U5, broker-dealer and introducing broker
for the futures business and, accordingly, 15 subject o the
minmmum net capatal requirements of the SEC. MSSE has
conststently operated with capital in excess of 1ts regulatony
capital requirements.

Oiher Begulated Subsidinries

MSIP 2 London-based broker-dealer subsidiary, i subject o
the capital requirements of the FRA, and MSMS, a Tokyo-based
broker-dealer subsidiary, is subject to the capital requinem ents
of the Financial Services Agency. MSIP and M3MS have
consistently operated with capital in excess of their respective
regulatory capital requirements.

Certian other U5, and ron-U5. subsidiaries of the Firm are
subject to varnows securites, commeodities and  banking
regulations, and capital adequacy requirements promulgated by
the repulmtory and exchange authorities of the countries in which
they operate. These subsicharses have consstently operted with
capital ih excess af thear local capital adequacy requirements.

Resirictions on Paymenis

The regulatory capital requirements referred to above, and
certamn covenanls comamed In YaNOUs agreemients goveming
indehtedness of the Firm, may restrict the Firm's ability to
withdraw capital frem its subsidiaries, The following table
repreacnis net aseets of consolidated subsidiaries that may be
restnicted as to the pavment of cash dividends and advances 1o
the Parent Company,

At Al
Dwcambser 31,  Dwcesmbar 31,
Fagld 208

3,11 3 20222

iy o
Repriciad nel sssss i

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
MnnganStaniey
16. Total Equity
Morgan Stanley Shareholders” Equity
Common Stock
Rolforward of Common Stock Quistanding
1 e G 208
Elhamms o iandicg Al baginrang of perod A, T 1,788
Trediuy stack purchasin’ 138 ]
Db’ S
Bhared sutslarding 61 and af parid 1,854 1200
1. Tha Fire's Bissared hvd oty i H ¥ el i M i ek uncher
#shars ‘ (“Sharw Ragurchins Peogran™). n addition 1 the Py’

ity
2. Cots kot it shans sl 1 and Srieied fram Emplapes sls=k ot and
Fusaand e FISAR Ezmmmomrisns,

Share Repurchases
oL S oL L)
Repurchasss of Commer ook uhder he FEmis.

Foagmrchase Program § 530 § 4850

The Firm's 2019 Capital Plan{Capatal Plan' ) includes the share
repurchase of up to 6.0 billion of cwstanding common stock
far the period bepinning July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020,
Additienally, the Capital Plan includes quarterly common stock
dividends of up to 50.35 per share, beginning with the commen
stock dividend announced on July 18, 2019

A portion of commaon Bock repurchises was conducted under
a sales plan with MUFG, whereby MUFG sold shares of the
Firm's common stock to the Firm, as part of the Firm's Share
Repurchase Program. The sales plan is only intended to raintain
MUFG s ownership percentage below 24 9% inorder to com ply
with MUFG s passavily comm tments to the Board of Governoss
of the Federal Beserve System and has no impact on the strategic
alliance between MUFG and the Fim, meluding the jomt
ventures in Japan

Pursuant to the Share Repurchase Program, the Firm consaders,
amaong other things, business segment capital needs, as well 2s
stock-based compensation and benefit planrequirements. Share
repurchases under the program will be exercised from time 1o
ume al prices the Firm deems appropriste subject o varisas
factors, meluding the Fim's copatal posiion and markel
conditions, The share repurchases may be effected through open
market purchases or privately negotiated transactions, including
through Rule 10851 plans, and may be suspended at any time,
Share repurchases by the Firm are subject 1o regulatory non-
objection

Commen Stock Dividends par Shara

o AL )L

133

% 130 8 110 5 000
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Comman Shares Outstanding for Basic and Diluted EPS Profarred Stock lssuance Description
nm 2018 g Fi Fsdanmgion
akfewt wwthaber i ary sinplinhl el
WN - ahare ing Y Shares Dg:::l Prion
1617 L 1 FBn Spmy” 7 sued  perSbame per Sham D"
!“-:1 of glutive $1ock opdons. REUs and PSS 2 30 &1 A 4 D00 1,000 § 25,000 Jully 18, 2011
ted avemge common shares ot 1,180,791 R 1100 Db 15, 2041
mnli‘n] and comenon stock squivalents, wei 1T 1ads e gm0 1000 JEO00  Orteber 15, 2023
Wakihtad Foahbza druthes cofnees Atk F B 000 1.00HF 26,000 Jsruany 15, 3004
mu%ﬂm&unhwrmﬂ s . - " 52 000 an 21,000 Joby 18, 2015
I 440,500 1,004 26000 Ociober 15, 204
Profarmed Stack ] D000 8 25,0041 By 15, Q0
K 40000 1. 004 25,000 Apil 15 2027
Shitas L 0000 1,00 25000  Jeousry 18, 20
CutRARSng Camying Vilus
i o A1 Liguigation Al Al 1, Al ahaes isund i non-curmlation. Cach shis B a par vike of 301, axcep
A Pl Decembser 31, Prefareccs  Decembar 31, Oecamber 10, Sy
whant Jadi L et Ehare 0% a2 2 Dwidiarcds n Seviers A s bassd on & futing rate. and diviclencs on Serien © andl L
3 a0 Bdrsd i i Gt e Divicbonchy o 08 Sthes Searies ebuand o Tued 5 oty
ran
& 44000 3 25,000 3 1100 § 1,100 35uuﬂ.-u¢mm o e rnarption price phe essnm and
o si8483 1,800 ank 408 dividaeds wrhattesr drvidanc e aohualy declared, op 12t ek
/ mmnlmMMMnM-nwpﬁum
E 500 26,000 B2 Bz arry dhec e e il dividench. up s But aaciuding the dse kuoed formadergtion
5 3 and i & Gerrs A and C e racesmabls o He Farms option, inwhols of inpar, on o #tel tha
e e rclarspton due AN ifer Serien an redesmabls o e P opian ) in whols o
[ — - X 500 1 e, ey tiren 0 N, Do ity livicdiened parprnd bl 0oy WYl thes endanplion
e in whels butnct in pant o any Hme withn 50 dayx ‘olowing o regulatony
H 53000 25,000 1300 1300 mn:rﬁ‘:!-immruwrm;ﬁn mnlﬂmlr:ﬂ E
| A5 000 25,000 000 1000 & :‘?chmmmnmmwmnmcm
ard sk, Gnommon L ] ¥
§ Lt 28,000 1800 (E ] ﬂhmu’ﬂ'ﬁwmv‘mmwﬂmn’hmwmm
K 40,000 28,000 1,000 1,000 1. Germs L Pratemed Sinck wan ssued on Movemiber 25, 20
s iz el v s = Proforrad Stock Dividonds
Total 4 8,520 § 520
1. Saies b corwpesnd of e s of 1, 160, Tl shois of Sade C Prafaimed Siock . P— P'rn“ P:,:'“ F:“r
iy MUFG for ih aggoagila puechos pace of 5911 millen, et redermgtion of U 5
B D050 whtoes ¥ Bien % Pstirad Sicveh, o/ §533 e, which iem I s Shane' Totdl  char' ToMl  Share! Totd
oomrnon shaes of appineimabedy §705 malon i 2308 Garka
A 1,014 544 S10M1 545 S1014 5 45
The Firm is authorized 1o 1ssue 30 million shares of prefered < 100 52 w52 00 52
stock. The preferred stock has a preference over the common f e s i B T8 B
stock upon liquidation. The Firm's preferred stock qualifies as - ‘1I.I‘1:B (1] :.119 ] :.nﬂ B
and & incheded in Tier | capital in accordance with regulatony P 1‘:': ﬂ f:.: :3 f‘:g :";
capital requirements (see Mote 15) | LO0E B Te06 B4 tesd 84
) P ' 1,08 &4 138k A iABA 03
On November 25, 2019, the Firm announced the redemption in 7 1:4“ B i 8% iAR 8
whale of 11z outstardding Series G prefemed stock. On notice of i e Fr—at P
redemption, the amount due to holders of Series G Preferred Total 3524 508 g50a

Stock was reclassified 10 Bormow mgs, and on Jenuary 15, 2020
the redemption settled at the carrying value of 500 million

Dazcember 2019 Form 10-K
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1 Diwidiands o 8 briecs M sk fpanlaey undsos Sthasaie nated

2 Diwidandy el on Series 0 lwing T s of e aolioe o redarption
i eSSl i inbaael g e il skt Froes 2019

3. Sesiers H wins paryiible semisnouadly ol key 15, 2999, b i now payabls guasery

2 Dewias A paryable ssmisenaally el kay 15 2020, and then suaisdy Heesyti
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Comprehensive Ineome (Loss)

Accumulated Comprehensiva Income (Loss)'

F &y il Adusime  SaouTites ard Ochar v, Todal
.
2018 ] [Ba5) §  (has) § (T4 S (598) S(2.683)
DG gudng the
219 1 AR I I L L L)
Dmcambar 31,
Fi [767) (54T} (5813 (1088 (3.060)
Cunmuasive
adjusamient for
Aot
changs % (A3 54 (Rl VR L VT K EY]
O guring (ke
[ {114} (272 137 148 1208
Dacamibar 31,
2018 [Ra0) (030 (5TRy 106 (220
001 curing the
pctzs L ) tam o
Docember 11,
2019 3 3971 3 0T § (G44) 501.454) 5{2,TBA)

B Aoroads e el o) Bas e roneconirofig iisreals

2 Tha oerulstivs sfoviment o accounfing changes i primanly S aact of the
adoption of the sccounting updsts Reciassdication of Samen Tar Eficiy fom
Accoamyfuiod Db [ s frooma. Thes djmbmient was moomed e of
Jaary 1. FO0E e raclimaily carinin indome s a¥eci relitad 13 B ansdimant of
m-'nm'mnnm hm-dlum-m: Py ralatad Bt e arant

[k a
B it 1 U S Mot 3 far Rl inferrn
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2014
Prastan  Wrcome Tax  Aterta Nior=
(= 1] Barali Ciain controding
i Sl EVORARY  JLoM). otk Bt
Fistalgn cudfeney timnalstlon sojiistm ssts
D1 astiity ¥ (N5 g (s o5y
Ruchuisi el o
sarnirgs - - —_ = —
Hat QCI [ IS ] [Ei g ) e AL ]
Ehange In nek unmalized gains (losses] on AFS secudiles
O sty g [Me} 8 B 5 (266) 5 - 5 (2
Rrockinsbed 15
sarnrgs B z {8y - By
Hat OCI 5 354} 5 82 § @IS — § {27
Penslon, postretlrement and ofher
O mcthity £ 8 5 [ETAE 118 § - 5§ 118
Rachissifed [
i B LL S | S . )
Nat OCI 4 182 % 5% 137 § — % 137
Ehange In ned DV
O methvity 1547 § TR E 1478 § B 5§ 1412
Ruchaisifag (o
s 58 iy 4 =T
Hat OCI 21000 3 {488 5 1517 § &Y § 1454
ar
Pre-lax  decome Tax  Aferdas M
Gar Bara Gain  conreling
01 s lbess}  (Proviakn)  [Lods)  Inbeeas R

Forsign cusrancy branalation ndjusioents

Componems of Peried Changas in OCI O aetiviiy 5 B4 % LTS ST 325 218
o __:."l‘l! B Peciamsifnd 1o = = = i =
Pre-tax  lcome  Aferiax Mor= NetoCl 83 &3 7§ 351 % a1 8 2B
Gu Tae e conieol Hut OCI 3 643 Wi % 21§ X2 e
£ iy iy qLoss] (Prowision)  (Lossp  ntenesis Hat Ehange In net unmeabilred gelng losses] on AFS sacwrites
Forsign currenay tanshition adjustments CeC) ity 5 100 % {28) & 64 § = 5 B4
O gmiviny 5 &% 2% 3% "% (L1 Fsclassifed to
Rackisaisd (o e 3% L. S | — 23
sAmirgs _ —_ — — —_ Hut DC| § 853 ) & 41 § - 3§ 41
Met OCI ] L] [E1E] 1% i & [LT] Pension, postretirement and other
Change in net urmealized gabm {lesses) on AFS secorites O astiity § (16 % 5 1NEs = 5 (118
OCA ety § 15888 % @A s 12s § - § 1 HE Rl fed i
Rackzsiied o sanings 2 [LE] 1 - i
_ mamitgs ] 25 LLE e AL Net OCI 5 (15018 (L0 AR = & (1n
Mt O § 1484 3 (Ep S 13T § — 4 1,13% Changs in net DA
Penson, postretinement and other O activity 5 mENS a2n & 0TS 28} 5 (BET)
Ol weivity § omds 2% s — § (Th Prachassdfnd 1o
Reckzaied o rm = P R . Y S PR,
samings 12 15} ¥ = T Kut OCI 3 (901 5 33 % i58R) § (R} & (56
et BEI =
i e EE R § i66) 1 Exchision of eordation 2 i vkt o e sk T —
Change in net OWA upedatin in P18 R 12 W talse ke and ot 2 for St inlsreusion
O aiviny 5 e § 533 § (1.643) § (35 § {1,568)
Rkl (o
samirgs " 2 ] - 1]
Mt OCI § AT 3 531 3 (1830 § (A8 3 {1,550)
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Cumulative Adjustments to Retained Earnings Related to
Adoption of Accounting Updatas
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17. Interest Income and Inferest Expense
Snomn W e w017
Interest ncome
Iressiman| sacurites § L1176 § 104 § 1004
Loars A, THY 4249 3.208
Syt puurzh

ekl oy o 6L T 1]
Trading asseis. ret of Tracng lahikes 2,899 2380 Pl
Custonner monkatiss and Ohar 1,756 3N LABT
Total interest Ircome 3 17,008 5 13242 3 A.007
Intensst axpenss
Dmpasits § 1885 5 1288 § 187
Bomoweangs 5,052 Bom 4285
Basiniths soks

FEprchiss 8 nhur Wm‘i’:':"mm'i‘ 600 1854 1203
Slisioasad pyabiia o Oty . . .
Tnhlhllrll B P § 12404 5 1008 £ RBOT
Mt it arest 5 4804 5 320& § 3300

Mﬂrwa:unmwzm:mmmnm
irtsured] prssintieg unisiiosd VN in OO0 whish B Fam p | and
Danetgnition: of Moafimansial Anits mm#mmﬂﬂm
adeTEng was ek sigrificant

2 i ki Ao s et v s avignet, i Sedsptiens aduy ivesualincd irs 4 545 rodlion
i 15 AR et s sl

Cumulative Forelgn Currency Translation Adjustrents

AR L
Dmcembar 31, Decsrber 31,

F iy e 2018 F Tl

b, i with ral i 5 i

sihsRdiase with & mor-LLE ., dollad

fursticral oummniy $ (174) § {1051}
Hadpei, ral of by arr e
Tetal 5 (807} % JRBH)

r?:.ng wilisl o Fa] iInveGimanis i non-
ional cumeecy Sbsi e
IRt ke hadie L

Cumulative foreign cumency translateon adjustments include
pams of losses resultng from transkting foreipn currency
financial statements from their respective functional curmencies
to U5, dollars, net of hedpe pains or losses and relsted ta
effects, The Firm wses foreign currency contracts 1o manage the
curfency expasire relating to its et investments 1n non-1.5
dollar funcuonal currensy subsidmrnes and delermines the
amount of exposure to hedge on a pre-tax bass. The Firm may
also elect not to hedge iz net investments in certain foreign
operations due to market conditions or other reasons, including
the valability of vanous currency contracts al sccepiable costs.
Information relating to the effects on cumulative foreign
currency itranslation adjustments that resulted from the
transltion of foreign cusrency financial statements and from
pains and losses from hedges of the Firm's ret myvestiments in
nen-L1L 5. dollar functional currency subsadiaries is summarized
in the previous tahle

Dazcember 2019 Form 10-K

Interest income and Interest expense are classified inthe income
statements based on the nature of the instrument and related
market conventionz. When included as o component of the
instrument’s fair value, interest s included within Trading
revenues or [nvestments revenues. Otherwise, 1t 1s included
within Interest income or Interest expense.

18. Deferred Compensation Plans and Carried
Interest Compensation

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Certain emplovees of the Firm participate in the Frm's stock-
basedcompensationplans. These plans include R5Usand PSUs,
the detaals of which are further cutlined below.

Siock-Based Compansation Expansa

£ i v Faial: 1 A T
REUs $ 1084 § 262§ 961
hieesid L o s
Teral' 3 1,153 § B0 5 106
Inchsdms

P ifarosers -+ itk maras’ $ 1115 0% s
1. Ml of Sorieitures
2 Moty b sk D) ficipted & b s b Janisary &F e

irllcrwing ymir Bl 3 ncl m-h-umwﬂl
Tax Benefit Related to Stock-Based Compansation Expense

§ 7 e G 28 il
Tax hanalc’ -] 241 § 193 § 225

1 Eschides wwome b conssgeences releted 10 smployss share bassd  swid
O
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Unracognized Compensation Cost Related to Stock-Basad
Awards Granted

bm-uh-r M,
& 1y mesiony sl
Tis b reangrizas in:
200 5 4
2021 168
Thasreser 30
Tt g 592

1. Arunis o nol inchals forehees, cancallations, sccalenions, e kiusirnnis
13 e o o coriaen seaeds. of 2300 perinaranon e Compensaton aeanded in
Admniiary TR, wivichs will begen 1o ba amicrtiesd i 2020

In connection with awards under its stock-based compendation
plans, the Firm 15 authonzed 1o isswe ghares of comman stock
held 1n treasury or newly issued shares.

The Firm generally uses treasury shares, if available, to deliver

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
Margan Stanley
Vestad and Unvesiad RSU Activity
i
iWnightea
Humiber o Aawwmrd E:i
anwns e mdta Ehares Epir Vabun
REUR &) Bbginnirg of parod M5 .50
Awenrad an 4308
Comperilans 1o conman #ock % 28,85
For'sted (L)) 41.66
REUs st ard of pariod’ a5 § 44.38
AgsTRpuia iriraes value of RELU a2 -4
e e e — b e
Walghted average sward dade falr valus
REUs mwarded in 2018 ] oAl
REUs awarded s 3017 408

1. A Dncarmber 31, 2010, the weighind woiage nemaineng te il dekany o ha
caftvlancing il h wan approimatidy 1.2 years

sharestoemployees oremployes stock trusts and has an ongoing Unvested RSU Activity
repurchase  auwthorization  that  includes repurchases in o
connection with awards under its stock-based compensation prrere——
plans. Shm repurchases by the Firm are subject to regulatory = h_'ﬂwl.
non-objection. s oy s Shams  Far Ve
Unvestid REUs ut beginning of period 4% 4o
Common Shares Available for Future Awards under Stock- ”":u: : o FrETy
Bamed [:Dﬂlwl'lllﬂﬂ'l Plans
Vasing ) 3780
At [Focskad L 43,08
= Do Al Unvassed Riis ot and of pariod’ 37 3 ad
Shaid n 1. rewatied PSR raproniist iowards, whies raciients Fuinen 7ot 15 salialy sithar the
gkt wbing b & retieeint sk (e ot
See Node 16 for addtional mfcrmation on the Firm's Share
Fair Value of R5U Activi
Fepurchase Program a ° Y
il e a0 N
Restricted Stock Units Comersions 3 commaon 3ok $ 1487 5 180 5 133
Wasieg 1,282 1504 i AT

R5Us are subject o vesting over ume, generally one 1o seven
vears from the date of award, contingent wpon contimued
employment and subject to restrictions on sale, fransfer or
assignment until conversion to comemon steck. All or a portion
ofanaward may be forfented if emplovment i termanated before
the end of the relevant vesting period or cancelled after the
relevant vesting period in cortain situations. Reciplents of RSUs
may have voting rights, at the Firm's discretion, and generally
recerve divadend equivalents if the swards vest

Performance- Based Stock Units

P35 willl vest and convert 1o shares of common stock anly af
the Firm satisfies predelermined performance and market-based
conditions over a three-vear performance period. The mumber
of P3Lis that will vest ranges from (Be to 150%% of the target
award, based on the extent to which the Firm achieves the
specified performance goals, Cne-hall of the award will be
camed based on the Firm''s average returm on cguity, excluding
certain adjusiments specified in the plan teems ("M3 Adjusted
ROE™). The other half of the award will be garned based on the
Firm"s tetal shareholder return, relative to the total sharehobder
return of the S&P 500 Financials Sector Index ("Relative M3
TSRE™). PSUs have vesting, restriction, forfeiture  and
cancellation provisions that are generally smilar to those of
R3Us. At December 31, 2019, approsimately 3 million PSUs
were oulstanding

Drecember 2019 Form 10-K
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PSU Fair Value on Award Data

ame oz
e Acuated ROE $ 40H 5 shBa 5 d1Bd
Ralaive 155 TSR L F ] [N 4102

The Relative M5 TSK fair values on the award date were
estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation and the following
assumplions

Monie Carlo Simulation Assumplions

Fisk-Sram Siock Prios  Comsladon
Award Yamr Interes! Rais WVolatiity Coa¥isant
209 8% 28.5% 0.es
FEd TI% 0% A0
2T 1.5% 17 0% L]

The risk-free mterest mie was détermined based on the vields
avalable on U3 Treasury zero-coupon issues. The expected
stock price volaiihiy was determined using historical volatility.
The correlation coefficient was developed based on histogical
price daia of the Firm and the S&P 506 Financials Sector Index
The mode]l wses an expected divedend yicld equivalent 1o
reinvesting dividends.

Deferred Cash-Based Compensation Plans

Deferred cash-based compersation plans generally provide a
retum to the plan participants based upon the performance of
ench participant’s referenced imvesiments,

Deferred Cash-Based Compensation Expanse

£ i sl FLAL] 2010 oLl
Datamed cask-hase: awards $ 1,233 5 1074 £ 1030
LT Y P et [T {48 400
Tooa' 3 1878 5 1,128 3 1538
Inchres

Racaranventsdgibln swans’ $ 195 5 13 %5 176

B Fawi of forlmities.
2 Foalsies b aaky based comp adion p inba dhed i Jarwiary
iof dhe doliowing year that doss nof contsen o fulies Sardion PeguEmesn

Carried Interest Com pensation

The Firm generally recognizes compersation expense for any
portion of carrted interest (both realized and unrealized) that 1=
allocated to emplovees.

Carrid Interest Compansation Expanse

F vy gy 2010 2016 2087
Exponze § M 5 a3 00

December 2009 Foan [0-K
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19. Employee Benefit Plans
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans

Components of Hel Parlodic Banefit Expense (Incoma)

Parriinn Plans
3 o e o] 2018 &
Servioa cosl, bene'is sarmad ouning T
e

5 16 5 LB 16

It cat of feofict e hana i obligason 1380 134 146
Enpactie maiutr on len st {114} iz mn
el amarization of frice senvice co {oeds) 4 11} —
Hat amaniration of aduanal bss 12 ] 17
Wt poriodie benolit sxpansa 5 55 § Bl 5 H2

£ 1y e e ame o
Senvice cost, beme's sumed cung Fa

i 5 1 % 1% 1
Ireires] cost on rojsced bene's obligation 2 ] e,
Hat amartization af prct senics credit e 11t {16}
Mot perdodic benefit sxp i ) & 1% 35 {12}

Certwin U_S. emiplovees of the Firmiand itz U5, affiliates who
were hired before July 1, 2007 are covered by the LS. pension
plan, a son-contnbutory defined benefit pension plan that is
quelified under Section 4000a) of the Internal Reverme Code
(1.5, Qualified Plan™). The U.S. Cualified Plan has ceased

future benefit accruals.

Unfunded supplementary plans (" Supplemental Flans™) cover
certan executives. Linkilities for benefits pavable under the
Supplemental Plans are seorued by the Firm and are funded
when paid The Morgan Stanley Supplemental Executive
Eetirernent and Excess Plan ("SEREPT), a non-contnibutory
defined benefit plan that is not qualified under Section 401(a)
ol the Imernal Revenue Code, has ceased future benefit accruals.

Certain of the Firm s non-U.5. subsidianes alzo have defined
benelit persion plans covening their ehigible emplovees.

The Firm's penston plans generally provide pension benefits
that are Tased on each emplovee's vears of credited service and
on compensation levels specified in the plans.

The Firm has unfissded postretirement benefil plons that provide
health care and life insurance for eligible U5, retirees and heahh
care insurance for their dependents.

3771420
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Roliforward of Pre-tax ADCI
Pﬂl!l_MPhn:

£ ot e T O L 1]
Baginring balarce § (EES (NS (Ten)
et pain (lass} {113 158 {2083
Prise Raraiss cradil {emt) — {15 2
Ameriealion of priof Senvice el | enedilh 1 i —
Aporieaion of netlos 13 b ] 17
Changes recognized in OCI (3] 168 {1R5)
Endirg balancs § (BT S (VTS 04T

Ceher Posimtirsment Plars
bt s 29 2018 2007
Bagnree; balarcs H 13 5 15 17
Hal pain 13 13 -
Amvetintion of prioe service crsdi - L] 18y
Changes recognized in OCF 3 w2
Endirsg balance $ 35 s 1

The Firm generally amortizes into net perniodic benefit expense
(income) the unrecognized net gains and losses exceeding 10%
of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the market-
related vahee of plan assets. The ULS. pension plans ameortize
the unrecognized net gains and losses over the average life
expectancy of participants. The remaining plans generally
amartize the unrecognized net gains and losses and prior service
credit over the average remaming service period of active
participants.
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Benefit Obligation and Funded Status

Rolforward of the Benefit Obligation and Falr Value of Plan

Aggals
Crehar Poss

Pansion Flans ratimani Flars
# o me ) s 2019 bl Et] Hia
Reltorward of benefit obligation
Daenctidfontibeol ¢ semsg a5 AR M
Earvics cost 6 16 1 1
It eoal 130 1 ] a
Actuanial loss (gairy’ an7 {30y k1] fLE]
Mian amendments - 15 - —
PRar secianuanis LE) {11} - -
Birais piid w105 " i6)
Deker’ " 22} — —
B ctllutenstendof . Loms 338 ms N
RolHarwarnd of Teir valus of plin sssets
:mv;:.-;;"ﬂ_ﬂ;:mhll e o =
Achial mebum on plan aysels &89 [ - -
Esmployer ooriributions 36 2 ] L]
Baraiis paid ey {195} EL} (6}
Pian serbamants L1} i1 e -
e’ 18 2 - -
i el G TR oy B

Funded {unfunded) status 3 @TS (3B (85 T
t recagrised In the balsnce sheats

- & A 3 a8 3 151 % - % -
Waighted Awverage Assumptions Used to Determine Net ':H: e ] :
Periodic Banafit Expensea {Incoma) - it Lt Lin) h
Hut amousl Fecogeized § HTHSE 3B (sEE TN
Pansion Plars
208 e 007 ; mgﬁ;&hrmd’n: :r::mfimldmm
Dot e 4% R 4.01%
Expaciac long-sm e ol reum on Accumulated Banefit Obligation
ARSET o o AN 350% A%
4 At e
Rate of fiurs compersaion morsaes LM 14% ERLeY Dt 11, Dwcember 31,
Othar Fostretrsmant Plars 5 iy e Foat) 2R
2018 W18 2007 Peion plars 3 4013 5 3548
Ciscours rute A0T% 44w 4%

The accounting for pension and other postretirement plans
invelves certain assumplions and estimates. The expected long-
term rate of return for the US. Qualified Plan was estimated by
computing a weighted average of the underlying long-term
expected returns based on the mvestment managers’ target
allocations.

Pansion Plans with Banafit Obligations in Excess of the Fair
Value of Plan Assets

At Mg
Dascorwbar 31, Dwcamber 31,
Eoir ] 2018

3 iy i

Progectuc hanal; chligetion 5 837 3 15
Acturmulates bareT obliceion a4 hap
Falr valie of plan assats L3 4

The pension plans included in the able above may differ based
on their funding status as of December 31% of each year.
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Waighted Average Assumplions Usaed to Detarmine Benafit Plan Assets
Obligation
Fair Value of Plan Assels
Pansion Plars. Other Posiedemant Plars
A Ml a5 M At Dazarmbar 31, 2009
Wﬂ'ﬁ"' m{qﬂ'jl wg"-r“ “";\'q?rm' 1 v Lewal 1 Lewel2 Leveld  Toul
[T L% 0% Lit% A0 Assats
Fintm o fulurg: Cash and cash souivalents ' 8 1% —_ — 3
hﬁ-t-”:-m 1% 384% L) ek LS, givamteneet and agency seoailies:
ULE, Treasary ssasiiss 2,534 - - 2,638
The discount rales used to determine the benefit obligation for UG, agendy dauiie - 202 - 202
the 17.5. pension and postretirement plans were selected by the Teral U5, govarmmes
Firm, 1n consuliation with its ndependent actuary, using a cm':_ :’::':H :'"'_‘ '“: : “‘:
pension discount yaeld curve based on the charactenistics of the
plans, each determined independently. The pension discount m""_‘”“_ e iie
vield curve represents spot discount vields based on durstion = - E.l; et ; T
implicitinarepresentative broad-based Aa-rated corporate bond PR R
universe of high=quality fixed income investments. Forall non- )
LS. penston plans, the Firm set the assumed discount rates cr::.#:";rm 5
based on the nature of liabilities, local cconomic environments . i L
and available bond indices. ﬁ:::_ m
Assumad Health Cara Cost Trand Rates Used to Datarming the Licuighty 0
ULE, Postrdirernent Banofil Obligation Tareind canh fow 240
Totad § 543
At At
Dacanvber 31, December 34, Llabiikies
Ll 2018 Dmibeive conimss = i} = i}
Hiahh ebfd coil Fand rats Sdumad fof fexl yasd Ot gt —_ (52} — {32)
Hedical 5487 BEE% Total Eabiinn £ —3 (38 —5 8
Prascription B.00% 188% Fair valus of plan asssts 5 3,583
R;ﬁlmsmilvﬂ:‘## e 4.481% 4.50%
E d A1 Dwcambar 31. 2018
v::;:hmhummn#ﬂlw i i~ R s
Cash g cash aauhabants 5 35 — § — % 3
L&, grnomenee] ird agency securitie
LLE. Trasury sac.riles 2187 - - 2007
LLS, agency sscuriies - N7 - =i
Teval U.S. govanmmment
b ageeoy eiumien 2.107 nr — 1814
Comporas and ofer seti—CD0 —_ 11 — "
Drafivativn comimcis - Iz - 2
Oebar verTants — - 43 48
Total § 2205 350 § 42 § 2508
Assats Mesasured o KAV
Coiringing s Loy
Woney marks! 262
Fonsgn funds:
Fiwed inoons 134
Liewidity F]
Tergeted cash fow 20
Total $  BOG
Fair valus of plan mssats £ 3203
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Roliforsard of Leval 3 Plan Assats

51 oo o
Balance & baginnieg of pard & 48 % &F
Actuial PR on plen ake relaied o REset
hald a1 w0 of perica 3 -
. sales. oihar satleman s and
B, T ik 1
Balsnes ot srd of parlod [ 51 % 4l

There were no transfers between levels during 2019 and 3018,

The 1.8, Cualified Plan's assels represent £7% of the Firm's
total pension plan assets. The U3, Qualified Plan uses a
combmation of active and risk-controlled fieed income
investment strategies. The fixed income assetallocation consists
primarily of fixed income secunties and related derivative
instruments designed to approximate the expected cash flows
of the plan's liabilities in order 1o help reduce plan exposure 1o
interest pate varition and 1o better align assets with the
chbligation. The longer-dration fixed income allocaton 1s
expected 1o help protect the plan’s funded status and maintzin
the stabiity of plan contnbutions over the long run. The
investment portiolic performance i3 assessed by comparing
actual mvestment performance with changes in the estimated
present value of the US. Qualified Plan's benefit obligation.

Derivative instruments are permitted in the U5, Qualified Flan's
investment portfolic enly 1o the extent that they comply with all
of the plan’s investment policy gurdelines and are consistent
with the plan’s nsk and return objectives.

As a fundamental operating principle, any restrictions on the
underlving assels apply 10 a respective denvative product. This
includes percentage allocations and eredit quality. Dervatives
are used solely for the purpose of enhancing investment in the
undeclying assets and not o circumvent portfolio restrictions

Plan assets are measured at fur value using valusbon techniques
that are consistent with the valuation techniques applied to the
Firm’s major calegories of assets and labilities s described in
Motes 2and 3. OTC derivative contracts consist of investments
in interest rate swaps and total retum swaps, Other investm enis
consist of pledged insurance annuity contracts held by non-1U5 -
based plans. The pledged insurance annuity contracts are valued
based on the premium reserve of the insurer for a guarntee that
the insurer has given to the employvee benefin plan that
approximates fur value. The pledged insurance anmuty
contracts are categonized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Commengled trust funds are privately offered funds regulated,
superyised and subject to penodic examination by a UL S, federal
or state agency and available to mstitutional elients. The trust
must be maintained for the collective investment or
reinvesiment of assets contributed to it from LS. max-qualified
emploves benefit plans maimtamed by more than one emplover
or controlled group of corporations. The sponsor of the
commingled trust furds values the funds based on the fair value

141
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of the underlving securitics. Commingled trust funds are
reakeemnable at MAY at the measurement date or imthe near future,

Some non-11.5 -haszed plans hold foreign funds that consist of
investments in fooed income funds, target cash Mow funds and
liquidity funds. Fixed income funds invest in individual
securities quoted on a recognisd stock exchange or traded in a
regulated market. Certam fixed income funds aim 1o produce
returns consisten with certain Financial Times Stock Exchange
indbexes. Target cash Pow funds are designed to provide i series
of [ixed annual cash Mows achieved by mvesting in government
bonds and dervatives. Laquidaty funds place a high prionty on
capital preservation, stahle value and a high liquidity of assets.
Foreign funds are readily redeemable a NAV

The Firm generally considers the NAV of commingled trust
funds and foreign funds provided by the fund mansger 1o be the
best estimate of fair value.

Expecied Coniribuiions

The Firm's policy i3 to fund at least the amount sufficient to
meet minimum  funding requirements under  applicable
eimplovee bene fitand tax laws. At December 31, 2009, the Firm
expected 1o contribate approxamately 350 mallion 10 165 pension
and postretirement beneit plans m 2020 based upon the plans’
current funded status and expected msset retum assumptions for
2020,

Expacted Future Banafit Paymants

Al December 31, 2019

Orhar Posreiremant

5 iy el Parsior Plars Flars
2020 148 4
2021 18 4
2022 153 ]
a1 X 158 5
2024 163 5
20202029 M 18
Morgan Stanlay 401(k} Plan
# o e Fal ] Fil] s
Espsras $ M5 I % i

U5, employees meeting certan ehgbility requirements may
participate in the Morgan Stanley 401(k) Plan. Eligible
employees receive  discretionary  4010k) matching cash
contnbutions s determaned annually by the Firm, For 2009,
2018 and 2017, the Firm matched emploves contnbutions up 1o
445 of eligible pay, up to the [RS limit. Matching contributions
were invested among available funds according to each
partcipant’s investment direction on file. Ebgible employees
with eligible pay less than of equal 1o 3 100,000 also received a
fixed contribation under the 401 (k) Plan aqual to 2% of chgible
pay. Tramsition contributions relating o acquired entiies or
frozen employes benefit plans are allocated to certain eligible

Drecember 2019 Form 10-K
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emplovess, The Fam match, [oed contribution and transition
contribution are incladed in the Firm s 400(K) expense.

Hon-U.S. Dafined Contribution Pansion Plans

F ey mimizny 2 2018 =087
Expsns 3 121 5 G 5 106

The Firm mamtains separate de fined contribution pension plans
that cover eligible emplovees of centain non-U.5, subsidmnes.
Under such plans, benefits are generally determined based ona
fized rate of base salary with certain vesting requirements,

20, Income Taxes
Provision for {Benefit from) Income Taxes
Componants of Provision for {Banefit from) Incoma Taxes

£ 4y meliong 2018 Flb] 2007
Cuerent -
18-
Fareral 3 &M § @38 § 4TA
Sima and focal il 07 128
Hen-l.5.:
UK 168 az 401
Japar 1 IEE &6
Hong Kang B L7 48
D’ 344 e 308
Tatal $ 1800 5 1501 5 1414
Dafarred
U5
Facard § 1B 5 a0 £ 28K
Ste wnd locel L BE B4
Mon-lL.5.:
UK L] el 18
ren 1" (- i
Hang Kang - 13 (4]
Otk i3} >3 15
Taital 3 B8 § 440 5 2754

Provwsion for inoonss s, frosn continuing
o $ 2064 5 2380 % 468

Pravision for fromi}ircome s
m&mm‘ﬁpﬂm 3 - ins [£4]

¥, Gt Ben-ULS. Rae provinicons e 012, 2000 and 30T primanily inchets Dracil
Inaki andd Canada
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Elfective Ineome Tax Rate

Reconciliation of the U5, Federal Statutory Incomae Tax Rate to
thi Effective Income Tax Rate

U5, Sederal stalidony eomme Tax raie 20% 0% 350%
U5, stafe and incal ircome S, red of

UE fadaml moome Lae baraliis 22 Far) id
Derfibesic lx s (181 10.9) (18 3]
Tiix mwanapt Inconms (LRI} {0y (LAl
HNon-Ll5. samings (1% 13 {505
Tax At enacment — — s
Eripleryion dhare St maards {14y (1.5) 115
hindend [ L 04
E®pctive income tax rate 18.3%  205% 404%

The Firm's effective tax rates for 2019 and 2018 include
intermitient net discrete tax benefits of 3348 milion and 5203
million, respectively, prmanly asseemted with remeasuremient
of reserves and related imerest as a result of new iformation
pertaming o mult-junsdiction tax examinations,

The Firm's effective tax rate from continuing operations for
2017 included an intermittent net discrete tax provision of 3968
million, which included an approximate $1.2 billion provision
primarily related 1o the remeasurement of certain net deferred
X assels as o result of the Tax Act, partially offset by 5233
million of net diserete tax benefits primarily associated with the
remeéasurerment of reserves and related mterest due lo new
information  regardmg  the stats of multi-year RS tax
examinations,

The Tax Act, enacted on December 22, 2017, sipnificantly
revised LS, corporate income tax law by reducing the corporate
income tax rate to 21%, partially or wholly eliminating ta
deductions for certain expenses and implementung a modified
territoial 1w svstem, The modified terrmonnl tax svatem
ncluded a one-time transition tax on deemed repamated
earmings of non-11.5, subsidianes and also imposes a minmum
teeeon GILT] and analternative BEAT on ULS. corporations with
operatimns outside the LS.
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Dofarred Tax Assots and Liabilities

At At
Decombar 31, Decsmber 31,
2018

£ bt s 2HE
Grows delarmed tax assets
Nm;‘wbﬂl'qﬂ:a“ e e S r g 264
Engilyys compansation and hersd: plars 2,078 2083
Waleadon and Rabdily Abvwircas na i
Val of ireaniony, ang
racarwablng 368 242
Toial dalsrres tax maals 3,048 2877
Dafames tx asseis valurion alosance. 156 1483
Diafarmed s BEAALs Re rahiasn allbwarss § 2,802 2 1M
Crows delarred tax llabiiies
Fined asses 083 #28
Gt 411 FEL]
Tital deterrad ax habdides 5 1,384 5 1 064
el de'mrmed Lax asseis ] 1,498 5 1,673

Dieferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the {inancial reporting and tax bases of
assets and liabilities and are measured wsing the enacted e Fates
and lawsthat will be neffect whensuch differences are expected
to reverse.

The Firm believes the recognized net deferred tax assets (afier
valuation allewanece) mt December 31, 201 % are more hikely than
not o be realized based on expectations as to fulure taxable
income mn the jurisdictions m which it operates.

The eamings of certain foreign subsidiaries are indefinitely
reinvested due to regulatory and caher capital requirements in
foreign jurisdictions. As a result of the Tax Act’s one-time
transstion tax on the eamings of foreign subsidiaries and an
annual minimum tax on GILTL, as of December 31, 2019 the

unrecoprized deferred tax hability atnbutable o mdefinitely
reinvestled eamings is mmaterial.

Unrecopnized Tax Benefits

Rollforeard of Unrecognized Tax Benefits

2 orrs o LA
Babaros & baginnieg of panod £ 1020 5 1mc8 £ 180
Increans based or b positicrs mlatsd o

fh curmers pariod 14 =] Ba
Iecraaam hased of i posilses miated o

[N PO L3l Ll 170
Ducrmass bassd of i postion reaied 1o

price paries (k] {40} [ELE]
Ducraaias related 5o sl lemec s wik laxing

authorities. {17 1030 {1555
Dacraazas relatsd o lapss of statute of

livitauoes L] 128 23y
Balance & erd of parog ¥ 785 5§ 1080 £ 1504
Hai urscoprized fax banats’ 3 LTT I P T S Fk ]
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Morgan Stanley

Interast Expansae (Benofit), Notof Federal and State Income Tax
Bencfits

§ v et il 2018 o
Ractgrings in s Gasese i 5 B & {40} & 3
Actrusd al snd of penics 02 o1 147

Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are
recognized as a component of the provision for income taxes.
Penalties related to unrecopmized tax benefits for the vears

mentioned above were mmaterml
Tax Avthority Examinations

The Frrm s under continuous examination by the IRS and other
tax authorities in certain countries, such as Japan and the UK.,
and in states and localities in which it has significant business
operations, such as Mew York. The Firm has established a
liabilaty for unrecognized tax benelits, and assocuted interes,
1f apphicable {“tax habibties™), that it believes 15 adequate 1n
relation to the potenteal for additional assessments. Omee
established, the Firm adjusts such tax liabilities only when new
information is available or when an event ocours necessitating

a change.

The Firm believes that the resolution of the above tax
examinations will not have a material effect on the annual
Tinance] statements, although a resohation coukd hay e a material
impact in the income statements and on the effectve tax rate for
arty period in which such resolutions egcur.

See Note 13 regasding the Duaich Tax Authority's challenge, in
the Dhstrict Court in Amsterdam {matters sty led Case number
153637 and Case mmnber 154335, of the Firm’s entitlement
to certain withholding tax credits, which may impact the balance
of wnrecogmzed tax benefits,

1t ts rensonably possible that significant changes in the balance
of unreeognized tax benefits may occur within the next 12
menths, Al this tme, however, it & not possible 1o reasonably
egtimate the expected champe fo the twotal amount of
unrecognizesd tax benefits and the impact on the Firm's effective
fax rate over the next 12 months.

Earliost Tax Year Subject to Examination in Major Tax
Jurisdictions

Jrisctictich Tax Yo
LR 203
e Yok State ard Mew York City T
Hong Herg otk
LK, 2041
Jagar 05
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21.  Segment, Geographic and  Hevenue

Information
Segment Information

The Firm structures its segments priman |y based upon the nature
of the financinl products and services provided tocustomsers and
its management organization. The Firm provides o wide range
of [nancial products and services 1o s customers in éach of the
business  sepments:  Institutiomal  Secunties,  Wealth
Management and Investment Management. For a further
discussion of the business segments, see Note |

Revenues and expenses directly associated witheach respective
buziness sepment are ncluded in determiming 185 operating
results, Other revenves and expenses that are net directly
attnbutable to a partcular business segmel are generally
allocated based on cach business segment’s respective nel
revenues, non-interest expenses o other relevant measures.

As a result of revenues and expenses from transactions with
other operating segments being treated as transactions with
exterrm] parties for purposes of segment disclosures, the Firm
ingludes an Intersegment Elminations category to reconcile the
business sepment results to the consolidated resalts.

Salected Financial Information by Busingss Sagmant
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Datail of Invastmant Banking Revanues

£ iy mesiony 019 ek 2017

rew—— S 216 € 240 & 2007
Instinifonal Securites—rdenyiting 3618 Rl 3,450
Fimi Iresaiman birking Lt from

CONACTs wilh [LS!meds. BO% i A

1. Fiapresends the approskmals ameunk of iressfmisnl hanking revenss scoounied b
undder this accouniing updale

Trading Revenues by Product Type

& ey renliery 2048 2014 2087

Irteres raie 3 Ty F 2ESE § LODM
Foragn axchanga TR il Aar
[Ecnity sncurity and e e Basr 8,201
Commadiy and other 1438 1874 Ta0
Creait 1,243 (=3 1v] 1347
Total § 1,088 5 14250 § 14,118

1 Dfwictircd o i et il ngualy Sestuaity i i Sodvacts

The previous table summarizes gams and losses ineluded in
Trading revenues m the income statements. These activibies
include revenues related to denvative and non-dervative
financial insruments, The Firm generally wilizes financial
instruments acToss a variely of product types in conreetion with
its market-making and related nsk management strategies. The
trading revenues presented inthe table are not representative of
the manner in which the Firm mamnages ils business activities
and are prepared in a manner similar to the presentatson of

trading revenues for regulalony reponing purposes.

Irvesimaent ni Invasimants Revenues—Nal
Cumulative Unrealized Carried Interest

Ar A
Dacamber 31,  Dwcseibar 31,

§ 1} AESEAE Fill poelli)
el cunslative ket st -
Basind Seas Al sk of evasicg 5 TTA % 434

The Firm s portion of net cumulative unrealized performance-
based feez in the form of carmed interest {for which the Firm 1=
nst oblagated 1o pay compensation) are atrisk ofreversing when
the retiim i certain unds falls below specilied performance
targets. See Mote 13 for information regarding general partner
guarantees, which mclude potental obligations to retum
performance fee distributions previously received

Investmant Managemant Assel Management Revenuas—
Reduction of Fees Due 1o Foa Waivaers

& iy gy 2019 2018 2087
Ear withias 3 43 5 . 1 BA

The Firm waives g postion of s fees in the Investment
Management business segment from certain regisiered money
miarket funds that comply with the requirements of Rule 2a-7
of the Investment Companmy Act of 1940
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Morgan Stanley

Certan (ther Fee Waivers

Separately, the Firm s emplovees, including s semor offxers,
may participate on the same terms and conditions as other
investors in certain funds that the Firm sponsors primarly for
client investment, and the Firm may waive or lower applicable
fees and chanzes for its emplovess

Income from Continuing Operations before Income Tax
Expanse {Benafith

# 1 e Fad ] Finl] v
U5 § Ba6d § A § nBBE
Hon-id5" 1,837 2433 417
Tatad 3 4,39 5 11237 5 10403

1. Mo L) 5. et i B o Qidvii i o Opanatioa Ioomnd Sidakss tha
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Het Revenues by Region

# ool mig 206 2017
Amaricas $ d0226 5 H0001 % 2T
EMNEA 6,061 - Te-rd i1l
Asla 5132 4714 4414
Toeal 3 £1410 § 400007 § 3705

The Firm operates in both 115, and non-U.5. markess. The
Firm's non-U_3, business actvities are principally conducted
and managed through EMEA and Asia locations The net
revenues disclosed in the following table reflect the regional
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view of the Firm's consolidated net revenues on a managed
basis, based on the followng methodology:

Institusional Securties; client location for advisory and equity
underwriting, revenue recording location for debt underwriting,
trading desk location for sales and trading

Wiealth Maragenient;: representalives operate in the Amerias,

Trvestment Martagenment! client loeation, except certain clesed-
end funds, which are based on aset location

Ravenes Recagnized from Prior Sarvices

& iy oy 2 2018
3 &TE 3 24

Hon-rines; feverued

The previous table includes revenue from contracts with
customers recognized where some or all services were
performed in prior periods and 15 poamanly composed of
investment banking advisory fees and distribution fees

Racaivables from Contracts with Customars

A A
Dacomber 31, Ducsber 31,
i s Fiald it

Cuonse o e focseealdes 3 Caes 8 2a08

RKecervables from contracts with customers, which are inclhuded
within Customer and other receivables m the balance shects,
arige when the Firm has both recorded revenues and has the right
peer the comtract to bill the customer

Assets by Business Sagmant
At A
Decomber 31, Ducember 31,
£ iy rmiony 2018 '
Ity ol Sasturitie § LA T B4R 427
Wil Mishagpierrie] 197,682 220
Ervdatmash! Maragsnie! 6,546 4,112
Tatal’ 3 BOSAZ0 § 53,531

1 Paepnd arssts buves besn hally slocabed o B buness jegranis

Tolal Assols by Region
At AL

Ducamber 3,  Ducenber 31,
£ iy maiony 2049 Z0HE
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Ain 0T 367 TH.B05
Tatal 5 BO5428 § A53,531
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Morgan Stanley

22. Parent Company

Parani Company Only—Condensed Income Statements and
Comprahansive Incoma Statemants

I s F 2048 aT
Reverurs

[DHwidends from subsidisies’ § EE28 § 4573 § 2RAT
Trasing (2] B4 {250
s, ST B SN R
Teral non-iniees: fiveruds L] arrrd .91
[Erees— B Aaz anm
Intnms! enpense &B61 4806 4,000
Nt irdermst 460 385 {206)
Hat Fevonues 6015 5378 2.006
Hon-nismsl epsraes 300 2 240
Incormes bafire moome Mies 5115 [ 5] 1,835
Peosision for fhenw'i from] incom taes (T3} 2 {206}

Wl reone bafors Undiibued g
of subsizianaes 8,768 11 .01

Undisiributed gain of subrich 3254 387 4000
Nt ircoma. 8,042 ar4e 6,111
Cbar conipretersiv incoma (loss), red of

R

Fiafeign: puimercy Tarslaion Adu et (L] (a4} Fai]

Chargs in ra unrealined nuln!n (R

o arviiltie- for-sal secun e 1437 Rz £

Pemsions. posyetmmant and oher (BB} 137 FLLL]

l.‘.l-u-g-mwuout vabiation acjusmen (1850 1454 {580)
Comprebwnsiwiccoms & D56 § 9083 § 0004
Ha! ircomeas $ 9042 5 Avda 5 BN
Pewfaimed stnck dividends ard other 530 8IS B3
Enimin lcabde to Morgan Stanla

mn::nl ars i 4 BS512 § &332 § H5AA

1 In 2049 ad 2018 hmqumwmnmmn
iy, ey 0f Srvidanch o Bk

385/420

oOoOooodn



Table of Contents
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Farant Company Only—Condensad Balance Shoats
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Morgan Stanley
Parant Company Cnly—Condoensed Cash Flow Statamants
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On November 25, 2019, the Parent Company mssued S50:0
million of Senes L Preferred Stock and on Jameary 15, 2020,
the Parent Company redeemed in whole its cutstanding Series
G Preferred Stock. For further information on prefemed stock,
see Mote 16

taars padd o bshal! of cataen
Parant
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Parant Company™s Borrowings with Original Maturities
Groater than Ona Yaear

Ak A1
December 31, December 31,
2019 g
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Morgan Stanley

Guaranteas of Debt Instrumants and Warrants Issued by
Subsidiarins

Ak Al
Decembaer 31, Decsmber 31,
25 il |

& iy miigny o

e 3 unne s 14 Aggrgain batarce LI LU
Subordirated 10,870 HH

= §  sargos §  ishshz  Guarantees under Subsidiary Leasa Obligations

Tramsuctions with Subsidiarics

The Parent Company has transactions with sts corsolidated
submciaries determined on an agreed-upon basis and has
guaranteed ceram unsecured lines of credit and contractual
obligations on certain of its consolidated subsidiaries.

Guarantees

In the normal course of s busmess, the Parent Company
puarantees certain of s subsdmnes’ obligations under
denvative and other financial arrangements, The Parent
Company records Trading assets and Trading hiabilities, which
inclede derivative comracts, at fair value in 85 condensed
balance sheets

The Parent Company also, 0 the nommal course of its buginess,
provides standard indemnities to cournterpasties on behalf of its
subsidiartes for tacces, including U5, and foreign withholding
tacoes, on interest and other payments made on denivatives,
securities and stock lending transactions, and certain anmuity
products. These indemnity payments could be required based
on & change i the tax laws or change i interpretation of
applicable tax rulings. Certam comracts contain provisions that
enable the Parent Company to terminate the agreement upon the
ocerrence of such events The maximum potential amount of
future payments that the Parent Company could be required 1o
make under these indemmnifications cannot be estimated. The
Parent Company has not recorded any contingent hability in o=
condensed financial statements for these indemmifications and
believes that the occurmence of any ¢vents that would trigger
payments under these contracts 15 remote,

The Paremt Compary has issued guarantees on behall of ns
submachiarses (o various U5, and non-lULS exchanges and
clenmnghouses that trade and clear securitics andior [ulures
contracts. Under these guarantee arrangements, the Parent
Company may be required to pay the financial chligations of fs
subsichartes related 1o business ransacted on or with the
exchanges and cleaninghowses in the eveni of a subsidiary's
default on its obligatons 1o the exchange or the clearinghouse.
The Parent Company has not recorded amy contingent Liabality
inits condensed financi] statements for these arrangem ents and
believes that any potential requirements to make paymenis
umder these arrangements are remole

December 2009 Foan [0-K

AL A
Docomber 3, Ducembe 11,
# i FLLL e

-lwlﬂlil natanca’ kS s % 1003

1. Arsusts primay relate & the U1K
Fimance Subsidinry

The Parent Company fully and unconditionally guarantees the
secunties msed by Morgan Stanley Finange LLC, 8 wholly
owned finance subsidhary,

Resolution and Recovery Planning

Az inddicated m the Firm's 2009 resolution plan submitted to the
Federal Reserve and the FDIC, the Parent Company hss
amenshed and restated s suppon agreement with its material
ertities (including its wholly owned. direct subsidiany hMorgan
Stanley Holdings LLC {the “Funding THC™) and cenain other
subsicdharies, as deflined in the Firm's 2019 resolution plan.
Under the secured amended and restated support agreement, in
the event of a resolution scenano, the Parent Company would
be obligated 1o comtnibute all of 11s material assets that can be
contributed under the terms of the amended and restated suppon
agreement (other than shares in subsidiaries of the Parent
Company and certain other assets) {"Contributable Assets™), to
the material entities and'or the Funding THC. The Funding THC
would be obligated to provide capital and liquadity, as
applicable, to the matersal entities.
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24. Subsequent Event

On February 20, 2020, the Fum entered into a definitive
agreement under which it will acquire E*TREADE Financial
Coeporation ("E*TRADE™) in an all-stock iransaction currently
valuesd at approccimately 313 ballion, based on the closing price
of the Firm's commaon stock and the number of E*TRADES
fully dilmed shares outstanding on February 19, 2020 Under
the terms of the agreement, E*TRADE comion stockholders
will receme 10432 Margan Stanley commeon shares [or each
E*TRADE common share. The acquisiton s sibject 1o
customary closing conditions, including regulatory approvals
and approval by E*TRADE shareholders, and is expected to
close i the fourth quarter of 2020

Dazcember 2419 Form 10-K 150

389/420



Table of Contents

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants
on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Mone.
Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure
Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Firm's
management, nchuding the Chiel Executive Officer and Chiel
Financeal Officer, the Firm conducted an evaluation of
disclosure controls and procedures, as such term 15 defined under
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(¢). Based on this evaluation, the
Cheef Executive Officer and Chiel Frnanceal Officer concluded
that the Firm's disclosure controls and procedureswere elfective
as of the end of the pericd covered by this annual report.

Munpgement's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting

The Firm's management is responsible for establishing and
mamntaming adequate imemnal control aver Dinancial reporting
The Frrm’s internal control ever financial reportng 15 designed
1o provide reasomable assurance regarding the reliabality of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for extermal purposes in accordance with generally accepted
seoounting principles in the Uniled States of America ("U15,
GAAPT

157
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Morgan Stanley

The mtermal control over financial reporting includes those
pohces and procedures that:

+ Pertainto the maintenance of records that, inreasonahle detail,
aceurate v and Eairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the Fim,

+ Provide reasonable assurance thal transactions are récorded
a4 Neoeasary to pemit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with US GAAP and ithat receipts and
expenditures are being made only in accordance with
autherizanons of the Firm s management and directors; and

+ Provide reasonable ascurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposation of
Firm assets that could have a material effect on the Firm's
financial statements.

Because of its mherent limitations, imtermal control  over
financin] reporing mav not prevent or detect misstaiements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the nsk that confrols may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of complance with the palicies of procedises may deterorate,

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Firm's internal
contrel over financial reporting as of December 31, 2019, In
making this k=sessment, managenent used the criteria set forth
by the Committee of Sponsoring Crganizations of the Treadway
Commusston  (“COS07 i fmtermal  Control—Integraled
Framework (20035 Based on mamagement’s assessment and
thoge critera, manapement believes that the Firm mamtained
effective nternal contral over fDnancial reporting as of
December 31, 2019

The Firen's independent registered public accounting firm has
audited and issued a report on the Firm's internal corrol over
financi] reporting, which appears balow

Drecember 2019 Form 10-K
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Mongan Stankey:

Opindon an Internal Control over Financinl Reporting

We have audited the internal contrel over financial reporting of
Meorgan Stanley and  subsidiries (he “Fim™) as of
December 31, 2019, based on eriteria established in Jterral
Canitrol —  Iitegrated Framework (2013) ssued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commession (COS0). In our opimion, the Firm maintained, in
all material respects, effective imemal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2009 based on critena established
n fifernal Comtral — Integrated Framework (201 3) 1ssued by
COS80.

We have also audined, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Chversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements of the Firm as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 and our report
dated February 27, 2020 expressed an ungualified opinion on
these financial statements

Basis for Opinion

The Firm"s managerment 15 responsible for mantumng effective
internal eontrol ever [mancml reporting and {or s assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
inctuded in the accom panying Management’s Report onIntemal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Owr responability is 1o
express an opinton on the Firms intemnal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm
regnstered with the PCAOB and are required to be mndependent
with respect 1o the Firm in accordance with the U5, federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOE.

We conducted our audst i accordance with the standards of the
PCACE. These standards requare that we plan and perform the
audit 10 oban reasonable assurance aboul whether effective
intermal contrel over financial reporting was mamamed in all
material  respects.  Owr  audit  included oblaining  an
undderstanding of internal control ever financial reporting,

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Mew York, New York
February 27, 2020

Dazcember 2419 Form 10-K

assezsing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluting the design and operating effectiveness of internal
contral based on the assessed risk, and performang such other
procediires as we consedered necessmary m the arcurmstances.
We believe that our audst provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion

Definilion and Limitations of Iniernal Conirol over
Financial Reporting

A company's imemal control over financial reporting is
process designed to provide reptonable assusance regarding the
relihility of financial reporting and the preparstion of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company™s intemnal confrol
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that { 1) pertain to the mauntenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and famly reflect the transactions and
dispoaitions of the assets of the company ;, (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permil
preparation of fimancial statements in accordance with generally
accepled accountmg  principles, and that receipls and
expenditures of the company are being made only inaccordance
with suthorizations of management and directors of the
company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or imely detection of unauthonzed acqusition, use,
or disposition of the company s sssets that could have a matenal
eifect on the financial satements,

Because of s inherent limitations, intermal control over
finance] reporting may not prevent or detect msstatements.
Also, progections of any evaluation of eifectiveness to future
periods are subject to the nsk that controls may become
nadecuente because of clanges in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

391/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

€Y)

@
2019 10-K

392/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
2010 15 ( CDIB )
( ) STACK
2006-1 CDO 275 ( CDS )
CDIB STACK 2006-1 CDO CDIB (DS
CDO CDS
228 CDIB CDIB 12
2011 28 2018 12 21
2019 18  CDIB 2018 12 21
2019 24  CDIB 2018 12 21
2019 2019
2018 12 21
CDIB 2019 12 ( )
2013 17
133
2014 10 29
116 2016
11
2013
2007-NC1(MSAC2007-NC1)
2007-NC1
2014
(
12.5 )
2016 12
2016 12
2017 17 2016 12
2017 13 ( )

393/420



2018
2013
(
2018
2019
2013 11
12
2017
2017
2014 23
FGIC
2017 24

2017 11 22

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

2007-2AX(MSH 2007-24X)

650 )
2014 11 24
13
2007-NC3(MSAC2007-NC3)
2007-NC3
( 13 )
2016
17
2017 13
2018
2018 19
( FGIC )
2007-NC4
( 876 )
2017 23
2018 13

394/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
2018 12 20
2015 23
2007-
NC4
( 10.5 )
2015 12
11 2018 10 19
2019 17
2019 2019 17
2016
( SDNY )
2008 2016 12
( )
2017 28
2017 SDNY
( )

2018 27

395/420



2011 10

( 85

11

2017

19

2019
2017 10

ow

2073-16

11

2018

22

2011 12

27.6

15/3637 1

2007 2013

2018

2019

B-803-18(
oW

534,270,456
2014 11

2018

5/4353

2018

A/S

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
(
100
76
2012 20
11 2019
2019 31
2020 16
2012/00406/WNV
1999 2005
2012 (
( 31 ) 2018 30
15
2019 10 2019
2019
2019 14
( )
124 ( 139 )
26
18/00318 18/00319
BS99-6998/2017)
2014 ( 1P0 )
ow
( 80 )
2017 11 29
1PO B-

396/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
B-2564-17
767,235,885 ( 115 )
2018
B-803-18 B-2073-16 B-2564-17
2018 29
B-2564-17 2019 B-803-18
2019 12 31
2013 12 30
2007-12
( 516 )
2014 28 2016 14
2016 17 2017
11
2017 10 2017 26
2018 10 31
2019 10
2019 11 11
2014 19  FGIC NIMS 2007-1
( NIVS ) FGIC
( 475 )
NIMS
2014 11 24
2017 19 2017 24
2017 11 22 2018 13
2019 11 13
2019 12
2019 25

2012 2018

397/420



13

2020
2007-NC4

2020

2019

19

2019 23 2009

2019 12 15
2020

10-Q

10-K

398/420

EDINETOOOO

0000000000(E05871)
ooooood
2016
2019
2019 29



€Y)

@

2018 30

2021

®

©)

®

29

399/420

15

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn



©)

Q)

©))

50

50

®

(b)

50

400/420

100

20

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

@



€))
(b)
(D

VIE

VIE

(10)

aDn

12)

13)

401/420

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( VIE
©
VIE
VIE
VIE

VIE



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

14)

10

(15)

402/420



EDINETOOOO

OO00000000(ES871)
0000000
2019 30
2021
1
10
(16)
10
an
(18)
(19)

403/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

10

(20)

@D

2019

404/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

13

(22)

(23)

@ 50
@ 50
50

405/420



(24)

(25)

(26)

406/420

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

407/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

€Y)

@

(€))
( EICP )

*

12 31

€))

408/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

@
®
*
(
)
2014 2037 12 31 15.315 15.315
2038 15 15

409/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
2009
2014 2037 12 31
20.315 ( 15.315 ) 2038
20 ( 15 )
2009
2016
1)
2009
( )
2016
( )
2)

®

410/420



@

@

®

*

®)

(©)

)

®

®

(10)
1D
12)
13)
14)
(15)
(16)
an
(18)
19
(20)
@D
22)
23
(24)
(25
(26)
@n
(28)
(29
30)
@D
32)

2019

2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018

2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018

2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018

10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10

10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10

10
10
10
10
10
10
10

24

(2019 )

(2019

(2019
(2019

(2019 28 )
(2019
(2019
(2019

(2019

(2019
(2019

(2019 30 )
(2019
(2019
(2019
(2019

411/420

10
10
10

26

29
29

28
28
28

30

(2019 25
)
(2019
(2019 26
)

)
(2019 24

(2019
(2019
(2019

)
)

)
(2019 25

(2019 30
(2019 30

)

(2019
(2019 28

)

)
(2019 19

(2019 19

N N N\

(2019 10 25
(2019 10 28
(2019 10 28

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn



33)
(34)
(35
(36)
@nN
(38)
39
(40)
(41)
(42)
(43)

(44)
(45)
(46)
40
(48)
(49)
(50)

(5D
(52)
(53)
(54)
(55)
(56)
€1
(58)
(59)
(60)
(61)
(62)
(63)
(64)
(65)
(66)

2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018

2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018

2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018

10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10

10
10
10
10
10
10

10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
10

(2019 10
(2019 10
(2019 10

(2019 11
(2019 11
19

(2019 12

(2020
(2020
19

(2020

(2020

(2020
(2020

(2020

(2020

(2020

412/420

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

(2019 10 28 )
31 )
31 )
31 )

(2019 11 11 )
(2019 11 26 )
(2019 11 26 )
(2019 11 26 )

29 )
29 )
(2019 12 12

12 )
(2019 12 13 )
(2019 12 13 )
(2020 24 )
13 )
13 )
(2020

(2020 )

(2020 13 )

(2020 13 )
24 )

(2020 27 )

(2020 23 )
24 )
(2020 30 )
(2020 13 )
(2020 19 )
28 )
(2020 12 )
15 )



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

413/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

414/420



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
[ 1
2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018 2017 12 31
2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018 2017 12 31
PCAOB
(2013 )
2019 12 31 2020 27
PCAOB

PCAOB

PCAOB

415/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

@
®

416/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

LLP

2020 27

1997

417/420



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Morgan Stanley:
Opinion on the Financia Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Morgan Stanley and subsidiaries (the ““Firm””) as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the related consolidated income statements, comprehensive income statements, cash flow
statements and statements of changes in total equity for each of the three years ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017, and
the related notes (collectively referred to asthe ““financial statements™”). In our opinion, the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Firm as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Firm * sinternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2019, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated February 27, 2020, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Firm's internal control over
financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Firm’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Firm’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required
to be independent with respect to the Firm in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due
to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that
was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as awhole, and
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the
accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Vauation of Level 3 Financial Assets and Liabilities Carried a Fair Value - Refer to Note 3 to the financia statements
Critical Audit Matter Description

The Firm = strading and financing activities result in the Firm carrying material financial instruments having limited price
transparency. These financial instruments can span a broad array of product types and generally include derivative, security
and lending positions, as well as borrowings carried at fair value. These financial instruments are generally classified as Level
3financial assets or liabilities in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Unlike financial instruments whose values or inputs are readily observable and therefore more easily independently
corroborated, the valuation of financial instruments classified as Level 3 isinherently subjective, and often involves the use of
proprietary valuation models whose underlying algorithms and valuation methodol ogies are complex.
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Given the Firm uses complex valuation models and model inputs that are not observable in the marketplace to determine the
fair value of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value, performing audit proceduresto evaluate the
appropriateness of these models and inputs involved a high degree of auditor judgment, specialized skills, and an increased
extent of testing.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Y We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the Firm’s valuation controls, including mode! review and price
verification for the appropriateness of valuation methodology including inputs and assumptions used.

Y We independently evaluated the appropriateness of management’s significant valuation methodologies, including the input
assumptions, considering the expected assumptions of other market participants, and external data, when available.

Y We developed independent valuation estimates for certain financial instrument selections, using externally sourced inputs
and independent valuation models, and used such estimates to further evaluate management’s fair value measurement by
investigating the differences exceeding established threshol ds between our estimate and that of the Firm, including;
comparing the fair value estimate with similar transactions; and, evaluating the Firm’s assumptions inclusive of the inputs.

Y We tested the revenues arising from the valuation estimate on trade date for certain structured transactions involving Level
3 financial instruments. In performing such procedures, we also developed independent valuation estimates for certain
structured transaction selections, as well as tested the valuation assumptions and methodol ogies used by the Company.
Those procedures also included evaluating whether the methods were consistent with relevant Company valuation policies
and agreeing relevant cash flows to underlying support.

Y We assessed the consistency by which management has applied significant and unobservable valuation assumptions.

Y We performed a retrospective assessment of management's valuation estimates for a sample of financial instrument
selections by comparing such estimates to relevant transactions.

/s Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New York
February 27, 2020

We have served asthe Firm s auditor since 1997.
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